
______________________________________________________________ 
CITY COUNCIL     345 6th Street, Suite 100, Bremerton, WA 98337 - Phone (360) 473-5280  

 
 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 6, 2024 
CITY COUNCIL HYBRID MEETING AGENDA 

 

Most Council Members and staff will be participating in the meeting in-person, and the public is invited to 
attend.  Or beginning at 5:30 PM, the public may participate remotely through one of the following options: 
 

 To stream online only (via BKAT Feed, with no interaction possible): 
https://bremerton.vod.castus.tv/vod/?live=ch1&nav=live 

 

 Members of the public are invited to join the Zoom Meeting by clicking on the link below: 
https://bremertonwa-gov.zoom.us/j/89694813320?pwd=Z0JvSXNhSFp1c0xhL1NxUjRhN20xUT09 

 

 Or One tap mobile:  
US: +12532050468,,89694813320#,,,,*173061#  or +12532158782,,89694813320#,,,,*173061#  
 

 Or Telephone: Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
US: +1 253 205 0468 or  +1 253 215 8782  or  +1 669 444 9171  or +1 669 900 6833   

 

Webinar ID: 896 9481 3320 
Passcode: 173061 

 

Public questions or comments may be submitted ahead of time to City.Council@ci.bremerton.wa.us 

 
1. BRIEFING: 5:00 – 5:30 P.M. in COUNCIL CONFERENCE ROOM 603 

    A. Review of Agenda 

    B.   General Council Business (Only as necessary…)  

2. CALL TO ORDER: 5:30 P.M. in FIRST FLOOR CHAMBERS 

3. MAYOR'S REPORT 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Claims & Check Register 
 

B. Minutes of Meeting – February 21, 2024 
 

C. Minutes of Joint Planning Session – February 24, 2024 
 

D. Minutes of Study Session – February 28, 2024 
 

E. Confirm Reappointment of Vanessa Acierto to Bremerton-Kitsap Access Television Citizens 
Advisory Committee  

 

F. Resolution No. 3378 to approve the Capital Agreement with WA State Department of Commerce 
for the Connecting Housing to Infrastructure Program Grant for the Kitsap Community Resources 
Manette Housing Project 

 

G. Contract Modification Agreement No. 4 with Kellermeyer Bergensons Services, LLC for Janitorial 
Services 

 

H. Contract with Redside Construction, LLC for the Pine Road Basin Stormwater Improvements 
Marine Impact Basin Project  

 

I. Stormwater Financial Assistance Program Grant Agreement with WA State Department of 
Ecology for Kitsap Lake Stormwater Retrofit Construction Project  

 
 

Continued on next page… 
 

 Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) accommodations provided upon request.  Those requiring special 
accommodations please contact the City Clerk at (360) 473-5323 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

https://bremerton.vod.castus.tv/vod/?live=ch1&nav=live
https://bremertonwa-gov.zoom.us/
https://bremertonwa-gov.zoom.us/
mailto:City.Council@ci.bremerton.wa.us


 
 
 

 
 

5. PUBLIC RECOGNITION – To address the Council on any issues not already on the   

     agenda.  Please state your name for the record in person, and limit your comments to  

     under 3-minutes…  

6. GENERAL BUSINESS – There are no General Business items tonight... 

7. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS 

8. ADJOURNMENT OF CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
AGENDA BILL 

CITY OF BREMERTON 
CITY COUNC IL 

 
 

 
SUBJECT:   Study Session Date:  N/A 

Claims & Check Register COUNCIL MEETING Date:   March 6, 2024 

Department:  Legal Services 

Presenter:  Angela Hoover 

Phone:   (360) 473-5323 

 
SUMMARY:   
Approval of the following checks and electronic fund transfers: 

1. Check Numbers 406121-406269 and EFT Numbers V40430-V40507 in the grand total 
amount of $2,544,693.12 

2. Regular Payroll for pay period February 15, 2024 in the amount of $1,104,961.49 
3. Regular Payroll Payout for pay period ending February 15, 2024 in the amount of $17,404.26 
4. Retiree Payroll for pay period ending February 29, 2024 in the amount of $34,708.81 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 

 
FISCAL IMPACTS (Include Budgeted Amount): 

 

STUDY SESSION AGENDA:                 ☒ Limited Presentation        ☐ Full Presentation  

 

 STUDY SESSION ACTION:    ☒ Consent Agenda        ☐ General Business      ☐ Public Hearing 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:   
 
Move to approve the consent agenda as presented. 
 

 

COUNCIL ACTION:    Approve         Deny           Table      Continue         No Action 
 
Form Updated 01/02/2018 

4A 
 



 
                                  AGENDA BILL 

                                CITY OF BREMERTON 
                                CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 
SUBJECT:  Minutes of Meeting – February 
21,  2024 

Study Session Date:  N/A 

COUNCIL MEETING Date:   March 6, 2024 

Department:  City Council 

Presenter:  Council President  

Phone:   (360) 473-5280 

 
SUMMARY:  The Minutes of Meeting held on February 21, 2024 are attached. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Meeting Minutes    

 
FISCAL IMPACTS (Include Budgeted Amount):  None 

 

STUDY SESSION AGENDA:         ☒ N/A 

 
 

 STUDY SESSION ACTION:    ☒ Consent Agenda        ☐ General Business      ☐ Public Hearing 

 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:   
 
Move to approve the February 21, 2024 Meeting Minutes as presented.  

 

COUNCIL ACTION:    Approve         Deny           Table      Continue         No Action 
 
Form Updated 11/3/17 

 4B 
2 



DIGITAL RECORDING 

CITY COUNCIL HYBRID MEETING MINUTES 
 

Wednesday, February 21, 2024 
 

The weekly meeting of the City Council of the City of Bremerton was called to order Wednesday, 
February 21, 2024, at 5:00 PM in Council Conference Room 603 of the NORM DICKS GOVERNMENT 

CENTER, 345 6th Street, Bremerton, Washington, with Council President Jennifer Chamberlin 
presiding.  Council Members present were Eric Younger, Anna Mockler, Michael Goodnow (arrived 5:26 
PM), Jane Rebelowski, Jeff Coughlin (arrived 5:05 PM), and Denise Frey.  At 5:30 PM, the meeting 
moved to the First Floor Meeting Chambers.    Also present were City Attorney Kylie Finnell, Assistant 
City Attorney Brett Jette, City Clerk Angela Hoover, Legislative Assistant Christine Grenier, and IT 
Manager Dave Sorensen.   
 
President Chamberlin announced the City Council is conducting the Council Meeting in-person with 
an option for the public to join in person, participate remotely via Zoom (except Public Recognition 
until hate speech can be addressed), or view on BKAT, because community involvement is 
encouraged. Anyone may request special accommodation to participate in Public Recognition 
remotely via Zoom up to 24 hours before every Council Meeting, through the City Clerk, by contacting 
(360) 473-5323.   
 
MAYOR’S REPORT – Mayor Wheeler highlighted:  

 Puget Sound Regional Council’s Fund Our Ferries Letter of Support  
 Creative District Celebration on March 1 at 5:00 PM at the Admiral Theatre  

CONSENT AGENDA 
4A – Check Numbers 405959 through 406120 and Electronic Fund Transfers V40332 through 

V40429 in the grand total amount of $2,677,189.78; Regular Payroll Payout Correction for pay 
period ending January 15, 2024 in the amount of $14,290.21; Regular Payroll for pay period 
ending January 31, 2024 in the amount of $1,120,181.79 

 

4B – Minutes of Meeting – February 7, 2024 
 

4C – Minutes of Study Session – February 14, 2024 
 

4D – Confirm Appointment of Amy Waterman to the Bremerton Parks and Recreation Commission 
 

4E – Confirm Appointment of Cynthia Engelgau-Davis to the Bremerton Arts Commission 
 

4F – Amendment No. 6 to the Agreement with Kitsap County for the Incarceration of City Prisoners 
 

4G – Professional Services Agreement with Consor North America, Inc. for Construction 
Management and Inspection Services for the Quincy Square Project  

 

4H – Tourism Promotion Services Agreement with Westbrook/Main Consulting, LLC to provide 
Consulting Services on the impact of Lodging Tax Advisory Committee funding uses in 
Bremerton  

 
Questions or comments from the public were provided by Roy Runyon (4D & 4E) and Amy 
Waterman… 
 
5:37 PM M/S/C/U (Rebelowski/Mockler) Move to approve the CONSENT AGENDA as presented. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
President Chamberlin provided a reminder that no public comment is allowed via Zoom, unless prior 
arrangements have been made.  And again, to request special accommodations through the City 
Clerk at least 24-hours before the meeting.  Lastly, since it’s election season, to avoid comments on 
any ballot measures or candidates. 
 



City Council Reg. Mtg. Minutes 
Wednesday, February 21, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 
PUBLIC RECOGNITION – Questions and comments from the public were provided by Manya 
Perkins; Mary Lou Long; Martitha May; Eric Nemeth; Kaileinanoa Astentista; and Roy Runyon 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS – There were no General Business items… 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS 
Anna Mockler observed dangerous conditions on 13th Street between Kitsap Way and Callow 
Avenue; reported on the AWC Action Days Conference; thanked Parks Director Jeff Elevado for his 
update on Lulu Haddon Park at her recent meeting; announced that District 6 Town Hall Meetings will 
continue to be held on 2nd Mondays from 4:00 to 6:00 PM; thanked Public Works for allowing her to 
use the Oyster Bay Facility for these meetings; and acknowledged that she has served on Council 
exactly 2 years. 
 
Jane Rebelowski thanked volunteers for their help last Saturday with the blackberry pull at Matan 
Park, with the next event planned for Saturday, March 9; and was excited that Midtown Market will be 
opening next Monday, February 26.  
 
Jeff Coughlin thanked Manya Perkins for offering counseling services to LGBTQ youth; reported on 
the AWC Action Days Conference; announced that Rep. Greg Nance will be hosting a Fix Our Ferries 
Town Hall on Saturday, March 9 at 10:00 AM at the Norm Dicks Government Center; looked forward 
to Downtown Bremerton Association’s St. Patrick’s Day Parade on March 16, with other events 
planned, including a puppy parade; announced a Women’s Pre-Summit for Entrepreneurs on 
Thursday, February 29 from 10:00 AM to 12:00 PM followed by the Summit on Thursday, March 21 
from 11:30 AM to 4:00 PM, both at the Kitsap Conference Center; thanked volunteers who serve the 
City of Bremerton and emphasized that applications are welcome anytime for boards, committees, or 
commissions.  
 
Jennifer Chamberlin thanked Public Works staff for responding to problems throughout the city and 
encourage people to use the Bremerton 1 App to report issues (i.e. abandoned vehicles, potholes, 
garbage); announced the Joint Planning Session with the Mayor, Judge, and Directors 
on Saturday, February 24 from 9:00 AM to 3:30 PM on the 3rd Floor of the Kitsap Conference Center. 
The public is welcome to attend, but there will no opportunity to comment in person or remotely by 
Zoom; and the next Study Session will be held on Wednesday, February 28 at 5:00 PM in the 6th 
Floor Council Conference Room.  This meeting is open to the public to attend in person or remotely 
by Zoom, but there will be no opportunities to comment. 
 
At 6:07 PM, President Chamberlin announced the Council would meet for 10-Minutes to discuss 
“Pending Litigation” as allowed under RCW 42.30.110 (1) (i); and that action was anticipated. 
 
At 6:17 PM, President Chamberlin called the meeting back to order; and asked Assistant City 
Attorney Brett Jette to explain the action before the Council and to read the Motion for the record.   
 
Questions or comments from the public were provided by Roy Runyon; with a response provided by 
Mr. Jette… 
 
6:18 PM M/S/C/U (Mockler/Rebelowski) In relation to Endo International plc, Cause No. 22-22549… 
Move to authorize the City Attorney’s Office to execute ballots 1004579, 1004574, 1004576, 1004581, 
1004580, 1004575 on behalf of the City of Bremerton by voting to abstain and opt out of granting 
releases contained in the Plan. 
 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 



City Council Reg. Mtg. Minutes 
Wednesday, February 21, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 
 
With no further business, President Chamberlin adjourned the Council Meeting at 6:20 PM. 
 

Prepared and Submitted by: 

 
       ______________________________ 
       CHRISTINE GRENIER 
       Legislative Assistant    
 
 
APPROVED by the City Council on the 6th day of March, 2024. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
JENNIFER CHAMBERLIN, City Council President 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
ANGELA HOOVER, City Clerk 
 
JC:AH:ls:cg 
 



 
                                  AGENDA BILL 

                                CITY OF BREMERTON 
                                CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 
SUBJECT:  Minutes of Joint Planning 
Session – February 24, 2024 

Study Session Date:  N/A 

COUNCIL MEETING Date:   March 6, 2024 

Department:  City Council 

Presenter:  Council President  

Phone:   (360) 473-5280 

 
SUMMARY:  The Minutes of Meeting held on February 24, 2024 are attached. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Meeting Minutes   

 
FISCAL IMPACTS (Include Budgeted Amount):  None 

 

STUDY SESSION AGENDA:         ☒ N/A 

 
 

 STUDY SESSION ACTION:    ☒ Consent Agenda        ☐ General Business      ☐ Public Hearing 

 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:   
 
Move to approve the February 24, 2024 Meeting Minutes as presented.  

 

COUNCIL ACTION:    Approve         Deny           Table      Continue         No Action 
 
Form Updated 11/3/17 

 4C 
2 



DIGITAL RECORDING 

CITY COUNCIL JOINT PLANNING SESSION MINUTES 
 

Saturday, February 24, 2024 
 
A Joint Planning Session with the City Council, Mayor, Judge, and Department Directors of the City 
of Bremerton was called to order on Saturday, February 24, 2024 at 9:01 AM at the Kitsap 
Conference Center with Council President Jennifer Chamberlin presiding.  Council Members present 
were Eric Younger, Anna Mockler, Michael Goodnow, Jane Rebelowski, Jeff Coughlin, and Denise 
Frey.  IT Manager Dave Sorensen and Legislative Assistant Christine Grenier were present to 
provide staff support. 
 
Also in attendance were Mayor Greg Wheeler, Municipal Court Judge Tracy Flood (remotely) City 
Attorney Kylie Finnell, Financial Services Director Mike Riley, Police Chief Tom Wolfe, Police Lt. 
Ryan Heffernan, Fire Chief Pat McGanney, Public Works & Utilities Director Tom Knuckey, 
Community Development Director Andrea Spencer, and Parks & Recreation Director Jeff Elevado. 
 
President Chamberlin welcomed and thanked everyone for taking time out on a Saturday to 
participate in the Joint Planning Session.  She established that the intent of the meeting was to 
review the 2023 Council Goals & Priorities to determine which Goals would move forward; to 
establish the 2024-2025 Council Goals & Priorities; and determine action steps to achieve the 
Goals & Priorities.   
 

President Chamberlin called breaks from 10:32 to 10:48 AM; 12:04 to 12:53 PM; and 2:30 to 2:43 
PM… 
 

1) Brief discussion: 
 Opened with a “Dividing the Orange” scenario 
 Established Group Norms 
 Defined “Joint Planning” 
 Status Update on 2023 Goals & Priorities  

 

2) In-Depth Discussions: 
 

Economic Development 

 Support the Bremerton Creative District 

 Continue to support Main Street certification 

 Explore programs for historic preservation 

 Develop a policy to address chronically vacant properties 

 Continue to support incentives and the securing of funding for redevelopment in commercial 
areas, in particular for Wheaton Way corridor and Charleston District 

 Continue work with the Greater Kitsap Chamber, Kitsap Economic Development Alliance, 
Downtown Bremerton Association, etc. to promote economic development initiatives  

 

Action Steps 

 Ad hoc committee for historical preservation 

 Cost recovery for chronically vacant properties 

Housing Equity 

 Investigate options to ensure rental housing standards are met 

 Support funding for low-income housing development by working with community partners, 
etc.  

 Continue to support Bremerton Housing Authority in its development of a low-barrier hybrid 
shelter through budget allocations and public policy 

 Consider adjusting income levels to more closely reflect Bremerton incomes for 12- and 20- 
year Multi Family Tax Exemption 



City Council Joint Planning Session Minutes 
Saturday, February 24, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

 Continue to support creative and humane housing solutions through policy and funding 
decisions for a wide variety of housing types 

 Explore the Auditor’s list of city owned parcels and discuss potential use and restrictions in 
supporting expansion of affordable housing projects 

 Continue to lead the region in the development of “missing middle” housing creations  
(e.g. accessory dwelling units, cottage, duplex/triplex, permit ready plans) 

 

Action Steps 

 Explore permit ready plans 

 Continued collaboration with Kitsap County and surrounding cities 
 

Parks and Environmental Stewardship 

 Support the development of Jarstad Park to Kitsap Lake Trail 

 Develop policies that encourage environmental stewardship 

 Continue support of Kitsap Lake Water Quality Program 

 Support the planning and development of a trail network throughout Bremerton 
 

Action Steps – to be determined  
 

Public Engagement 

 Increase city-wide communications impact 

 Increase public outreach prior to budget season 

 Develop a Council a frequently asked questions list accessible on Council’s website 

 Hold District Meetings on Comprehensive Plan 

 Re-establish outreach program with Bremerton High School 
 
Action Steps 

 Explore participatory budgeting in committee  
 

Public Safety and Support 

 Increase public safety funding 

 Monitor the impact of current public safety policies and programs 
 

Action Steps 

 Consider public safety lens on new development 
 

Staffing 

 Define the roles and responsibilities of Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion position based on 
consultant and community impact 

 Support sustainable funding for maintenance and operations of Parks and Public Works  
 

Action Steps – to be determined   
 

Transportation and Multimodal Support 

 Establish a comprehensive ranking transportation prioritization in collaboration with Public 
Works 

 Support data-based traffic calming policy that prioritizes safety of pedestrians and cyclists 

 Prioritize multimodal connectivity 

 Prioritize funding for residential street maintenance 
 

Action Steps 

 Identify solutions for funding gap for Warren Avenue Bridge Project  
 



City Council Joint Planning Session Minutes 
Saturday, February 24, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
Discussion including the 2023 and 2024 to 2025 Council Goals and Priorities, Action Steps, and 
Committee Assignments, will be continued to an upcoming Study Session.  
 
With no further business, President Chamberlin adjourned the Joint Planning Session at 3:15 
PM. 
 

Prepared and Submitted by: 

 
       _______________________________ 

CHRISTINE GRENIER, Legislative Assistant  
 
 
APPROVED by the City Council on the 6th day of March, 2024. 
 
________________________________________ 
JENNIFER CHAMBERLIN, City Council President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
ANGELA HOOVER, City Clerk 
 
JC:AH:ls:cg 



 
                                  AGENDA BILL 

                                CITY OF BREMERTON 
                                CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 
SUBJECT:  Minutes of Study Session –  
February 28, 2024 

Study Session Date:  N/A 

COUNCIL MEETING Date:   March 6, 2024 

Department:  City Council 

Presenter:  Council President  

Phone:   (360) 473-5280 

 
SUMMARY:  The Minutes of Study Session held on February 28, 2024 are attached. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Meeting Minutes    

 
FISCAL IMPACTS (Include Budgeted Amount):  None 

 

STUDY SESSION AGENDA:         ☒ N/A 

 
 

 STUDY SESSION ACTION:    ☒ Consent Agenda        ☐ General Business      ☐ Public Hearing 

 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:   
 
Move to approve the February 28, 2024 Meeting Minutes as presented. 

 

COUNCIL ACTION:    Approve         Deny           Table      Continue         No Action 
 
Form Updated 11/3/17 

 4D 
2 



CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION MINUTES 
 

Wednesday, February 28, 2024 
 
A Study Session of the City Council of the City of Bremerton was called to order on Wednesday, 
February 28, 2024 at 5:00 PM in Council Conference Room 603 located in the Norm Dicks 
Government Center at 345 6th Street, with Council President Jennifer Chamberlin presiding.  Other 
Council Members present were Eric Younger (arrived 5:20 PM), Jane Rebelowski, Jeff Coughlin, 
and Denise Frey (remotely). Council Members Anna Mockler and Michael Goodnow were absent. 
Legislative Assistant Christine Grenier provided staff support.   
 

President Chamberlin established that the Study Session is open for the public to attend in person 
or view remotely, but there will be no opportunities for input; the content of these items is subject 
to change, no action is anticipated.  
 

Any of the items approved for action by the Council tonight, will be placed on the March 6, 2024 
City Council Meeting Agenda or as otherwise determined.  She further established that a recording 
will be available online within a few days following the meeting.   
 
A. INFORMATION ONLY  

1. Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Program Update by MFR Coaching and Consulting, and 
Clarity Partnerships   
 

B. BRIEFINGS ON AGENDA BILL ITEMS  
1. Confirm Reappointment of Vanessa Acierto to the Bremerton-Kitsap Access Television 

Citizens Advisory Committee  Consent Agenda 
 

2. Resolution to approve the Capital Agreement with WA State Department of Commerce for 
the  Connecting Housing to Infrastructure Program Grant for the Kitsap Community 
Resources Manette Housing Project  Consent Agenda 
 

3. Contract Modification Agreement No. 4 with Kellermeyer Bergensons Services, LLC for 
Janitorial Services   Consent Agenda 
 

4. Contract with Redside Construction, LLC for the Pine Road Basin Stormwater 
Improvements Marine Impact Basin Project Consent Agenda 
 

5. Stormwater Financial Assistance Program Grant Agreement with WA State Department of 
Ecology for Kitsap Lake Stormwater Retrofit Construction Project Consent Agenda 

 

C. GENERAL COUNCIL BUSINESS   
1. Public Works Committee Briefing (Last Meeting 2/19/2024) – Chair Jane Rebelowski  

 
2. Audit Committee Briefing (Last Meeting 2/26/2024) – Council Member Eric Younger 

 

3. Finance, Investment & Parking Committee Briefing (Last Meeting 2/27/2024) – Council 
Member Jane Rebelowski  

 

4. Regional and Other Committee/Board Briefings  
 

5. Other General Council Business was discussed. 
 
President Chamberlin established that the next Council Meeting would be on Wednesday, March 
6, 2024 beginning at 5:30 PM in the First Floor Meeting Chambers of the Norm Dicks Government 
Center; and announced that the public is invited to attend in person or remotely, with any special 
accommodations to speak via Zoom during Public Recognition may be requested through the City 
Clerk by calling (360) 473-5323 at least 24-hours prior to the meeting.  
 



City Council Study Session Minutes 
Wednesday, February 28, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
At 6:32 PM, President Chamberlin announced the Council would meet for 15-Minutes to discuss 
“Pending Litigation” as allowed under RCW 42.30.110 (1) (i); and that no action was anticipated. 
 
At 6:47 PM, President Chamberlin called the meeting back to order… 
 
With no further business, the Study Session was adjourned at 6:47 PM. 
 

Prepared and Submitted by: 
  

                                                          
       ______________________________ 
       CHRISTINE GRENIER, Legislative Assistant  
 
APPROVED by the City Council on the 6th day of March, 2024. 
 
 
       
JENNIFER CHAMBERLIN, Council President  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
ANGELA HOOVER, City Clerk 
 
JC:AH:ls:cg 



 
                                AGENDA BILL 

                              CITY OF BREMERTON 
                               CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 
SUBJECT:  Confirm Reappointment of 
Vanessa Acierto to the Bremerton Kitsap 
Access Television Citizens Advisory 
Committee  

Study Session Date:  February 28, 2024 

COUNCIL MEETING Date:   March 6, 2024 

Department:  Executive 

Presenter:  Mayor Wheeler 

Phone:   (360) 473-5266 

 
SUMMARY: The Mayor is seeking confirmation for the reappointment of Vanessa Acierto to the 
Bremerton Kitsap Access Television (BKAT) Citizens Advisory Committee as the City of Bremerton 
Representative. The term expires on December 31, 2024.  
 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Application for City Board/Commissions/Committee - Vanessa Acierto 

 
FISCAL IMPACTS (Include Budgeted Amount):  None. 

 

STUDY SESSION AGENDA:                 ☒ Limited Presentation        ☐ Full Presentation  

 

 STUDY SESSION ACTION:    ☒ Consent Agenda        ☐ General Business      ☐ Public Hearing 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:   
 
Move to confirm the reappointment of Vanessa Acierto to the Bremerton Kitsap Access Television 
Citizens Advisory Committee for the term expiring on December 31, 2024. 
 
 

 

COUNCIL ACTION:    Approve         Deny           Table      Continue         No Action 
 
Form Updated 01/07/15 

 

4E 



1

Jennifer Hayes

From: noreply@civicplus.com

Sent: Monday, February 12, 2024 6:27 PM

To: WebMaster; Greg Wheeler; Jennifer Hayes

Subject: Online Form Submittal: Application for City Boards / Commissions / Committee

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize 

the sender and know the content is safe. 

Application for City Boards / Commissions / Committee 
 

  

Date 2/12/2024  

First Name Vanessa 

Middle Name Field not completed. 

Last Name Acierto 

Home Phone  

Address1  

Address2 Field not completed. 

City Silverdale 

State WA 

Zip 98383 

Occupation Public Records/Legal Assistant 

Employer City of Bremerton 

Work Address1  

Work Address2 Field not completed. 

City Bremerton 

State WA 

Zip 98337 

Work Phone 360-473-2344 

Fax Field not completed. 

 



2

Email  

Education Bachelor of Arts in Political Science from University of 

Washington, Seattle 

Certificate in Business Administration, Foster School of 

Business, University of Washington, Seattle 

Local References Angela Hoover, 360-473-5323 

Stephanie Olson, 360-473-2345 

I am interested in serving: Public Access Citizens Advisory Committee (Bremerton Kitsap 

Access Television/BKAT) 

Is this an application for 

reappointment? 
Yes 

If yes, how many years have 

you served on this 

commission or committee? 

First appointed August 2022 

How long have you lived in 

Bremerton 
almost 25 years total (moved and came back) 

Why are you applying for 

this appointment? 
I moved back to Bremerton after many years away shortly 

before Covid hit. I had enjoyed getting to know Bremerton 

again as an adult and had been looking for ways to become 

more involved in my community. Joining this Committee was a 

way to learn more about the area and grow personally and 

professionally as a representative for City Employees. A little 

over a year has passed, and I have much more to learn and 

contribute at BKAT. I'm so impressed by the hard work and 

dedication BKAT Staff and BKAT members have for the 

programming they put out and have been honored to be even a 

small part of that. I hope to be reappointed and serve another 

term. 

Which of your personal and 

/ or professional interests 

prompted you to apply for 

this appointment? 

The law and government has always interested me. I'm an 

extrovert and really enjoy being around other people. This 

appointment would be an excellent way to combine these 

interests. I like the idea of BKAT bridging the gap between area 

citizens and those at City Hall and all the City Staff. As I 

learned the last year, the area served is much larger and the 

community connections, therefore, even greater than I initially 

thought! I definitely feel there is more to explore and 

accomplish with BKAT. 

Have you ever served on 

any other Bremerton board, 

commission, committee or 

N/A 



3

task force? If yes, please 

list. 

Please list your 

qualifications for this 

appointment (include skills, 

activities, training, 

education): 

The classes I took to earn my Certificate in Business 

Administration provided me with much training that could be 

very useful serving on this advisory committee. I learned about 

interpersonal communication, negotiation, project 

management, budgeting and accounting for businesses, 

advertising and communicating with a broad audience through 

various forms of media. My Political Science degree has taught 

me effective writing skills, critical thinking skills, an ability to 

always see both sides of an issue, and the appreciation of the 

difference even just one person can make in society. I've spent 

over 15 years working in the legal field where I've learned to 

have compassion, patience, and attention to detail. I've worked 

with many different types of people from varying 

socioeconomic backgrounds which will help me keep an open 

mind and be particularly inclusive on this committee. Of course, 

now that I've had a chance to serve a year on the Committee, I 

have that experience to help me as well. 

What are your community 

interests (committee, 

organizations, special 

activities)?  

I am very open in my interests! I like the idea of helping BKAT 

target younger community members in order to grow support 

early from them and hopefully, gain some lifelong supporters.  

 

I have spent the last year acting with various community 

theaters in Kitsap County, which takes quite a bit of my time. I 

also enjoy attending events around town, such as Story Night 

and Bremerton First Fridays. 

Please list any 

accommodations you need 

to perform volunteer 

duties: 

N/A 

 
We welcome your willingness to serve Bremerton.  
 
Pursuant to the Washington Public Disclosure Act, (RCW 42.56), this form 
constitutes a public record and is subject to public release upon request. Prior to 
release, the following information may be redacted pursuant to RCW 42.56.250(3): 
Residential addresses, residential telephone numbers, personal wireless telephone 
numbers, personal electronic mail addresses, social security numbers, driver’s 
license numbers, identicard numbers, and emergency contact information of 
employees or volunteers of a public agency, and the names, dates of birth, 
residential addresses, residential telephone numbers, personal wireless telephone 
numbers, personal electronic mail addresses, social security numbers, and 
emergency contact information of dependents of employees or volunteers of a 
public agency. 
 
Applicants are considered for appointment without regard to race, color, religion, 



4

gender, national origin, sexual orientation, age, genetic information, marital or 
veteran status, or the presence of any disability.  

Updated 3/24/2020 
 

  

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.  

 

   

 



AGENDA BILL 
CITY OF BREMERTON 

CITY COUNCIL 

Study Session Date: February 28, 2024 SUBJECT: 
Resolution No. 3378 to approve the Capital 
Agreement with WA State Department of 
Commerce for the Connecting Housing to 
Infrastructure Program (CHIP) Grant for the 
Kitsap Community Resources Manette 
Housing Project 

COUNCIL MEETING Date:  March 6, 2024  
Department: DCD/CDBG 

Presenter: S. Lynam
Phone:  (360) 473-5375

SUMMARY:  
In 2022, the City was awarded funding from the Connecting Housing to Infrastructure Grant (CHIP). 
The purpose of the CHIP grant is to support the development of affordable housing by funding the 
water, sewer, and stormwater utility improvements for the Manette Housing project. To that end, 
the City has been awarded $430,000. The $430,000 CHIP will be administered by the City on a 
reimbursements basis to Kitsap Community Resources for the Manette Housing project. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Resolution No. 3378 with Exhibits

Exhibit A: Washington State Department of Commerce Capital Agreement
Exhibit B: Award Letter dated April 2022

FISCAL IMPACTS (Include Budgeted Amount):  None, the City will administer the funds on a 
reimbursement basis to Kitsap Community Resources.  

STUDY SESSION AGENDA:   ☒ Limited Presentation ☐ Full Presentation

 STUDY SESSION ACTION:  ☐ Consent Agenda ☐ General Business ☐ Public Hearing

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  

Move to pass Resolution No. 3378 approving the Capital Agreement with Washington State 
Department of Commerce for funding via the Connecting Housing to Infrastructure Program 
(CHIP); and authorize the Mayor to finalize and execute the agreement with substantially the same 
terms and conditions as presented. 

COUNCIL ACTION:  Approve   Deny   Table  Continue   No Action 

Form Updated 11/09/2021 

4F

x



1 

2024 CDBG/HOME Policy Plan 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 3378 

 

 

A RESOLUTION of the City Council of the City of 

Bremerton, Washington, adopting the Capital Agreement with City 

of Bremerton through America Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) State and 

Local Fiscal Recovery Funds - Connecting Housing to Infrastructure 

Program (CHIP) 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Bremerton (City) is experiencing an affordable housing 

crisis; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature has allocated $55.5 million for 

local governments and public utility districts to partner with affordable housing developers to 

pay for "system development charges and utility improvements" through a Connecting Housing 

Infrastructure Program (CHIP) program that is being managed by the Washington State 

Department of Commerce; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2022 the City in partnership with Kitsap Community Resources 

was City was awarded $430,000 from the Connecting Housing to Infrastructure Grant (CHIP) for 

the purpose of funding the water, sewer, and stormwater utility improvements for the Manette 

Housing project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Bremerton and Kitsap County as a consortium already 

allocated via the Grant Review Committee $802,226.05 in HOME funds to Kitsap Community 

Resources for their 9 unit affordable housing complex in between 2021 and 2022; NOW 

THEREFORE, 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREMERTON, WASHINGTON, 

DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1.  The recitals and findings of fact set forth in this resolution are 

hereby incorporated as if fully set forth herein.  

 

SECTION 2.  The Capital Agreement with City of Bremerton through America 

Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds - Connecting Housing to 

Infrastructure Program (CHIP) attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby adopted. 

 

SECTION 3.  Severability.  If any one or more sections, subsections, or sentences 

of this Resolution are held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portion of this Resolution and the same shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 

 



2 

2024 CDBG/HOME Policy Plan 

SECTION 4.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately upon its passage. 

 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Bremerton, Washington this _____ 

day of _____________, 2024. 

 

 

 ____________________________________ 

 JENNIFER CHAMBERLIN, 

 Council President 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 

 

 

           

KYLIE J. FINNELL, City Attorney ANGELA HOOVER, City Clerk 

 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 

Capital Agreement with 
 

City of Bremerton 
 

through 
 
America Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds - 

 
Connecting Housing to Infrastructure Program (CHIP) 

 
 
 
Purpose 
 

To support the development of affordable housing by paying for 
water, sewer, and stormwater utility improvements for the Manette 
Housing project. 

 
 
 
Start date:  July 1, 2021 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 ii 

Face Sheet ..................................................................................................................... 1 

Special Terms and Conditions ........................................................................................ 2 

 

1. Authority .................................................................................................. 2 
2. Acknowledgement of Federal Funding ..................................................... 2 
3. Grant Management .................................................................................. 2 
4. Period of Performance, Costs Incurred, Reimbursement ......................... 2 
5. Compensation .......................................................................................... 2 
6. Billing Procedures and Payment .............................................................. 3 
7. Subcontractor Data Collection………………………………………………...4 
8. Historical or Cultural Resources, Human Remains ................................... 4 
9. Audit ........................................................................................................ 4 

10. Debarment ............................................................................................... 5 
11. Insurance ................................................................................................. 5 
12. Compliance with Applicable Law and Regulations ................................... 7 
13. Federal Exclusion .................................................................................... 8 
14. Registration with the System for Award Management (SAM)  .................. 8 
15. Reduction In Funds .................................................................................. 8 
16. Ownership of Project/Capital Facilities ..................................................... 8 
17. Change of Ownership or Use for Grantee-Owned Property ..................... 9 
18. Change of Use for Leased Property Performance Measure ..................... 9 
19. Termination for Fraud or Misrepresentation ............................................. 9 

20. Fraud and Other Loss Reporting……………………………………………… 

21. Order of Precedence ................................................................................ 9 

General Terms and Conditions ..................................................................................... 10 

1. Definitions .............................................................................................. 10 
2. Administrative Cost Allocation ................................................................ 10 
3. Allowable Costs ..................................................................................... 10 
4. All Writings Contained Herein ................................................................ 10 
5. Amendments .......................................................................................... 10 
6. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) .................................................... 10 
7. Approval ................................................................................................ 10 
8. Assignment ............................................................................................ 11 
9. Attorney’s Fees ...................................................................................... 11 

10. Audit ...................................................................................................... 11 
11. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension or Ineligibility or  

           Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion ....................................................... 11 
12. Code Requirements ............................................................................... 12 
13. Confidentiality/Safeguarding of Information ............................................ 12 
14. Conformance ......................................................................................... 12 
15. Conflict of Interest .................................................................................. 13 
16. Copyright Provisions .............................................................................. 13 
17. Disallowed Costs ................................................................................... 14 
18. Disputes ................................................................................................. 14 
19. Duplicate Payment ................................................................................. 14 
20. Governing Law and Venue ..................................................................... 14 



 

 

21. Indemnification ....................................................................................... 14 
22. Independent Capacity of the Grantee ..................................................... 15 
23. Industrial Insurance Coverage ............................................................... 15 
24. Laws ...................................................................................................... 15 
25. Licensing, Accreditation and Registration .............................................. 15 
26. Limitation of Authority ............................................................................ 15 
27. Noncompliance With Nondiscrimination Laws ........................................ 15 
28. Pay Equity.............................................................................................. 15 
29. Political Activities ................................................................................... 16 
30. Prevailing Wage Law ............................................................................. 16 
31. Procurement Standards for Federally Funded Programs ....................... 16 
32. Prohibition Against Payment of Bonus or Commission ........................... 16 
33. Publicity ................................................................................................. 17 
34. Recapture .............................................................................................. 17 
35. Records Maintenance ............................................................................ 17 
36. Registration with Department of Revenue .............................................. 17 
37. Right of Inspection ................................................................................. 17 
38. Savings .................................................................................................. 17 
39. Severability ............................................................................................ 17 
40. Subcontracting ....................................................................................... 18 
41. Survival .................................................................................................. 18 
42. Taxes ..................................................................................................... 18 
43. Termination for Cause ........................................................................... 18 
44. Termination for Convenience ................................................................. 18 
45. Termination Procedures ......................................................................... 19 
46. Treatment of Assets ............................................................................... 19 
47. Waiver ................................................................................................... 20 
48. Work Hours and Safety Standards ......................................................... 20 

 

Attachment A- Scope of Work ....................................................................................... 21 

Attachment B- Certification of the Availability of Funds to Complete the Project  ........... 22 

Attachment C- Certification of the Payment and Reporting of Prevailing Wages ........... 23 

 



 

 

Contract Number: 22-96720-209 

Washington State Department of Commerce 
Local Government Division 

Community Assistance & Research Unit 
ARPA State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds Grant 

1. Grantee 2. Project Name and Address 

City of Bremerton 
345 Sixth Street 
Suite 100 
Bremerton, WA  98337 
 

Manette Housing 
2115 East 19th Street 
Bremerton, WA  98310 
 

3. Grantee Representative 4. COMMERCE Representative 

Sarah Lynam 
CDBG Administrator 
(360)473-5375 
sarah.lynam@ci.bremerton.wa.us 

Eric Guida 
CHIP Program Manager 
(360)725-3044 
eric.guida@commerce.wa.gov 

PO Box 42525 
1011 Plum Street SE 
Olympia, WA 98504-2525    

5. Grant Amount 6. Funding Source 7. Start Date 8. End Date 

$430,000 Federal:   State:   Other:   N/A:  July 1, 2021 June 30, 2025  

9. Federal Funds (as applicable) 

$430,000
 

Federal Agency   

US Dept. Treasury 

ALN (CFDA #):    

21.027                  

10. SWV # 11. UBI # 12. DUNS # 13. UNIQUE ENTITY ID # 

0000221-00 181-007-710 556846970  HV84RG6NYNG4 

14. Grant Purpose 

The outcome of this performance-based Grant Agreement is to undertake the construction of water, sewer, and 
stormwater utility improvements as referenced in Attachment A – Scope of Work for the Manette Housing project. 
 

COMMERCE, defined as the Department of Commerce and Grantee acknowledge and accept the terms of this Grant 
and attachments and have executed this Grant on the date below to start as of the date and year referenced above.  The 
rights and obligations of both parties to this Grant are governed by this Grant and the following other documents 
incorporated by reference:  Grantee Terms and Conditions including Attachment “A” – Scope of Work, Attachment “B” – 
Certification of Availability of Funds to Complete the Project, Attachment “C” – Certification of the Payment and Reporting 
of Prevailing Wages,  

FOR GRANTEE FOR COMMERCE 
 
 
  
Greg Wheeler, Mayor      
 
  
Date 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY 
 
_________________________________ 
Name 
 
 

Date 
 

 
 
  
Mark K. Barkley, Assistant Director, Local Government 
Division 
 
  
Date 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY 
 
_______________________________________ 
Sandra Adix 
Assistant Attorney General 
March 31,  2022 
Date 
 

 

  



 

 

 

 

DECLARATIONS 
 
CLIENT INFORMATION 
  
GRANTEE Name:  City of Bremerton  
Grant Number:  22-96720-209  
 
PROJECT INFORMATION 
  
Project Name:  Manette Housing  
Project Address: 2115 East 19th Street   
Project City, State Zip Code:  Bremerton, WA  98337  
  
 
GRANT INFORMATION 
 
Grant Amount:  $430,000 
Appropriation Number: 2021 Washington State Capital Budget SSB 1080, 

Section 1074 
Re-appropriation Number (if applicable):  
Grant End Date: June 30, 2025 
Biennium: 2021-2023, 2023-2025 
Biennium Close Date: June 30, 2025 
Earliest Date for Reimbursement: March 3, 2021 
Time of Performance: In accordance with Special Terms and 

Conditions Number 4 
  
FUNDING INFORMATION 
  
Federal Funding: Sec. 602 Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Funds 

of Title VI of Social Security Act as added by 
American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA or “Act”), 
Title IX, Subtitle M, Sec. 9901, Public Law 117–2, 
codified at 42 U.S.C. 802 et seq. 
 

Federal Award Agency: US Department of Treasury 
  
Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this Action: $430,000 
  
  
  
ADDITIONAL SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS GOVERNING THIS AGREEMENT 
 
Extension of Grant Upon Reappropriation. 
 
Notwithstanding General Term and Condition No. 4, the End Date of this Grant may be extended upon 
written notice to Grantee from Commerce for a period of time consistent with the effective date of any 
re-appropriation of funds, and/or with terms reflecting new Federal requirements for ARPA funds, if any. In 
Commerce’s sole discretion, after review of any funding re-appropriation terms and applicable Federal law 
or guidance, a contract amendment in accordance with General Term and Condition No. 4 may be required 
to extend the End Date.  
 
 

Last revision 11/23/2021



SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

2 
 

 

1. AUTHORITY 

Funding for this Grant has been provided in  the 2021-2023 biennial state Capital Budget, SSB 1080, 
pursuant to Federal grants to Washington State under the American Rescue Plan Act  of 2021 (ARPA 
or “Act”), sec. 9901, Public Law 117–2, codified at 42 U.S.C. 802 et seq. Funding unexpended during 
the 2021-23 state biennium has been re-appropriated to the 2023-2025 biennia, subject to Federal 
requirements.   

 

2. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FEDERAL FUNDING 

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): SLRF0002 
Total amount of the federal award: $430,000  

Federal Awarding Agency: US Department of Treasury 
Research & Development (R&D): award will not be used for R&D 

The Grantee agrees that any publications (written, visual, or sound) but excluding press releases, 
newsletters, and issue analyses, issued by the Grantee describing programs or projects funded in 
whole or in part with federal funds under this Grant, shall contain the following statements:  

“This project was supported by grant awarded by the US Department of the Treasury.  Points 
of view in this document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official 
position or policies of the US Department of the Treasury.  Grant funds are administered by 
the America Rescue Plan Act, State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, Washington State 
Department of Commerce.”  

3. GRANT MANAGEMENT 

The Representative for each of the parties shall be responsible for and shall be the contact person for 
all communications and billings regarding the performance of this Grant.  

The Representative for COMMERCE and their contact information are identified on the Face Sheet 
of this Grant. 

The Representative for the Grantee and their contact information are identified on the Face Sheet 
of this Grant.   

4. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE, COSTS INCURRED, REIMBURSEMENT 

a) Period of Performance, The initial period of performance for this award begins on the date hereof 
and ends on June 30, 2025.  If unexpended funds under this Grant are re-appropriated, the period 
of performance (Contract End Date) will be extended to not later than October 30, 2026. 

b) Costs Incurred Period. As set forth in Treasury’s implementing regulations, Grantee may use funds 
awarded under ARPA to cover eligible costs incurred during the period that begins on March 3, 
2021, and ends on December 31, 2024. Pursuant to Federal rules, a cost shall be considered to 
have been incurred if the Grantee has incurred an obligation with respect to such cost by December 
31, 2024. All change orders for which reimbursement is requested must be executed on or before 
December 31, 2024. 

c) Reimbursement Period. All requests for reimbursement of eligible costs incurred between March 
3, 2021 and December 31, 2024 payable from ARPA funds must be submitted to COMMERCE by 
the earlier of October 30, 2026 or 30 days prior to the Contract End Date.  

5. COMPENSATION 

COMMERCE shall pay an amount not to exceed the total contract amount listed on the contract Face 
Sheet for the performance of all things necessary for or incidental to the performance of work as set 
forth in the Scope of Work.  

  



SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

3 
 

6. BILLING PROCEDURES AND PAYMENT 

COMMERCE shall reimburse the GRANTEE for eligible Project expenditures, up to the maximum 
payable under this Grant Agreement. When requesting reimbursement for expenditures made, the 
GRANTEE shall submit to COMMERCE a signed and completed Invoice Voucher (Form A-19), that 
documents capitalized Project activity performed for the billing period. The GRANTEE can submit all 
Invoice Vouchers and any required documentation electronically through COMMERCE’s Grants 
Management System (CMS), which is available through the Secure Access Washington (SAW) portal. 
The invoices shall describe and document, to COMMERCE's satisfaction, a description of the work 
performed, the progress of the project, and fees. The invoice shall include the Grant Number listed on 
the contract Face Sheet.  

The voucher must be certified (signed) by an official of the GRANTEE with authority to bind the 
GRANTEE. The final voucher shall be submitted to COMMERCE within sixty (60) days following the 
completion of work or other termination of this Grant Agreement, or if work is not completed or Grant 
terminated, within fifteen (15) days following the end of the state biennium unless Grant Agreement 
funds are reappropriated by the Legislature in accordance with Additional Special Terms and 
Conditions set forth in the Declarations page above.  

Each request for payment must be accompanied by: 

 a Project Status Report, which describes, in narrative form, the progress made on the 
Project since the last invoice was submitted, as well as a report of Project status to date. 
COMMERCE will not release payment for any reimbursement request received unless 
and until the Project Status Report is received. After approving the Invoice Voucher and 
Project Status Report, COMMERCE shall promptly remit a warrant to the GRANTEE. 

 Any documentation of costs, and prevailing wage as per section 8 of the Special Terms 
and Conditions and Attachment C, CERTIFICATION OF THE PAYMENT AND 
REPORTING OF PREVAILING WAGES. 

 A reportable expenses form as detailed in Section 7 of Special Terms and Conditions, 
SUBCONTRACTOR DATA COLLECTION. 

COMMERCE will pay GRANTEE upon acceptance of services provided and receipt of properly 
completed invoices, which shall be submitted to the Representative for COMMERCE not more often 
than monthly. 

Payment shall be considered timely if made by COMMERCE within thirty (30) calendar days after 
receipt of properly completed invoices. Payment shall be sent to the address designated by the 
Grantee. 

COMMERCE may, in its sole discretion, terminate the Grant or withhold payments claimed by the 
Grantee for services rendered if the Grantee fails to satisfactorily comply with any term or condition of 
this Grant.   

No payments in advance or in anticipation of services or supplies to be provided under this Agreement 
shall be made by COMMERCE. 

Invoices and End of Fiscal Year 

Invoices are due on the 20th of the month following the provision of services.  

Final invoices for a state fiscal year may be due sooner than the 20th and Commerce will provide 
notification of the end of fiscal year due date.  

The grantee must invoice for all expenses from the beginning of the contract through June 30, 2025, 
regardless of the contract start and end date. 

Duplication of Billed Costs 

The Grantee shall not bill COMMERCE for services performed under this Agreement, and COMMERCE 
shall not pay the Grantee, if the Grantee is entitled to payment or has been or will be paid by any other 
source, including grants, for that service. 



SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

4 
 

Disallowed Costs 

The Grantee is responsible for any audit exceptions or disallowed costs incurred by its own organization 
or that of its subcontractors. 

Withholding 

At its sole discretion, COMMERCE may withhold ten percent (10%) from each payment until 
acceptance by COMMERCE of the final report (or completion of the project, etc.). 

7. SUBCONTRACTOR DATA COLLECTION 

Grantee will submit reports, in a form and format to be provided by Commerce and at intervals as 
agreed by the parties, regarding work under this Grant performed by subcontractors and the portion of 
Grant funds expended for work performed by subcontractors, including but not necessarily limited to 
minority-owned, woman-owned, and veteran-owned business subcontractors. “Subcontractors” shall 
mean subcontractors of any tier. 

8. HISTORICAL OR CULTURAL RESOURCES, HUMAN REMAINS  

CHIP projects are subject to the requirements of Washington State Governor’s Executive Order (GEO) 
21-02 "Archaeological and Cultural Resources”. CHIP Grantees will cooperate with Commerce to fulfill 
the requirements of GEO-21-02.  Commerce will delegate consultation authority to the grantee by letter, 
and each project must complete the EZ-1 Form to comply with the GEO 21-02.  In the event that 
historical or cultural artifacts are discovered at the Project site during construction or rehabilitation, the 
Grantee or subcontractor shall immediately stop work and notify the local historical preservation officer 
and the state historic preservation officer at the Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation 
at (360) 586-3065. If human remains are discovered, the Grantee shall immediately stop work and 
report the presence and location of the remains to the coroner and local enforcement, then contact 
DAHP and any concerned tribe’s cultural staff or committee. 

9. AUDIT 

If the Grantee is a subrecipient and expends $750,000 or more in federal awards from any and/or 
all sources in any fiscal year, the Grantee shall procure and pay for a single audit or a program-
specific audit for that fiscal year. Upon completion of each audit, the Grantee shall: 

1. Submit to COMMERCE the reporting package specified in Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200, 
reports required by the program-specific audit guide (if applicable), and a copy of any 
management letters issued by the auditor. 

2. Submit to COMMERCE follow-up and developed corrective action plans for all audit 
findings. 

If the Grantee is a subrecipient and expends less than $750,000 in federal awards from any and/or 
all sources in any fiscal year, the Grantee shall notify COMMERCE they did not meet the single 
audit requirement. 
The Grantee shall send all single audit documentation to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. 
https://facides.census.gov/Account/Login.aspx 

 

 

 

10. DEBARMENT 

A. Grantee, defined as the primary participant and it principals, certifies by signing these General 
Terms and Conditions that to the best of its knowledge and belief that they: 

i. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency. 

https://dahp.wa.gov/ez-project-review-form
https://facweb.census.gov/uploadpdf.aspx
https://facides.census.gov/Account/Login.aspx


SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

5 
 

ii. Have not within a three-year period preceding this Grant, been convicted of or had a civil 
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public or private agreement 
or transaction, violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false 
statements, tax evasion, receiving stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction of 
justice; 

iii. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental 
entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of federal Executive Order 12549; and 

iv. Have not within a three-year period preceding the signing of this Grant had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause of default. 

B. Where the Grantee is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Grant, the Grantee shall 
attach an explanation to this Grant. 

C. The Grantee agrees by signing this Grant that it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by COMMERCE.  Grantees should 
review section 14 of the Special Terms and Conditions for information on documenting that any 
subcontractors are not on the federal debarment list. 

D. The Grantee further agrees by signing this Grant that it will include the clause titled “Certification 
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered 
Transaction,” as follows, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions: 

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

i. The lower tier Grantee certifies, by signing this Grant that neither it nor its principals is 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 

ii. Where the lower tier Grantee is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Grant, 
such contractor shall attach an explanation to this Grant. 

The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, 
person, primary covered transaction, principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this section, 
have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive 
Order 12549. You may contact COMMERCE for assistance in obtaining a copy of these regulations. 

11. INSURANCE 

Each party certifies that it is self-insured under the State's or local government self-insurance liability 
program, and shall be responsible for losses for which it is found liable. 

12. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW AND REGULATIONS  

A. Grantee agrees to comply with the requirements of section 603 of the Act, regulations adopted 
by Treasury pursuant to section 603(f) of the Act, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding 
the foregoing. Grantee also agrees to comply with all other applicable federal statutes, 
regulations, and executive orders, and Grantee shall provide for such compliance by other 
parties in any agreements it enters into with other parties relating to this award. 

B. Federal regulations applicable to this award include, but are not necessarily limited to the 
following: 

i. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, other than such provisions as Treasury may determine are 
inapplicable to this Award and subject to such exceptions as may be otherwise provided 
by Treasury. Subpart F – Audit Requirements of the Uniform Guidance, implementing the 
Single Audit Act, shall apply to this award. 



SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

6 
 

ii. Universal Identifier and System for Award Management (SAM), 2 C.F.R. Part 25, pursuant 
to which the award term set forth in Appendix A to 2 C.F.R. Part 25 is hereby incorporated 
by reference. 

iii. Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information, 2 C.F.R. Part 170, 
pursuant to which the award term set forth in Appendix A to 2 C.F.R. Part 170 is hereby 
incorporated by reference. 

iv. OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Government wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-
procurement), 2 C.F.R. Part 180, including the requirement to include a term or condition 
in all lower tier covered transactions (contracts and subcontracts described in 2 C.F.R. Part 
180, subpart B) that the award is subject to 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and Treasury’s implementing 
regulation at 31 C.F.R. Part 19. 

v. Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters, pursuant to which the award term set forth in 
2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix XII to Part 200 is hereby incorporated by reference. 

vi. Government wide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace, 31 C.F.R. Part 20. 

vii. New Restrictions on Lobbying, 31 C.F.R. Part 21. 

viii. Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§ 
4601-4655) and implementing regulations. 

ix. Generally applicable federal environmental laws and regulations. 

x. Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment 2 
CFR § 200.216. 

C. Statutes and regulations prohibiting discrimination applicable to this award include, 
 but are not necessarily limited to the following: 

i. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq.) and Treasury’s 
implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 22, which prohibit discrimination on the 
basis of race, color, or national origin under programs or activities receiving federal 
financial assistance; 

ii. The Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et  seq.), 
which prohibits discrimination in housing on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, 
sex, familial status, or disability; 

iii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under any program or activity receiving 
federal financial assistance; 

iv. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq.), and 
Treasury’s implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R.  Part  23,  which  prohibit discrimination 
on the basis of age in programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance; and 

v. Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et 
seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability  under programs, activities, 
and services provided or made available by state and local governments or 
instrumentalities or agencies thereto. 

vi.  

13. FEDERAL EXCLUSION  

These terms add to the terms in Section 12 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension or 
Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion — Primary and Lower Tier Covered Transactions in General Terms 
and Conditions. The Grantee also agrees to access the Federal Exclusion List at www.sam.gov  and 
provide Federal Exclusion documentation to Commerce and to keep a copy on file with the Grantee's 
project records. 

 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200/subpart-C/section-200.216
http://www.sam.gov/


SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

7 
 

14. REGISTRATION WITH THE SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT (SAM) 

By signing this Grant, the Grantee accepts the requirements stated in 48 CFR 52.204-7 to register with 
the System for Award Management at the SAM website (https://www.sam.gov). To register in SAM, a 
valid Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) is required. The Grantee is responsible for the accuracy and 
completeness of the data within the SAM database and for any liability resulting from the Government's 
reliance on inaccurate or incomplete data. The Grantee must remain registered in the SAM database 
after the initial registration. The Grantee is required to review and update on an annual basis from the 
date of initial registration or subsequent updates its information in SAM to ensure it is current, accurate 
and complete. The Grantee shall provide evidence documenting registration and renewal of SAM 
registration to Commerce. 

In the event of the Grantee's noncompliance or refusal to comply with the requirement stated above, 
Commerce reserves the right to suspend payment until the Grantee cures this noncompliance. 

15. REDUCTION IN FUNDS 

In the event state funds appropriated for the work contemplated under this Grant Agreement are 
withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way by the Governor or the Washington State Legislature during 
the Grant Agreement period, the parties hereto shall be bound by any such revised funding limitations 
as implemented at the discretion of COMMERCE, and shall meet and renegotiate the Grant 
Agreement accordingly. 

 
16. OWNERSHIP OF PROJECT/CAPITAL FACILITIES 

COMMERCE makes no claim to any real property improved or constructed with funds awarded under 
this Grant Agreement and does not assert and will not acquire any ownership interest in or title to the 
capital facilities and/or equipment constructed or purchased with state funds under this Grant 
Agreement; provided, however, that COMMERCE may be granted a security interest in real property, 
to secure funds awarded under this Grant Agreement to assure affordability when the CHIP grant 
program contributed to the project, unless monitored by another funder. The funding for this program, 
[SB 5651 (section 1032), laws of 2021] requires that projects serve and benefit low-income 
households, and requires affordability for at least 25 years.  This provision does not extend to claims 
that COMMERCE may bring against the GRANTEE in recapturing funds expended in violation of this 
Grant Agreement. 

 
17. CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP OR USE FOR GRANTEE-OWNED PROPERTY  

A. The GRANTEE understands and agrees that any and all real property or facilities owned by 
the GRANTEE that are acquired, constructed, or otherwise improved by the GRANTEE using 
state funds under this Grant Agreement, shall be held and used by the GRANTEE for the 
purpose or purposes stated elsewhere in this Grant Agreement for a period of at least twenty 
five (25) years from the date the final payment is made hereunder. 

B. This provision shall not be construed to prohibit the GRANTEE from selling any property or 
properties described in this section; Provided, that any such sale shall be subject to prior 
review and approval by COMMERCE, and that all proceeds from such sale shall be applied 
to the purchase price of a different facility or facilities of equal or greater value than the 
original facility and that any such new facility or facilities will be used for the purpose or 
purposes stated elsewhere in this Grant Agreement.   

C. In the event the GRANTEE is found to be out of compliance with this section, the GRANTEE 
shall repay to the state general fund the principal amount of the grant as stated on the Face 
Sheet, hereof, plus interest calculated at the rate of interest on state of Washington general 
obligation bonds issued most closely to the effective date of the legislation in which the 
subject facility was authorized.  Repayment shall be made pursuant to Section 34 (Recapture 
provision). 

 

 

 



SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

8 
 

18. CHANGE OF USE FOR LEASED PROPERTY PERFORMANCE MEASURE 

A. The GRANTEE understands and agrees that any facility leased by the GRANTEE that is 
constructed, renovated, or otherwise improved using state funds under this Grant Agreement 
shall be used by the GRANTEE for the purpose or purposes stated elsewhere in this Grant 
Agreement for a period of at least twenty five (25) years from the date the final payment is 
made hereunder. 

B. In the event the GRANTEE is found to be out of compliance with this section, the GRANTEE 
shall repay to the state general fund the principal amount of the grant as stated on the Face 
Sheet, hereof, plus interest calculated at the rate of interest on state of Washington general 
obligation bonds issued most closely to the effective date of the legislation in which the 
subject facility was authorized.  Repayment shall be made pursuant to Section 34 (Recapture 
Provision). 
 

19. TERMINATION FOR FRAUD OR MISREPRESENTATION  

In the event the GRANTEE commits fraud or makes any misrepresentation in connection with the 
Grant application or during the performance of this Grant Agreement, COMMERCE reserves the 
right to terminate or amend this Grant Agreement accordingly, including the right to recapture all 
funds disbursed to the GRANTEE under the Grant. 

20. FRAUD AND OTHER LOSS REPORTING 

Grantee shall report in writing all known or suspected fraud or other loss of any funds or other 
property furnished under this Grant Agreement immediately or as soon as practicable to the 
COMMERCE Representative identified on the Face Sheet. 

 

21. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 

In the event of an inconsistency in this Grant, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence 
in the following order:  

 Applicable federal and state of Washington statutes and regulations 

 Special Terms and Conditions  

 General Terms and Conditions 

 Attachment A – Scope of Work 

 Attachment B – Certification of the Availability of Funds to Complete the Project 

 Attachment C – Certification of the Payment and Reporting of Prevailing Wages 

 



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

9 
 

1. DEFINITIONS 

As used throughout this Grant, the following terms shall have the meaning set forth below: 

A. “Authorized Representative” shall mean the Director and/or the designee authorized in writing to 
act on the Director’s behalf. 

B. “COMMERCE” shall mean the Department of Commerce. 

C. “Grant” or “Agreement” means the entire written agreement between COMMERCE and the Grantor, 
including any Exhibits, documents, or materials incorporated by reference. E-mail or Facsimile 
transmission of a signed copy of this contract shall be the same as delivery of an original. 

D. "Grantee" shall mean the entity identified on the face sheet performing service(s) under this Grant, 
and shall include all employees and agents of the Grantee. 

E. “Personal Information” shall mean information identifiable to any person, including, but not limited 
to, information that relates to a person’s name, health, finances, education, business, use or receipt 
of governmental services or other activities, addresses, telephone numbers, social security 
numbers, driver license numbers, other identifying numbers, and any financial identifiers. 

F. ”State” shall mean the state of Washington. 

G. "Subcontractor" shall mean one not in the employment of the Grantee, who is performing all or part 
of those services under this Grant under a separate contract with the Grantee. The terms 
“subcontractor” and “subcontractors” mean subcontractor(s) in any tier. 

2. ADMINISTRATIVE COST ALLOCATION 

Administrative costs that may be allowed are set forth in the Special Terms and Conditions.  
Administrative services shared by other programs shall be assigned to this Grant based on an allocation 
plan that reflects allowable administrative costs that support services provided under each Grant 
administered by the Grantee.  An approved current federal indirect cost rate may be applied up to the 
maximum administrative budget allowed.  

3. ALLOWABLE COSTS 

Costs allowable under this Grant are actual expenditures according to an approved budget up to the 
maximum amount stated on the Grant Award or Amendment Face Sheet. 

4. ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN 

This Grant contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No other understandings, 
oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Grant shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of 
the parties hereto. 

5. AMENDMENTS 

This Grant may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties. Such amendments shall not be 
binding unless they are in writing and signed by personnel authorized to bind each of the parties. 

6. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) OF 1990, PUBLIC LAW 101-336, also referred to as 
the “ADA” 28 CFR Part 35 

The Grantee must comply with the ADA, which provides comprehensive civil rights protection to 
individuals with disabilities in the areas of employment, public accommodations, state and local 
government services, and telecommunications. 

7. APPROVAL 

This contract shall be subject to the written approval of COMMERCE’s Authorized Representative and 
shall not be binding until so approved. The contract may be altered, amended, or waived only by a 
written amendment executed by both parties. 

 

 



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

10 
 

8. ASSIGNMENT 

Neither this Grant, nor any claim arising under this Grant, shall be transferred or assigned by the 
Grantee without prior written consent of COMMERCE.    For the purpose of the CHIP contracts, which 
require a city, county or public utility sponsor of the affordable housing project, Commerce preapproves 
the grantee to assign this contract to their affordable housing partner. In this case, all requirements and 
contract terms flow to the assignee’s  subcontractors, specifically section 11, certification regarding 
debarment, and section 40, subcontracting, of the General Terms and Conditions. After  assignment, 
all references to Grantee shall mean Grantee’s assignee. 

9. ATTORNEYS’ FEES 

Unless expressly permitted under another provision of the Grant, in the event of litigation or other action 
brought to enforce Grant terms, each party agrees to bear its own attorney’s fees and costs. 

10. AUDIT 

If the Grantee is a subrecipient and expends $750,000 or more in federal awards from any and/or 
all sources in any fiscal year, the Grantee shall procure and pay for a single audit or a program-
specific audit for that fiscal year.  Upon completion of each audit, the Grantee shall: 

1. Submit to COMMERCE the reporting package specified in Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200, reports 
required by the program-specific audit guide (if applicable), and a copy of any management 
letters issued by the auditor. 

2. Submit to COMMERCE follow-up and developed corrective action plans for all audit 
findings. 

If the Grantee is a subrecipient and expends less than $750,000 in federal awards from any and/or 
all sources in any fiscal year, the Grantee shall notify COMMERCE they did not meet the single 
audit requirement. 

The Grantee shall send all single audit documentation to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. 

https://facides.census.gov/Account/Login.aspx 
 

11. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION OR INELIGIBILITY AND 
VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION—PRIMARY AND LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

A. Grantee, defined as the primary participant and it principals, certifies by signing these General 
Terms and Conditions that to the best of its knowledge and belief that they: 

i. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency. 

ii. Have not within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil 
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection 
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public or private agreement or transaction, 
violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, receiving 
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction of justice; 

iii. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) 
of federal Executive Order 12549; and 

iv. Have not within a three-year period preceding the signing of this contract had one or more 
public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause of default. 

B. Where the Grantee is unable to certify to any of the statements in this contract, the Grantee shall 
attach an explanation to this contract. 

https://facweb.census.gov/uploadpdf.aspx


GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

11 
 

C. The Grantee agrees by signing this contract that it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by COMMERCE. 

D. The Grantee further agrees by signing this contract that it will include the clause titled “Certification 
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered 
Transaction,” as follows, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions: 

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

i. The lower tier contractor certifies, by signing this contract that neither it nor its principals is 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 

ii. Where the lower tier contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this contract, 
such contractor shall attach an explanation to this contract. 

E. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered 
transaction, person, primary covered transaction, principal, and voluntarily excluded, as 
used in this section, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the 
rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact COMMERCE for assistance in 
obtaining a copy of these regulations.  

12. CODE REQUIREMENTS 

All construction and rehabilitation projects must satisfy the requirements of applicable local, state, and 
federal building, mechanical, plumbing, fire, energy and barrier-free codes. Compliance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 28 C.F.R. Part 35 will be required, as specified by the local 
building Department. 

13. CONFIDENTIALITY/SAFEGUARDING OF INFORMATION 

A. “Confidential Information” as used in this section includes:  

1. All material provided to the Grantee by COMMERCE that is designated as “confidential” by 
COMMERCE; 

2. All material produced by the Grantee that is designated as “confidential” by COMMERCE; and 

3. All personal information in the possession of the Grantee that may not be disclosed under state 
or federal law. “Personal information” includes but is not limited to information related to a 
person’s name, health, finances, education, business, use of government services, addresses, 
telephone numbers, social security number, driver’s license number and other identifying 
numbers, and “Protected Health Information” under the federal Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA).  

B. The Grantee shall comply with all state and federal laws related to the use, sharing, transfer, sale, 
or disclosure of Confidential Information. The Grantee shall use Confidential Information solely for 
the purposes of this Grant and shall not use, share, transfer, sell or disclose any Confidential 
Information to any third party except with the prior written consent of COMMERCE or as may be 
required by law. The Grantor shall take all necessary steps to assure that Confidential Information 
is safeguarded to prevent unauthorized use, sharing, transfer, sale or disclosure of Confidential 
Information or violation of any state or federal laws related thereto. Upon request, the Grantee shall 
provide COMMERCE with its policies and procedures on confidentiality.  COMMERCE may require 
changes to such policies and procedures as they apply to this Grant whenever COMMERCE 
reasonably determines that changes are necessary to prevent unauthorized disclosures. The 
Grantee shall make the changes within the time period specified by COMMERCE. Upon request, 
the Grantee shall immediately return to COMMERCE any Confidential Information that 
COMMERCE reasonably determines has not been adequately protected by the Grantee against 
unauthorized disclosure.  



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

12 
 

C. Unauthorized Use or Disclosure. The Grantee shall notify COMMERCE within five (5) working days 
of any unauthorized use or disclosure of any confidential information, and shall take necessary 
steps to mitigate the harmful effects of such use or disclosure.   

14. CONFORMANCE 

If any provision of this contract violates any statute or rule of law of the state of Washington, it is 
considered modified to conform to that statute or rule of law. 

15. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Notwithstanding any determination by the Executive Ethics Board or other tribunal, the COMMERCE 
may, in its sole discretion, by written notice to the Grantee terminate this contract if it is found after due 
notice and examination by COMMERCE that there is a violation of the Ethics in Public Service Act, 
Chapters 42.52 RCW and 42.23 RCW; or any similar statute involving the Grantee in the procurement 
of, or performance under this contract. 

Specific restrictions apply to contracting with current or former state employees pursuant to chapter 
42.52 of the Revised Code of Washington. The Grantee and their subcontractor(s) must identify any 
person employed in any capacity by the state of Washington that worked on the Commerce program 
administering this contract, including but not limited to formulating or drafting the legislation, 
participating in grant procurement planning and execution, awarding grants, and monitoring grants, 
during the 24 month period preceding the start date of this Grant. Identify the individual by name, the 
agency previously or currently employed by, job title or position held, and separation date. If it is 
determined by COMMERCE that a conflict of interest exists, the Grantee may be disqualified from 
further consideration for the award of a Grant. 

In the event this contract is terminated as provided above, COMMERCE shall be entitled to pursue the 
same remedies against the Contractor as it could pursue in the event of a breach of the contract by the 
Grantee. The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided for in this clause shall not be exclusive and 
are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law. The existence of facts upon which 
COMMERCE makes any determination under this clause shall be an issue and may be reviewed as 
provided in the “Disputes” clause of this contract. 

16. COPYRIGHT PROVISIONS 

Unless otherwise provided, all Materials produced under this Grant shall be considered "works for hire" 
as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act and shall be owned by COMMERCE.  COMMERCE shall be 
considered the author of such Materials. In the event the Materials are not considered “works for hire” 
under the U.S. Copyright laws, the Grantee hereby irrevocably assigns all right, title, and interest in all 
Materials, including all intellectual property rights, moral rights, and rights of publicity to COMMERCE 
effective from the moment of creation of such Materials. 

“Materials” means all items in any format and includes, but is not limited to, data, reports, documents, 
pamphlets, advertisements, books, magazines, surveys, studies, computer programs, films, tapes, 
and/or sound reproductions. “Ownership” includes the right to copyright, patent, register and the ability 
to transfer these rights. 

For Materials that are delivered under the Grant, but that incorporate pre-existing materials not 
produced under the Grant, the Grantee hereby grants to COMMERCE a nonexclusive, royalty-free, 
irrevocable license (with rights to sublicense to others) in such Materials to translate, reproduce, 
distribute, prepare derivative works, publicly perform, and publicly display. The Grantee warrants and 
represents that the Grantee has all rights and permissions, including intellectual property rights, moral 
rights and rights of publicity, necessary to grant such a license to COMMERCE. 

The Grantee shall exert all reasonable effort to advise COMMERCE, at the time of delivery of Materials 
furnished under this Grant, of all known or potential invasions of privacy contained therein and of any 
portion of such document which was not produced in the performance of this Grant. The Grantee shall 
provide COMMERCE with prompt written notice of each notice or claim of infringement received by the 
Grantee with respect to any Materials delivered under this Grant. COMMERCE shall have the right to 
modify or remove any restrictive markings placed upon the Materials by the Grantee. 



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

13 
 

17. DISALLOWED COSTS 

The Grantee is responsible for any audit exceptions or disallowed costs incurred by its own organization 
or that of its Subcontractors. 

18. DISPUTES 

Except as otherwise provided in this Grant, when a dispute arises between the parties and it cannot be 
resolved by direct negotiation, either party may request a dispute hearing with the Director of 
COMMERCE, who may designate a neutral person to decide the dispute. 

The request for a dispute hearing must: 

 be in writing; 

 state the disputed issues; 

 state the relative positions of the parties; 

 state the Contractor's name, address, and Grant number; and 

 be mailed to the Director and the other party’s (respondent’s) Contract Representative within 
three (3) working days after the parties agree that they cannot resolve the dispute. 
 

The respondent shall send a written answer to the requestor’s statement to both the Director or the 
Director’s designee and the requestor within five (5) working days. 

The Director or designee shall review the written statements and reply in writing to both parties within 
ten (10) working days. The Director or designee may extend this period if necessary by notifying the 
parties. 

The decision shall not be admissible in any succeeding judicial or quasi-judicial proceeding. 

The parties agree that this dispute process shall precede any action in a judicial or quasi-judicial 
tribunal. 

Nothing in this Grant shall be construed to limit the parties’ choice of a mutually acceptable alternate 
dispute resolution (ADR) method in addition to the dispute hearing procedure outlined above.   

19. DUPLICATE PAYMENT 

The Grantee certifies that work to be performed under this contract does not duplicate any work to be 
charged against any other contract, subcontract, or other source.  

20. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 

This Grant shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of Washington, 
and the venue of any action brought hereunder shall be in the Superior Court for Thurston County. 

21. INDEMNIFICATION 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Grantee shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the state 
of Washington, COMMERCE, agencies of the state and all officials, agents and employees of the state, 
for, from and against all claims for injuries or death arising out of, or resulting from, the performance of 
the contract. “Claim” as used in this contract, means any financial loss, claim, suit, action, damage, or 
expense, including but not limited to attorney’s fees, attributable for bodily injury, sickness, disease, or 
death, or injury to or the destruction of tangible property including loss of use resulting therefrom.   

The Grantee’s obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless includes any claim by Grantee’s 
agents, employees, representatives, or any subcontractor or its employees. 

Grantee expressly agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State for any claim arising out 
of or incident to Grantee’s or any subcontractor’s performance or failure to perform the contract.  
Grantee’s obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State shall not be eliminated or 
reduced by any actual or alleged concurrent negligence of State or its agents, agencies, employees 
and officials. 

The Grantee waives its immunity under Title 51 RCW to the extent it is required to indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless the state and its agencies, officers, agents or employees. 



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

14 
 

22. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY OF THE GRANTEE 

The parties intend that an independent contractor relationship will be created by this Grant.  The 
Grantee and its employees or agents performing under this Grant are not employees or agents of the 
state of Washington or COMMERCE. The Grantee will not hold itself out as or claim to be an officer or 
employee of COMMERCE or of the state of Washington by reason hereof, nor will the Grantee make 
any claim of right, privilege or benefit which would accrue to such officer or employee under law.  
Conduct and control of the work will be solely with the Grantee. 

23. INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE COVERAGE 

The Grantee shall comply with all applicable provisions of Title 51 RCW, Industrial Insurance.  If the 
Grantee fails to provide industrial insurance coverage or fails to pay premiums or penalties on behalf 
of its employees as may be required by law, COMMERCE may collect from the Grantee the full amount 
payable to the Industrial Insurance Accident Fund.  COMMERCE may deduct the amount owed by the 
Grantee to the accident fund from the amount payable to the Grantee by COMMERCE under this Grant, 
and transmit the deducted amount to the Department of Labor and Industries, (L&I) Division of 
Insurance Services. This provision does not waive any of L&I’s rights to collect from the Grantee.  

24. LAWS 

The Grantee shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes, regulations, and policies of local, 
state, and federal governments, as now or hereafter amended. 

25. LICENSING, ACCREDITATION AND REGISTRATION 

The Grantee shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal licensing, accreditation and 
registration requirements or standards necessary for the performance of this Grant.  

26. LIMITATION OF AUTHORITY 

Only the Authorized Representative or Authorized Representative’s designee by writing (designation 
to be made prior to action) shall have the express, implied, or apparent authority to alter, amend, modify, 
or waive any clause or condition of this Grant.  

27. NONCOMPLIANCE WITH NONDISCRIMINATION LAWS 

During the performance of this Grant, the Grantee shall comply with all federal, state, and local 
nondiscrimination laws, regulations and policies. In the event of the Grantee’s non-compliance or 
refusal to comply with any nondiscrimination law, regulation or policy, this contract may be rescinded, 
canceled or terminated in whole or in part, and the Grantee may be declared ineligible for further 
contracts with COMMERCE. The Grantee shall, however, be given a reasonable time in which to cure 
this noncompliance. Any dispute may be resolved in accordance with the “Disputes” procedure set forth 
herein.  

The funds provided under this contract may not be used to fund religious worship, exercise, or 
instruction. No person shall be required to participate in any religious worship, exercise, or instruction 
in order to have access to the facilities funded by this grant. 

28. PAY EQUITY 

The Grantee agrees to ensure that “similarly employed” individuals in its workforce are compensated 
as equals, consistent with the following: 
 

A. Employees are “similarly employed” if the individuals work for the same employer, the 
performance of the job requires comparable skill, effort, and responsibility, and the jobs are 
performed under similar working conditions.  Job titles alone are not determinative of whether 
employees are similarly employed; 

B. Grantee may allow differentials in compensation for its workers if the differentials are based in 
good faith and on any of the following: 

(i) A seniority system; a merit system; a system that measures earnings by quantity or 
quality of production; a bona fide job-related factor or factors; or a bona fide regional 
difference in compensation levels. 



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

15 
 

 
(ii) A bona fide job-related factor or factors may include, but not be limited to, education, 
training, or experience that is: Consistent with business necessity; not based on or derived 
from a gender-based differential; and accounts for the entire differential. 
 
(iii) A bona fide regional difference in compensation level must be: Consistent with business 
necessity; not based on or derived from a gender-based differential; and account for the 
entire differential. 
 

This Grant may be terminated by the Department, if the Department or the Department of Enterprise 
services determines that the Grantee is not in compliance with this provision. 

29. POLITICAL ACTIVITIES 

Political activity of Grantee employees and officers are limited by the State Campaign Finances and 
Lobbying provisions of Chapter 42.17A RCW and the Federal Hatch Act, 5 USC 1501 - 1508.  

No funds may be used for working for or against ballot measures or for or against the candidacy of any 
person for public office. 

30. PREVAILING WAGE LAW 

The Grantee certifies that all contractors and subcontractors performing work on the Project shall 
comply with state Prevailing Wages on Public Works, Chapter 39.12 RCW, as applicable to the Project 
funded by this contract, including but not limited to the filing of the “Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing 
Wages” and “Affidavit of Wages Paid” as required by RCW 39.12.040. The Grantee shall maintain 
records sufficient to evidence compliance with Chapter 39.12 RCW, and shall make such records 
available for COMMERCE’s review upon request.   

31. PROCUREMENT STANDARDS FOR FEDERALLY FUNDED PROGRAMS 

A Grantee which is a local government or Indian Tribal government must establish procurement policies 
and procedures in accordance with 2 CFR 200 for all purchases funded by this contract.  

All recipients of funds under this Contract, including Contractor and subrecipients or subcontractors of 
any tier, must follow the procurement standards in 2 CFR §§ 200.318 through 200.327, including 
ensuring that the procurement method used for the contracts are appropriate based on the dollar 
amount and conditions specified in 2 CFR § 200.320. 

 
The Grantee’s procurement system should include but not necessarily be limited to, the following: 

A. General procurement standards 2 CFR § 200.318. A code or standard of conduct that shall 
govern the performance of its officers, employees, or agents engaged in the awarding of 
contracts using federal funds. 

B. Competition 2 CFR § 200.319. Procedures that ensure all procurement transactions shall be 
conducted in a manner providing full and open competition consistent with the standards of this 
section and § 200.320. 

C. Methods of procurement to be followed 2 CFR § 200.320.   

D. Contracting with small and minority businesses, women’s business enterprises, and labor 
surplus area firms 2 CFR § 200.321. 

E.  Domestic preferences for procurements 2 CFR § 200.322. 

32. PROHIBITION AGAINST PAYMENT OF BONUS OR COMMISSION 

The funds provided under this Grant shall not be used in payment of any bonus or commission for the 
purpose of obtaining approval of the application for such funds or any other approval or concurrence 
under this Grant provided, however, that reasonable fees or bona fide technical consultant, managerial, 
or other such services, other than actual solicitation, are not hereby prohibited if otherwise eligible as 
project costs. 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200/subpart-D/subject-group-ECFR45ddd4419ad436d/section-200.318
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200/subpart-D/subject-group-ECFR45ddd4419ad436d/section-200.319
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200/subpart-D/subject-group-ECFR45ddd4419ad436d/section-200.320
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200/subpart-D/subject-group-ECFR45ddd4419ad436d/section-200.320
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200/subpart-D/subject-group-ECFR45ddd4419ad436d/section-200.321
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200/subpart-D/subject-group-ECFR45ddd4419ad436d/section-200.322


GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

16 
 

 

33. PUBLICITY 

The Grantee agrees not to publish or use any advertising or publicity materials in which the state of 
Washington or COMMERCE’s name is mentioned, or language used from which the connection with 
the state of Washington’s or COMMERCE’s name may reasonably be inferred or implied, without the 
prior written consent of COMMERCE.  

34. RECAPTURE 

In the event that the Grantee fails to perform this contract in accordance with state laws, federal laws, 
and/or the provisions of this contract, COMMERCE reserves the right to recapture funds in an amount 
to compensate COMMERCE for the noncompliance in addition to any other remedies available at law 
or in equity.  

Repayment by the Grantee of funds under this recapture provision shall occur within the time period 
specified by COMMERCE. In the alternative, COMMERCE may recapture such funds from payments 
due under this contract. 

35. RECORDS MAINTENANCE 

The Grantee shall maintain books, records, documents, data and other evidence relating to this contract 
and performance of the services described herein, including but not limited to accounting procedures 
and practices that sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended 
in the performance of this contract.   

The Grantee shall retain such records for a period of six years following the date of final payment.  At 
no additional cost, these records, including materials generated under the contract, shall be subject at 
all reasonable times to inspection, review or audit by COMMERCE, personnel duly authorized by 
COMMERCE, the Office of the State Auditor, and federal and state officials so authorized by law, 
regulation or agreement. 

If any litigation, claim or audit is started before the expiration of the six (6) year period, the records shall 
be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved. 

36. REGISTRATION WITH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 

If required by law, the Grantee shall complete registration with the Washington State Department of 
Revenue.  

37. RIGHT OF INSPECTION 

At no additional cost all records relating to the Grantee’s performance under this Grant shall be subject 
at all reasonable times to inspection, review, and audit by COMMERCE, the Office of the State Auditor, 
and federal and state officials so authorized by law, in order to monitor and evaluate performance, 
compliance, and quality assurance under this Grant. The Grantee shall provide access to its facilities 
for this purpose.  

38. SAVINGS 

In the event funding from state, federal, or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way 
after the effective date of this Grant and prior to normal completion, COMMERCE may terminate the 
Grant under the "Termination for Convenience" clause, without the ten business day notice 
requirement.  In lieu of termination, the Grant may be amended to reflect the new funding limitations 
and conditions.  

39. SEVERABILITY 

The provisions of this contract are intended to be severable. If any term or provision is illegal or invalid 
for any reason whatsoever, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of 
the contract. 

 

 



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

17 
 

 

40. SUBCONTRACTING 

The Grantee may only subcontract work contemplated under this Grant if it obtains the prior written 
approval of COMMERCE. 
 
If COMMERCE approves subcontracting, the Grantee shall maintain written procedures related to 
subcontracting, as well as copies of all subcontracts and records related to subcontracts. For cause, 
COMMERCE in writing may: (a) require the Grantee to amend its subcontracting procedures as they 
relate to this Grant; (b) prohibit the Grantee from subcontracting with a particular person or entity; or 
(c) require the Grantee to rescind or amend a subcontract. 
 
Every subcontract shall bind the Subcontractor to follow all applicable terms of this Grant. The Grantee 
is responsible to COMMERCE if the Subcontractor fails to comply with any applicable term or condition 
of this Grant. The Grantee shall appropriately monitor the activities of the Subcontractor to assure fiscal 
conditions of this Grant. In no event shall the existence of a subcontract operate to release or reduce 
the liability of the Grantee to COMMERCE for any breach in the performance of the Grantee’s duties. 
 
Every subcontract shall include a term that COMMERCE and the State of Washington are not liable for 
claims or damages arising from a Subcontractor’s performance of the subcontract. 
 

41. SURVIVAL 

The terms, conditions, and warranties contained in this Grant that by their sense and context are 
intended to survive the completion of the performance, cancellation or termination of this Grant shall 
so survive.  

42. TAXES 

All payments accrued on account of payroll taxes, unemployment contributions, the Grantee’s income 
or gross receipts, any other taxes, insurance or expenses for the Grantee or its staff shall be the sole 
responsibility of the Grantee.  

43. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 

In the event COMMERCE determines the Grantee has failed to comply with the conditions of this 
contract in a timely manner, COMMERCE has the right to suspend or terminate this contract. Before 
suspending or terminating the contract, COMMERCE shall notify the Grantee in writing of the need to 
take corrective action. If corrective action is not taken within 30 calendar days, the contract may be 
terminated or suspended.  

In the event of termination or suspension, the Grantee shall be liable for damages as authorized by law 
including, but not limited to, any cost difference between the original contract and the replacement or 
cover contract and all administrative costs directly related to the replacement contract, e.g., cost of the 
competitive bidding, mailing, advertising and staff time.   

COMMERCE reserves the right to suspend all or part of the contract, withhold further payments, or 
prohibit the Grantee from incurring additional obligations of funds during investigation of the alleged 
compliance breach and pending corrective action by the Grantee or a decision by COMMERCE to 
terminate the contract. A termination shall be deemed a “Termination for Convenience” if it is 
determined that the Grantee: (1) was not in default; or (2) failure to perform was outside of his or her 
control, fault or negligence.   

The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided in this contract are not exclusive and are, in addition 
to any other rights and remedies, provided by law.   

 

 

 



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

18 
 

44. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 

Except as otherwise provided in this Grant COMMERCE may, by ten (10) business days written notice, 
beginning on the second day after the mailing, terminate this Grant, in whole or in part. If this Grant is 
so terminated, COMMERCE shall be liable only for payment required under the terms of this Grant for 
services rendered or goods delivered prior to the effective date of termination.  

45. TERMINATION PROCEDURES 

Upon termination of this contract, COMMERCE, in addition to any other rights provided in this contract, 
may require the Grantee to deliver to COMMERCE any property specifically produced or acquired for 
the performance of such part of this contract as has been terminated. The provisions of the "Treatment 
of Assets" clause shall apply in such property transfer. 

COMMERCE shall pay to the Grantee the agreed upon price, if separately stated, for completed work 
and services accepted by COMMERCE, and the amount agreed upon by the Grantee and COMMERCE 
for (i) completed work and services for which no separate price is stated, (ii) partially completed work 
and services, (iii) other property or services that are accepted by COMMERCE, and (iv) the protection 
and preservation of property, unless the termination is for default, in which case the authorized 
Representative shall determine the extent of the liability of COMMERCE. Failure to agree with such 
determination shall be a dispute within the meaning of the "Disputes" clause of this contract.  
COMMERCE may withhold from any amounts due the Grantee such sum as the Authorized 
Representative determines to be necessary to protect COMMERCE against potential loss or liability. 

The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided in this section shall not be exclusive and are in 
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this contract. 

After receipt of a notice of termination, and except as otherwise directed by the Authorized 
Representative, the Grantee shall: 

A. Stop work under the contract on the date, and to the extent specified, in the notice; 

B. Place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, services, or facilities except as may be 
necessary for completion of such portion of the work under the contract that is not terminated; 

C. Assign to COMMERCE, in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by the Authorized 
Representative, all of the rights, title, and interest of the Grantee, under the orders and subcontracts 
so terminated, in which case COMMERCE has the right, at its discretion, to settle or pay any or all 
claims arising out of the termination of such orders and subcontracts; 

D. Settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such termination of orders and 
subcontracts, with the approval or ratification of the Authorized Representative to the extent the 
Authorized Representative may require, which approval or ratification shall be final for all the 
purposes of this clause; 

E. Transfer title to COMMERCE and deliver in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by 
the Authorized Representative any property which, if the contract had been completed, would have 
been required to be furnished to COMMERCE; 

F. Complete performance of such part of the work as shall not have been terminated by the Authorized 
Representative; and 

G. Take such action as may be necessary, or as the Authorized Representative may direct, for the 
protection and preservation of the property related to this contract, which is in the possession of 
the Grantee and in which COMMERCE has or may acquire an interest. 

46. TREATMENT OF ASSETS 

Title to all property furnished by COMMERCE shall remain in COMMERCE. Title to all property 
furnished by the Grantee, for the cost of which the Grantee is entitled to be reimbursed as a direct item 
of cost under this contract, shall pass to and vest in COMMERCE upon delivery of such property by the 
Grantee. Title to other property, the cost of which is reimbursable to the Grantee under this contract, 
shall pass to and vest in COMMERCE upon (i) issuance for use of such property in the performance of 



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CAPITAL 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

19 
 

this contract, or (ii) commencement of use of such property in the performance of this contract, or (iii) 
reimbursement of the cost thereof by COMMERCE in whole or in part, whichever first occurs. 

A. Any property of COMMERCE furnished to the Grantee shall, unless otherwise provided herein or 
approved by COMMERCE, be used only for the performance of this contract. 

B. The Grantee shall be responsible for any loss or damage to property of COMMERCE that results 
from the negligence of the Grantee or which results from the failure on the part of the Grantee to 
maintain and administer that property in accordance with sound management practices. 

C. If any COMMERCE property is lost, destroyed or damaged, the Grantee shall immediately notify 
COMMERCE and shall take all reasonable steps to protect the property from further damage. 

D. The Grantee shall surrender to COMMERCE all property of COMMERCE prior to settlement upon 
completion, termination or cancellation of this contract 

All reference to the Grantee under this clause shall also include Grantee’s employees, agents or 
Subcontractors. 

47. WAIVER 

Waiver of any default or breach shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent default or breach.  
Any waiver shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Grant unless stated to be 
such in writing and signed by Authorized Representative of COMMERCE. 

48. WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS 

The Grant Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-333)-Where applicable, all contracts 
awarded by recipients in excess of $100,000 for construction and other purposes that involve the 
employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with Section 102 and 
107 of the Grant Work Hours Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-333), as supplemented by 
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5). Under Section 102 of the Act, each subcontractor is 
required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 
40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is 
compensated at a rate of not less than 1 ½ times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess 
of 40 hours in the work week. Section 107 of the Act is applicable to construction work and provides 
that no laborer or mechanic is required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are 
unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or 
materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or 
transmission of intelligence. 

 

 



Attachment A 

20 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Funds awarded under this grant will be used for $430,000 in capital expenditures for the Manette Housing 

project, a 9-unit affordable housing project in Bremerton.  The location of the project is:  2115 East 19th 

Street, Bremerton, WA  98310.  This project is expected to be complete by December 31, 2024. 

Project activities will include and be limited to the construction of the following utility improvements:  
 

 Water utility improvements:  An 8-inch ductile iron water main extension from E Highlands St. to 

the project and along frontage is required due to now existing water service along frontage and 

for hydrant(s) installation. A 4-inch ductile iron water main extension from E 19th St. to provide 

individual water services is needed as well. 

 

 Sewer utility improvements:  An 8 inch PVC main extension from E. Highlands St. and E. 19th 

Street along the entire frontage of the property is required because there is not any existing 

sewer mains adjacent to the property. 

 

 Stormwater utility improvements:  Infiltrate runoff for the entire site as the City of Bremerton does 

not have any stormwater management infrastructure nearby. 

 
The “Copyright Provisions”, Section 16 of the General Terms and Conditions, are not intended to apply to 
any architectural and engineering design work funded by this grant. 
 
Based on the criteria within the state capital budget, SSB 1080 Sec 1074, (Laws of 2021), and criteria 
developed by Commerce to ensure the terms of the appropriation are met, all grants must meet the 
following criteria: 
 

 Applicant must be a city, county or public utility district, applying in coordination with the 
developer of a multi-unit affordable housing project, located within a jurisdiction that imposed a 
sales and use tax under RCW 82.14.530(1)(a)(ii), 82.14.530(1)(b)(i)(B), 82.14.540, or 84.52.105.  

 The utility project must serve new multi-unit affordable1 housing projects that serve and benefit 
low-income households.2 If the project is a mixed-income project, the affordable portion of the 
development must be at least 25%. 
 

 The affordable housing project should be part of a program that will monitor affordability for a 
minimum of 25 years, such as the Housing Trust Fund, low-income housing tax credits, housing 
authority, or a city monitoring process. A covenant and/or note and deed of trust may be required 
as part of securitization to ensure affordability.

                                                 
1  “Affordable housing" has the same meaning as in RCW 43.185A.010, and means residential housing for rental 
occupancy which, as long as the same is occupied by low-income households, requires payment of monthly 
housing costs, including utilities other than telephone, of no more than thirty percent of the family's income. In the 
context of homeownership, the definition from the Housing Trust Fund Handbook applies (Section 701.7): 
“affordability occurs when a household’s monthly housing costs are generally no more than 38 percent of monthly 
household income and total debt is no more than 45 percent of monthly household income. Housing costs include 
mortgage principal, interest, property taxes, homeowner insurance, homeowner association fees, and land lease 
fees, as applicable. Total debt includes other debt and utilities.”  
2 "Low-income household" has the same definition as in RCW 43.185.010(6), and means a single person, family or 
unrelated persons living together whose adjusted income is less than eighty percent of the median family income, 
adjusted for household size, for the county where the project is located. 

https://deptofcommerce.app.box.com/s/f89ytc0qtime7dl6wpqke5h2zl1jwzlm


Attachment A 

21 

 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION PERFORMANCE MEASURE – SCOPE OF WORK 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that the declaration set forth above has been reviewed and 
approved by the GRANTEE as of the date and year written below. 
 
 
______________________________________       __________________________ 
Greg Wheeler, Mayor DATE 
 
 
How this project meets criteria for APRA SLFRF Projects 
This project aligns to the Expenditure Category 3 of ARPA SLRF, services to Disproportionately Impacted 

Communities, Housing Support: Affordable Housing  EC 2.15,3 Under ARPA’s SLFRF guidance, funding 

for this grant falls under the category of responding to “Public Health and Economic Impacts” of the 

COVID-19 public health emergency. Within that category of eligible actions, this program is intended to 

“Building Stronger Communities through Investments in Housing and Neighborhoods” by serving those 

communities that were hardest hit by the pandemic through investments in affordable housing 

development. Eligible services include: Affordable housing development to increase supply of affordable 

and high quality living units. Supporting the development of affordable housing is important to address a 

limited supply of housing, some of which is inadequate, or of poor quality.4 The Interim Final Rule 

supports this finding by stating that “both the public health and economic impacts of the pandem ic have 

fallen most severely on communities and populations disadvantaged before it began” including “low 

income communities, people of color, and Tribal communities.”5 

 

                                                 
3 https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf 
4 See specific language at printed pages 26795 and 26796 of the Interim Final Rule to implement the Coronavirus 
State Fiscal Recovery Fund and the Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund established under ARPA). 
5 Ibid, page 26787. 

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2021-05-17/pdf/2021-10283.pdf


Attachment B 

22 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS TO COMPLETE THE ENTIRE PROJECT 
 

Type of Funding Source Description and purpose Amount 

CHIP Grant Washington State Department of Commerce  $430,000 

Other Grants 

Grant #1 
Kitsap HOME (Kitsap County portion 
$219,254.09 & City of Bremerton portion 
$582,971.96) 

$802,226.05 

Grant #2 HTF Capital Funds (Apple Health & Home) $3,247,697.00 

Grant #3 Direct Appropriation from HTF for acquisition $499,550.00 

Grant #4 First Federal Community Foundation  $50,000.00 

Total Other Grants  $4,599,473.05 

Other Loans 

Loan #1  $ 

Loan #2  $ 

Total Loans  $0.00 

Other Local Revenue 

Source #1  $ 

Total Local Revenue  $0.00 

Other Funds 

Source #1  $ 

Source #2  $ 

Total Other Funds  $0.00 

Total Project Funding  $5,029,473.05 

 
CERTIFICATION PERFORMANCE MEASURE - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 
 
The GRANTEE by its signature, certifies that project funding from sources other than those provided by 
this Grant Agreement has either been expended for eligible Project expenses, or is committed in writing 
and available and will remain committed and available solely and specifically for carrying out the 
purposes of this Project as described in elsewhere in this Grant Agreement, as of the date and year 
written below.  The GRANTEE shall maintain records sufficient to evidence that it has expended or has 
access to the funds needed to complete the Project, and shall make such records available for 
COMMERCE’s review upon reasonable request. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Greg Wheeler, Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
DATE 
 
 
 



Attachment C 

23 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE PAYMENT AND REPORTING OF PREVAILING WAGES 
 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that all contractors and subcontractors performing work on the 
Project shall comply with prevailing wage laws set forth in Chapter 39.12 RCW, as applicable to the 
Project funded by this Grant Agreement, including but not limited to the filing of the “Statement of Intent to 
Pay Prevailing Wages” and “Affidavit of Wages Paid” as required by RCW 39.12.040. See section 8 of the 
Special Terms and Conditions and section 30 of the General Terms and Conditions.  
 
Before invoices are paid, the “awarding agency” must provide documentation of the “intent to pay 
prevailing wages”. Before the final funds are paid from the state, an “affidavit of wages paid” from L&I 
must also be provided. The GRANTEE or assignee, shall maintain records sufficient to evidence 
compliance with Chapter 39.12 RCW, and shall make such records available for COMMERCE’s review 
upon request.    
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION PERFORMANCE MEASURE – PREVAILING WAGES 
 
The GRANTEE, by its signature, certifies that the declaration set forth above has been reviewed and 
approved by the GRANTEE and their subcontractors as of the date and year written below. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Greg Wheeler, Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
DATE 

 



 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
1011 Plum Street SE    PO Box 42525    Olympia, Washington 98504-2525    (360) 725-4000 

www.commerce.wa.gov 

 
April 26, 2022 
 
City of Bremerton 
345 6th St Ste 100 
Bremerton, WA  98337 
Delivered via Email to Sarah Achaoui: sarah.achaoui@ci.bremerton.wa.us 
 
RE:  Connecting Housing to Infrastructure (CHIP) Grant 
 
Dear CHIP recipient: 
 
I am pleased to inform you that the City of Bremerton has been awarded $430,000 in grant funds from the 
Connecting Housing to Infrastructure (CHIP) grant program for the KCR Manette Housing project. The 2021 
Legislature created this grant program to facilitate the development of affordable housing construction.  
 
Funding for this program is provided from two accounts:  
 

 For waived system development charges, funds are from the State Building Construction Account, 
and your grant will be governed by state building construction account rules. Projects funded with 
State Building Construction Account funds (state) may only be used to cover eligible costs incurred 
during the period of May 18, 2021, thru June 30, 2023, subject to re-appropriation by the Legislature. 
If re-appropriated, the project must be completed and invoiced by June 30, 2025. 
 

 For infrastructure improvements, funds are from the state’s allocation of Coronavirus State and 
Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF) from the federal American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) stimulus 
funding provided by the U.S. Department of the Treasury (US Treasury).7 Your grant is a sub-award 
of the state’s allocation for the SLFRF funds it received directly from the U.S. Treasury. All grants 
must adhere to any and all compliance and reporting requirements for the use and expenditure of 
SLFRF funds.8 Projects funded with Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (federal) 
may only be used to cover eligible costs incurred during the period of March 3, 2021, thru December 
31, 2026, subject to re-appropriation by the Legislature, and must be obligated by December 30, 
2024. 

 
This grant will be administered by the Washington Department of Commerce, Growth Management Services 
(GMS) unit. Before we disburse the funds, a contract with an agreed upon scope of work and budget will 
need to be executed between your organization and the Department of Commerce.  
 
 

                                                 
7 The federal funds are available under Section 602 Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Funds of Title VI of the Social 
Security Act, as added by ARPA of 2021, Title IX, Subtitle M, Section 9901. The unique 5-digit federal assistance number 
assigned to the SLFRF funds on SAM.gov is Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 21.027, formerly known as a CFDA 
number. 
8 Compliance and Reporting Guidance for State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds dated November 5, 2021 

https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/1319/text#H869D285829F04B69B95967292FD8EE8D
https://sam.gov/fal/7cecfdef62dc42729a3fdcd449bd62b8/view
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Compliance-and-Reporting-Guidance.pdf


 
 
All pre-contracting requirements must be met prior to executing a contract and before drawing down any 
grant funds. If not already provided, these may include: 
 

 Proof of site control. 
 Commitment of other funds, and a project schedule showing affordable housing development be 

able to begin construction within 24 months of the grant award. 
 Documentation of a program that will monitor affordability of units for a minimum of 25 years 

or securitization (covenant and/or note and deed of trust for affordable housing units) if no other 
partner. 

 For awards for system development charges, documentation of waived charges/fees or a letter of 
commitment that the fees will be waived and the timeframe for such waiver. 

 For requests for utility improvement funding, documentation of state commercial prevailing 
wages on the utility portion of the affordable housing project.  Also, for the purposes of utility 
contracts, you may subcontract, provided that a competitive process is used, and all contract 
requirements flow down to the subcontractor. 

 Documentation of consultation with Department of Archeology and Historic Preservation 
(DAHP) and affected tribes is completed or in process, consistent with GEO 21-02. With this 
letter, Commerce delegates consultation authority to the grantee. Please complete the EZ-1 form 
and submit to DAHP, and ensure Commerce is included in subsequent communications. 

 Risk assessment survey, if requested. 
 Proof of insurance coverage, if requested by Commerce. 
 Any documents needed to respond to new federal guidance. 

 
Once all pre-contracting requirements have been met, a contract will be prepared and sent to you for 
signature. The authorized representative will need to sign the contract and then return a scanned pdf copy to 
the Commerce project manager. Then the project manager will route the contract for Commerce’s signature. 
It generally takes two to four weeks to fully execute a contract. Once executed by Commerce, a fully 
executed copy will be scanned and a pdf copy emailed to the jurisdiction and you will have access to the 
funds. This is a reimbursement-style grant, meaning no advance payments under any circumstances, 
reimbursable costs are those that you or a subcontractor have already incurred.  
 
Eric Guida from our GMS housing programs will be in touch with you to develop the contract(s) and answer 
any questions you may have. His email is eric.guida@commerce.wa.gov, and his phone number is 
360.725.3044. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Dave Andersen, AICP 
Managing Director 
Growth Management Services 
 
cc: Eric Guida, Senior Planner, Growth Management Services 

Anne Fritzel, AICP, Housing Programs Manager, Growth Management Services



 

 

AGENDA BILL 

CITY OF BREMERTON 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 

SUBJECT: 

Contract Modification Agreement No. 4 

with Kellermeyer Bergensons Services, LLC 

for Janitorial Services 

Study Session Date: F e b r u a r y  2 8 ,  2024 

COUNCIL MEETING Date:  March 6, 2024 

Department:  P W & U  

 Presenter:  Matt Donleycott 

Phone:  (360) 473-2316 
 

SUMMARY: 

This Contract Modification with Kellermeyer Bergenson Services adds an additional year onto 

contract #5857, has an increase in compensation due to the rise of Washington State's minimum 

wage increase as well as inflation, and adds an additional site for janitorial service. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1) Contract Modification Agreement with Kellermeyer Bergensons Services LLC 

2) Attachment A, letter outlining new monthly costs and addition of one new site 

 
 
 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACTS (Include Budgeted Amount): The additional year, service location addition, and 

increase in service costs will result in a total annual cost of $121,057.68, which is included in the 

2024 budget. The annual increase per the modification agreement No. 04 is $15,397.56. 

 
 
 

 

STUDY SESSION AGENDA: ☒  Limited Presentation □  Full Presentation 

STUDY SESSION ACTION: ☒ Consent Agenda □ General Business □ Public Hearing 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
Move to approve Contract Modification Agreement No. 04 with Kellermeyer Bergensons Services, 

LLC; and authorize the Mayor to finalize and execute the agreement with substantially the same 

terms and conditions as presented. 

 
 

 

COUNCIL ACTION: □Approve □ Deny □Table □ Continue □ No Action 

Form Updated 11/09/2021 

4G 











AGENDA BILL 
CITY OF BREMERTON 

CITY COUNCIL 

Study Session Date: February 28, 2024 SUBJECT:   
Contract with Redside Construction, LLC 
for the Pine Road Basin Stormwater 
Improvements Marine Impact Basin Project 

COUNCIL MEETING Date:  March 6, 2024 
Department: PW&U 

Presenter: David Dinkuhn 
Phone:  (360) 473-5331

SUMMARY:   
This project replaces a failing stormwater outfall located at the intersection of Sheridan Road and 
Lebo Boulevard.  Work will include construction of a concrete impact basin and installation of beach 
gravels, cobble, and boulders for energy dissipation.  This project is the second phase of the Pine 
Road Basin Stormwater Improvements Project.  The first phase of the project was construction of the 
storm system in Eagle and Robin Avenues which was completed in 2023.  Six bids were received 
and were opened on January 30, 2024.  Redside Construction LLC was the lowest responsive bidder 
with a total bid in the amount of $883,910 (including sales tax). 

ATTACHMENTS:  1)  Contract 2) Vicinity Map; 3) Bid Tabulation 

FISCAL IMPACTS (Include Budgeted Amount):  The project is included in the 2024 Stormwater 
budget.  

STUDY SESSION AGENDA:                 ☒ Limited Presentation ☐ Full Presentation

☐ General Business ☐ Public Hearing STUDY SESSION ACTION:    ☐ Consent Agenda 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  
Move to approve the contract with Redside Construction LLC in the amount of $883,910 (including 
sales tax) for the Pine Road Basin Marine Impact Basin project and authorize the Mayor to finalize 
and execute the agreement with substantially the same terms and conditions as presented. 

COUNCIL ACTION:  Approve   Deny   Table  Continue   No Action 

Form Updated 11/09/2021 

4H

   x



Redside Construction LLC



01 02





345 6TH STREET, STE 100, BREMERTON, WA 98337





 

 

 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

PINE ROAD BASIN MARINE IMPACT BASIN PROJECT 

 

 

 

 

 

David.Dinkuhn
Callout
Marine Outfall to be Replaced with New Outfall and Impact Basin

David.Dinkuhn
Text Box
PROJECT NO. 870



SALES TAX TOTAL

0.00 883,910.00

0.00 1,123,573.50

0.00 1,129,863.00

0.00 1,188,598.00

0.00 1,130,130.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

Redside Construction LLC Y

CITY OF BREMERTON
BID TABULATION

BOND BASE BID NAME OF BIDDER

OPENED BY:

1/30/2024 TIME 
OPENED:

Pine Road Basin Stormwater Improvements Marine Impact Basin Project

11:00 Ryan Nash

Stephanie Olson
BID  TITLE:

Northwest Cascade, Inc Y

JJH Earthworks Y

Active Construction, Inc Y

Midway Underground Y

SECOND LOW BIDDER - JJH Earthworks
 $                                                                                                                               1,123,573.50 

THIRD LOW BIDDER - Northwest Cascade, Inc
 $                                                                                                                               1,129,863.00 

DATE 
OPENED:

RECORDED 
BY:

 $                                                                                                                                   873,415.00 
ENGINEER ESTIMATE (INCLUDING SALES TAX)

APPARENT LOW BIDDER - Redside Construction LLC
 $                                                                                                                                   883,910.00 

SUMMARY
CURRENT SALES TAX RATE 9.20%



 
AGENDA BILL 

CITY OF BREMERTON 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 
SUBJECT:   Study Session Date:  February 28, 2024 

Stormwater Financial Assistance Program 
Grant Agreement with WA State Department 
of Ecology for Kitsap Lake Stormwater 
Retrofit Construction Project  
 

COUNCIL MEETING Date:   March 6, 2024 

Department:  Public Works & Utilities 

Presenter:  Chance Berthiaume 

Phone:   (360) 473-5929 

 
SUMMARY:  Washington State Department of Ecology has awarded the city a grant to construct 
stormwater treatment systems at four locations around Kitsap Lake. This project will treat stormwater 
discharged to the lake at four locations which will support efforts to improve the overall lake health 
and will help meet Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) requirements.  

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Ecology Agreement No. WQC-2024-BremPW-00179, Kitsap Lake Stormwater 
Treatment Construction 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACTS (Include Budgeted Amount):  $2,415,646.45 grant funding and $426,290.55 
Stormwater Utility Capital Fund.  Project is in the approved 2024 Budget. 

 

STUDY SESSION AGENDA:                 ☒ Limited Presentation        ☐ Full Presentation  

 

 STUDY SESSION ACTION:    ☒ Consent Agenda        ☐ General Business      ☐ Public Hearing 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:   
 
Move to approve the Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Construction Grant Agreement with the 
State of Washington Department of Ecology; and authorize the Mayor to finalize and execute the 
agreement with substantially the same terms and conditions as presented. 
 
 
  

COUNCIL ACTION:    Approve         Deny           Table      Continue         No Action 
 
Form Updated 01/02/2018 

4I 



Agreement No. WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

WATER QUALITY COMBINED FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT

BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY

AND

CITY OF BREMERTON - PUBLIC WORKS AND UTILITIES

This is a binding Agreement entered into by and between the state of Washington, Department of Ecology, hereinafter 

referred to as “ECOLOGY,” and City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities, hereinafter referred to as the 

“RECIPIENT,” to carry out with the provided funds activities described herein.

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit 

Construction

GENERAL INFORMATION

Project Title:

Total Cost:

Total Eligible Cost:

Ecology Share:

Recipient Share:

The Effective Date of this Agreement is:

The Expiration Date of this Agreement is no later than:

Project Type:

Project Short Description:

This project will improve water quality in Kitsap Lake through installation of six BioPods and two pretreatment devices 

at four locations around Kitsap Lake in the city of Bremerton. This project will provide treatment for total suspended 

solids, dissolved copper, dissolved zinc, and phosphorus.

Project Long Description:

Untreated stormwater from residential, commercial, and public roads currently discharges via existing pipes and outfalls 

into Kitsap Lake, a 303(d) listed water body for fecal coliform and phosphorus. Kitsap Lake is used by the public for 

fishing, boating, and general recreation. The lake’s elevated phosphorus and nitrogen feed recurring algae blooms, 

including cyanobacteria (blue-green toxic algae), which is a frequent issue in the spring and summer months. Stormwater 

runoff was identified as a significant source of nutrient discharge in the Kitsap Lake Phosphorus Reduction Plan 

completed in June 2011. 

$2,841,937.00

$2,841,937.00

$2,415,646.45

$426,290.55

07/01/2023

06/30/2026

Stormwater Facility



Page 2 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

The RECIPIENT will install six General Use Level Designation (GULD) approved BioPod systems in four sub-basins 

to treat 17.56 acres of pollution generating impervious surface, in a basin of 77.43 acres that includes primarily low- and 

mid-density residential use. The two largest BioPods will also have CDS pretreatment devices installed to help reduce 

sediment entering the systems. The systems will treat stormwater runoff prior to discharge at four locations around 

Kitsap Lake, as designed in ECOLOGY grant WQC-2020-BremPW-0047. Improved water quality of Kitsap Lake 

will provide benefits including habitat for salmonids, wildlife, and humans in and around the lake and receiving waters. 

Kitsap Lake discharges to Kitsap Creek, which flows into Chico Creek and is a productive salmon-bearing stream that 

outfalls to Dyes Inlet, part of Puget Sound.

Overall Goal:

This project will help protect and restore water quality in Washington state by reducing stormwater impacts from 

existing infrastructure and development.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 3 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

RECIPIENT INFORMATION

Organization Name:

Federal Tax ID:

UEI Number: HV84RG6NYNG4

Mailing Address:       

Physical Address:       

Contacts

Organization Email:

 

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

91-6001231

100 Oyster Bay Ave N

Bremerton, WA 98312

345 6th Street

Bremerton, WA 98337

chance.berthiaume@ci.bremerton.wa.us

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 4 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

  

Chance Berthiaume

Utility Manager

100 Oyster Bay Ave N

Bremerton, Washington 98312

Email:  chance.berthiaume@ci.bremerton.wa.us

Phone:  (360) 473-5929

Authorized 

Signatory

Kirsten Cooper

345 6th Street, Suite 100

Bremerton, Washington 98337

Email:  kirsten.cooper@ci.bremerton.wa.us

Phone:  (360) 473-5209

 
Billing Contact

Project Manager

Authorized 

Signatory

Greg Wheeler

Mayor

345 6th Street, Suite 600

Bremerton, Washington 98337

Email:  greg.wheeler@ci.bremerton.wa.us

Phone:  (360) 473-5266

  

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 5 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

Contacts

  Project 

  Manager

  Financial

  Manager

  Technical

  Advisor

Julia Stinson Ebert

Stormwater/Nonpoint Project Manager

PO Box 330316

Shoreline, Washington 98133-9716

Email:  JSEB461@ecy.wa.gov

Phone:  (425) 651-9046

Joe Kinerk

Stormwater Financial Manager

PO Box 47600

Olympia, Washington 98504-7600

Email:  joek461@ecy.wa.gov

Phone:  (360) 742-2875

  

Julian Sung

PO Box 47600

Olympia, Washington 98504-7600

Email:  JSUN461@ecy.wa.gov

Phone:  (360) 529-7611

ECOLOGY INFORMATION

Mailing Address:       

      

Physical Address:       

 

Department of Ecology

Water Quality

PO BOX 47600

Olympia, WA 98504-7600

Water Quality

300 Desmond Drive SE

Lacey, WA 98503

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 6 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES

RECIPIENT agrees to furnish the necessary personnel, equipment, materials, services, and otherwise do all things necessary 

for or incidental to the performance of work as set forth in this Agreement.

RECIPIENT acknowledges that they had the opportunity to review the entire Agreement, including all the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement, Scope of Work, attachments, and incorporated or referenced documents, as well as all applicable laws, 

statutes, rules, regulations, and guidelines mentioned in this Agreement.  Furthermore, the RECIPIENT has read, understood, 

and accepts all requirements contained within this Agreement.  

This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties, and there are no other understandings or representations 

other than as set forth, or incorporated by reference, herein.

No subsequent modifications or amendments to this agreement will be of any force or effect unless in writing, signed by 

authorized representatives of the RECIPIENT and ECOLOGY and made a part of this agreement. ECOLOGY and 

RECIPIENT may change their respective staff contacts without the concurrence of either party. 

 

This Agreement shall be subject to the written approval of Ecology’s authorized representative and shall not be binding until so 

approved.

The signatories to this Agreement represent that they have the authority to execute this Agreement and bind their respective 

organizations to this Agreement.

Washington State

Department of Ecology

Water Quality

Date Date

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

Vincent McGowan, P.E.

Mayor

Greg Wheeler

By: By:

Template Approved to Form by

Attorney General's Office

Program Manager

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 7 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

Utility Manager, Project Manager Date

Chance W Berthiaume

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 8 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

 SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 1 Task Cost: $3,000.00

Task Title: Grant and Loan Administration

Task Description:

A. The RECIPIENT shall carry out all work necessary to meet ECOLOGY grant or loan administration requirements. 

Responsibilities include, but are not limited to:  Maintenance of project records; submittal of requests for reimbursement and 

corresponding backup documentation; progress reports; and the EAGL (Ecology Administration of Grants and Loans) 

recipient closeout report (including photos, if applicable). In the event that the RECIPIENT elects to use a contractor to 

complete project elements, the RECIPIENT shall retain responsibility for the oversight and management of this funding 

agreement.

B. The RECIPIENT shall keep documentation that demonstrates the project is in compliance with applicable procurement, 

contracting, and interlocal agreement requirements; permitting requirements, including application for, receipt of, and 

compliance with all required permits, licenses, easements, or property rights necessary for the project; and submittal of required 

performance items.  This documentation shall be available upon request.

C. The RECIPIENT shall maintain effective communication with ECOLOGY and maintain up-to-date staff contact information 

in the EAGL system. The RECIPIENT shall carry out this project in accordance with any completion dates outlined in this 

agreement.

Task Goal Statement:

Properly managed and fully documented project that meets ECOLOGY’s grant or loan administrative requirements.

Task Expected Outcome:

* Timely and complete submittal of requests for reimbursement, quarterly progress reports, Recipient Closeout Report, and 

two-page outcome summary report.

* Properly maintained project documentation.

Recipient Task Coordinator:    Chance W Berthiaume

Deliverables

Grant and Loan Administration

Number Description Due Date

1.1 Progress Reports that include descriptions of work accomplished, project 

challenges or changes in the project schedule. Submitted at least quarterly.

1.2 Recipient Closeout Report (EAGL Form)

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 9 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

 SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 2 Task Cost: $5,000.00

Task Title: Cultural and Environmental Review, and Permitting

Task Description:

The RECIPIENT must ensure the following items are completed and provide the associated deliverables to ECOLOGY. The 

RECIPIENT must approve all materials prior to submitting them to ECOLOGY for acceptance.

A. The RECIPIENT will submit the documents listed below to initiate ECOLOGY’s cultural resources review.  Property 

acquisition and above and below ground activities proposed at any project site must be reviewed by ECOLOGY for potential 

affects to cultural resources.   

The RECIPIENT must receive written notice from ECOLOGY prior to proceeding with work. Examples of work may include 

(but are not limited to) geotechnical work, acquisition, site prep work, and BMP installations. Work done prior to written 

notice to proceed shall not be eligible for reimbursement.   

To initiate cultural resources review: 

1. The RECIPIENT will submit the Cultural Resources Review Form to ECOLOGY, using the ECOLOGY template. Any 

supporting materials must conform to the Department of Archeology and Historic Preservation’s (DAHP) Washington State 

Standards for Cultural Resource Reporting. The Cultural Resources Review Form template may be found on the ECOLOGY 

website. 

2. The RECIPIENT will submit an Inadvertent Discovery Plan (IDP) to ECOLOGY, using the ECOLOGY template. The 

RECIPIENT will ensure that all contractors and subcontractors have a copy of the completed IDP prior to and while working 

on-site.  The IDP template may be found on the ECOLOGY website. 

B. The RECIPIENT will submit the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) checklist for ECOLOGY project manager review 

and notify the ECOLOGY project manager when the official comment period begins. The RECIPIENT will also upload the 

final SEPA determination. 

C. The RECIPIENT is responsible for application of, receipt of, and compliance with all required local, state, tribal, and 

federal permits, licenses, easements, or property rights necessary for the project.

Task Goal Statement:

The RECIPIENT will complete all cultural and environmental reviews and permitting tasks in a timely manner.

Task Expected Outcome:

The project will meet the requirements set forth by the cultural resource protection requirements, State Environmental Policy 

Act, and all other applicable federal, state, and local laws, and regulations.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 10 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

Deliverables

Cultural and Environmental Review, and Permitting

Number Description Due Date

2.1 ECOLOGY Cultural Resources Review Form. 

Email the form and any supplemental cultural resources documentation directly 

to the ECOLOGY Project Manager.  DO NOT upload the cultural resources 

form or documentation to EAGL.

2.2 ECOLOGY Inadvertent Discovery Plan (IDP). 

Email the form directly to the ECOLOGY Project Manager for review. 

Upload to EAGL once review is complete.

2.3 SEPA Checklist. 

Upload the checklist, or other documentation for projects considered exempt 

from SEPA review, to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY when official comment 

period begins.

2.4 Final SEPA Determination. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 11 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

 SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 3 Task Cost: $82,000.00

Task Title: Design Plans and Specifications

Task Description:

The RECIPIENT must ensure the following items are completed and provide the associated deliverables to ECOLOGY. The 

RECIPIENT must approve all materials prior to submitting them to ECOLOGY for acceptance.

The RECIPIENT will develop a stormwater project design. The design submittals must conform to the Deliverables for 

Stormwater Projects with Ecology Funding Document. Projects must be designed in accordance with the Stormwater 

Management Manual for Eastern Washington, Stormwater Management Manual for Western Washington, or equivalent 

manual.  Refer to the ECOLOGY website for specific guidance. Project must be reviewed and accepted in writing by 

ECOLOGY to be eligible for reimbursement.

The RECIPIENT will upload the design submittals listed below to EAGL for ECOLOGY review.  Reduce design figures to 

11x17 inches in size and ensure they are legible. 

A. The RECIPIENT will submit a Design Report to ECOLOGY for review and acceptance. Allow 45 calendar days for 

ECOLOGY review.

The RECIPIENT agrees to respond to ECOLOGY comments. The RECIPIENT must receive an Ecology Design Report 

Acceptance Letter prior to proceeding to 90 Percent Design.

1. The RECIPIENT will calculate and submit a preliminary equivalent new/re-development area for the completed design using 

the methods outlined in the Stormwater Deliverables Document. 

B. The RECIPIENT will submit a 90 Percent Design Package to ECOLOGY for review and acceptance. At a minimum, this 

package must include 90 percent plans, specifications, engineer’s opinion of cost including a schedule of eligible costs, and 

project construction schedule.  The current required bid inserts and specifications may be found on the Ecology website. Allow 

45 calendar days for ECOLOGY review.

The RECIPIENT agrees to respond to ECOLOGY comments. The RECIPIENT must receive an Ecology 90 Percent Design 

Acceptance Letter prior to proceeding to Final Bid Package.

C. The RECIPIENT will submit a Final Bid Package to ECOLOGY for review and acceptance prior to advertising the 

project. The Final Bid Package includes: project plans, specifications, engineer’s opinion of cost including a schedule of eligible 

costs, and project construction schedule. Allow 15 calendar days for ECOLOGY review.

The RECIPIENT agrees to respond to ECOLOGY comments. The RECIPIENT must receive an Ecology Final Bid Package 

Acceptance Letter prior to advertising the project.

Task Goal Statement:

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 12 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

The RECIPIENT will complete all design tasks and respond to ECOLOGY comments in a timely manner.

Task Expected Outcome:

The project will meet the requirements set forth by ECOLOGY water quality facility design standards and all other applicable 

federal, state, and local laws, and regulations.

Deliverables

Design Plans and Specifications

Number Description Due Date

3.1 Contract documents, if procuring services for design. The contract must 

include ECOLOGY’s standard contract clauses and/or specification insert. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

3.2 Design Report. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

3.3 Responses to ECOLOGY Design Report comments. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

3.4 ECOLOGY Design Report Acceptance Letter. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

3.5 90 Percent Design Package. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

3.6 Responses to ECOLOGY 90 Percent Design Package comments. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

3.7 ECOLOGY 90 Percent Design Acceptance Letter. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

3.8 Final Bid Package. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

3.9 Responses to ECOLOGY Final Bid Package comments. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

3.10 Ecology Final Bid Package Acceptance Letter. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

3.11 Bid Documents (e.g. bid announcement, bid tabulations, and bid award). 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 13 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

 SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 4 Task Cost: $88,000.00

Task Title: Construction Management

Task Description:

The RECIPIENT must ensure the following items are completed and provide the associated deliverables to ECOLOGY. The 

RECIPIENT must approve all materials prior to submitting them to ECOLOGY for acceptance.

A. The RECIPIENT will provide construction oversight and management of the project.

B. The RECIPIENT will submit a detailed Construction Quality Assurance Plan (CQAP) to ECOLOGY for review and 

acceptance before the start of construction. This plan must describe how the RECIPIENT will perform adequate and 

competent construction oversight.  Guidance for CQAP development is located in the Design Deliverables Document available 

on the ECOLOGY website. Allow 15 calendar days for ECOLOGY review.

C. The RECIPIENT will conduct a pre-construction conference meeting and invite ECOLOGY to attend.

D. The RECIPIENT will submit a project schedule prior to the start of construction and whenever major changes occur. 

E. Prior to execution, the RECIPIENT will submit to ECOLOGY any eligible change orders that deviate from 

ECOLOGY-accepted plans and specifications. ECOLOGY must review and accept all change orders that affect grant eligible 

activities prior to implementation. Allow 10 calendar days for ECOLOGY review.

Task Goal Statement:

The RECIPIENT will oversee and manage construction, communicate with ECOLOGY in a timely fashion, and provide 

ECOLOGY with all requested project documentation.

Task Expected Outcome:

The project will be constructed on schedule and in accordance with accepted plans.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 14 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

Deliverables

Construction Management

Number Description Due Date

4.1 Construction Quality Assurance Plan. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY. Upload ECOLOGY acceptance 

documentation.

4.2 Pre-Construction Conference Meeting Minutes. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

4.3 Project Schedule. 

Submit prior to construction and when changes occur. Upload to EAGL and 

notify ECOLOGY.

4.4 Change Order(s). 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY. Upload ECOLOGY acceptance 

documentation.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 15 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

 SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 5 Task Cost: $2,655,937.00

Task Title: Construction

Task Description:

The RECIPIENT must ensure the following items are completed and provide the associated deliverables to ECOLOGY. The 

RECIPIENT must approve all materials prior to submitting them to ECOLOGY for acceptance.

A. The RECIPIENT will complete construction of the project in accordance with ECOLOGY-accepted plans and 

specifications. The construction project will include installation of four BioPods to mitigate runoff from approximately 17.56 

acres of pollution-generating impervious surfaces.

B. Stormwater Construction Completion Form signed by a professional engineer indicating that the project was completed in 

accordance with the plans and specifications, and major change orders approved by ECOLOGY’s Project Engineer and 

shown on the Record Drawings. The Stormwater Construction Completion Form can be found on the ECOLOGY website.

Task Goal Statement:

Construction of the project in accordance with ECOLOGY-accepted plans and specifications.

Task Expected Outcome:

Constructed project will provide water quality benefits including reductions in total suspended solids,  dissolved copper, 

dissolved zinc, and phosphorus.

Deliverables

Construction

Number Description Due Date

5.1 Signed and dated construction contract. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

5.2 Stormwater Construction Completion Form. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 16 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

 SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 6 Task Cost: $8,000.00

Task Title: Project Close Out

Task Description:

The RECIPIENT must ensure the following items are completed and provide the associated deliverables to ECOLOGY. The 

RECIPIENT must approve all materials prior to submitting them to ECOLOGY for acceptance.

A. The RECIPIENT will operate and maintain the constructed facility for the design life of the facility. The RECIPIENT will 

develop and submit an Operations and Maintenance (O&M) plan for all facilities constructed with ECOLOGY funding to 

ECOLOGY for review. The O&M plan must address long-term activities to assure ongoing pollutant removal and flow-control 

capability of the project in accordance with the design manual. O&M plan development guidance is located in the Deliverables 

Document available on the ECOLOGY website. Allow 15 calendar days for ECOLOGY review.

B. The RECIPIENT will submit a GIS compatible project area as a shapefile, geodatabase file, or ECOLOGY-accepted 

equivalent. The project area should include polygon features for stormwater facilities and contributing areas.

C. The RECIPIENT will submit the Recipient Close Out Report (RCOR) in EAGL in accordance with Task 1.

D. The RECIPIENT will submit an Outcomes Summary using the ECOLOGY template.

E. The RECIPIENT will calculate and submit a final equivalent new/re-development area for the completed retrofit project(s) 

using the methods outlined in the Stormwater Deliverables Document. Include a table showing the final equivalent 

new/re-development area compared to the area provided in the ECOLOGY-accepted Design Report.

Task Goal Statement:

The RECIPIENT will complete all close out submittals in a timely manner.

Task Expected Outcome:

* Timely and complete submittal of O&M plan, equivalent area calculation, GIS, Recipient Closeout Report, and Outcomes 

Summary.

* Proper maintenance of the constructed facility to maintain water quality benefits.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 17 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

Deliverables

Project Close Out

Number Description Due Date

6.1 Facility Operation and Maintenance Plan. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.  Upload ECOLOGY acceptance 

documentation.

6.2 Project area shapefile, geodatabase file, or ECOLOGY-accepted equivalent. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY. Upload ECOLOGY acceptance 

documentation.

6.3 Outcomes Summary.  Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

6.4 Final, as constructed, equivalent new/redevelopment area determination. 

Upload to EAGL and notify ECOLOGY.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 18 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

BUDGET

Funding Distribution EG240508

NOTE: The above funding distribution number is used to identify this specific agreement and budget on payment 

remittances and may be referenced on other communications from ECOLOGY. Your agreement may have multiple 

funding distribution numbers to identify each budget.

Title:

State

SFAP-SFY24

100%

Environmental Legacy Stewarship Account (ELSA) - State

Type: 

Funding Source %: 

Description: 

FDFund: 

Approved Indirect Costs Rate:

Recipient Match %:  

InKind Interlocal Allowed:

InKind Other Allowed:

Is this Funding Distribution used to match a federal grant?   No

Approved State Indirect Rate: 30%

15%

No

No

Funding Title:

Funding Source:

Funding Expiration Date:
Funding Type:

Funding Effective Date:
SFAP
07/01/2023 06/30/2026

Grant

SFAP Task Total

Grant and Loan Administration 3,000.00$

Cultural and Environmental Review, and Permitting 5,000.00$

Design Plans and Specifications 82,000.00$

Construction Management 88,000.00$

Construction 2,655,937.00$

Project Close Out 8,000.00$

2,841,937.00$Total:  

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 19 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

Funding Distribution Summary

Recipient / Ecology Share

Recipient Share Ecology Share TotalRecipient Match %Funding Distribution Name

$ $ $% 2,415,646.45 2,841,937.00426,290.5515.00SFAP

Total $ $426,290.55 2,415,646.45 $ 2,841,937.00

AGREEMENT SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS

N/A

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

WQC-2024—Water Quality Program Special Terms and Conditions (Update June 2023)

SECTION 1:  DEFINITIONS

Unless otherwise provided, the following terms will have the respective meanings for all purposes of this agreement:

“Administration Charge” means a charge established in accordance with Chapter 90.50A RCW and Chapter 173-98 WAC, 

to be used to pay Ecology’s cost to administer the State Revolving Fund by placing a percentage of the interest earned in an 

Administrative Charge Account.  

“Administrative Requirements” means the effective edition of ECOLOGY's Administrative Requirements for Recipients of 

Ecology Grants and Loans at the signing of this agreement.

“Annual Debt Service” for any calendar year means for any applicable bonds or loans including the loan, all interest plus all 

principal due on such bonds or loans in such year.

“Average Annual Debt Service” means, at the time of calculation, the sum of the Annual Debt Service for the remaining years 

of the loan to the last scheduled maturity of the loan divided by the number of those years.

“Accrued Interest” means the interest incurred as loan funds are disbursed.

“Acquisition” means the purchase or receipt of a donation of fee or less than fee interests in real property. These interests 

include, but are not limited to, conservation easements, access/trail easements, covenants, water rights, leases, and mineral 

rights. 

“Build American Buy American (BABA)” means a portion of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act and establishes a 

domestic content procurement preference for all Federal financial assistance obligated for infrastructure projects after May 14, 

2022.

“Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL)” means funding to improve drinking water, wastewater and stormwater infrastructure.

“Centennial Clean Water Program” means the state program funded from various state sources.

“Contract Documents” means the contract between the RECIPIENT and the construction contractor for construction of the 

project.

“Construction Materials”  means an article, material, or supply (other than an item of primarily iron or steel; a manufactured 

product; cement and cementitious materials; aggregates such as stone, sand, or gravel; aggregate binding agents or additives; 

or non-permanent products) that is or consists primarily of, non-ferrous metals, plastic and polymer-based products (including 

polyvinylchloride, composite building materials, and polymers used in fiber optic cables), (including optic glass), lumber, and 

drywall.

“Cost Effective Analysis” means a comparison of the relative cost-efficiencies of two or more potential ways of solving a water 

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 20 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

quality problem as described in Chapter 173-98-730 WAC.

“Davis Bacon Prevailing Wage Act” means the federal law mandating on-site workers on public works projects be paid 

certain wages, benefits, and overtime (also known as “prevailing wage” on all government-funded construction, alteration, and 

repair projects.

“Defease” or “Defeasance” means the setting aside in escrow or other special fund or account of sufficient investments and 

money dedicated to pay all principal of and interest on all or a portion of an obligation as it comes due.

“Effective Date” means the earliest date on which eligible costs may be incurred.

“Effective Interest Rate” means the total interest rate established by Ecology that includes the Administrative Charge. 

“Estimated Loan Amount” means the initial amount of funds loaned to the RECIPIENT.

“Estimated Loan Repayment Schedule” means the schedule of loan repayments over the term of the loan based on the 

Estimated Loan Amount and the estimated schedule for completion of the project.

“Equivalency” means the amount of State Revolving Fund (SRF) funding each funding cycle equivalent to the EPA grant to 

Ecology. 

“Equivalency Project” means State Revolving Fund (SRF) funded project(s) designated by ECOLOGY to receive federal 

funding and meet additional federal requirements.  

“Expiration Date” means the latest date on which eligible costs may be incurred. 

“Final Accrued Interest” means the interest accrued beginning with the first disbursement of funds to the RECIPIENT through 

such time as the loan is officially closed out and a final loan repayment schedule is issued.

“Final Loan Amount” means all principal of and accrued interest on the loan from the Project Start Date through the Project 

Completion Date.

“Final Loan Repayment Schedule” means the schedule of loan repayments over the term of the loan based on the Final Loan 

Amount and the initiation of operation or completion date, whichever comes first.

“Forgivable Principal” means the portion of a loan that is not required to be paid back by the borrower.

“General Obligation Debt” means an obligation of the RECIPIENT secured by annual ad valorem taxes levied by the 

RECIPIENT and by the full faith, credit, and resources of the RECIPIENT.

“General Obligation Payable from Special Assessments Debt” means an obligation of the RECIPIENT secured by a valid 

general obligation of the Recipient payable from special assessments to be imposed within the constitutional and statutory tax 

limitations provided by law without a vote of the electors of the RECIPIENT on all the taxable property within the boundaries 

of the RECIPIENT.

“Gross Revenue” means all of the earnings and revenues received by the RECIPIENT from the maintenance and operation of 

the Utility and all earnings from the investment of money on deposit in the Loan Fund, except (i) Utility Local Improvement 

Districts (ULID) Assessments, (ii) government grants, (iii) RECIPIENT taxes, (iv) principal proceeds of bonds and other 

obligations, or (v) earnings or proceeds (A) from any investments in a trust, Defeasance, or escrow fund created to Defease or 

refund Utility obligations or (B) in an obligation redemption fund or account other than the Loan Fund until commingled with 

other earnings and revenues of the Utility or (C) held in a special account for the purpose of paying a rebate to the United 

States Government under the Internal Revenue Code.

“Guidelines” means the ECOLOGY's Funding Guidelines that that correlate to the State Fiscal Year in which the project is 

funded. 

“Initiation of Operation Date” means the actual date the facility financed with proceeds of the loan begins to operate for its 

intended purpose. (For loans only)

“Iron and Steel Products” means products made primarily of iron or steel including but may not be limited to: lined or unlined 

pipes and fittings, manhole covers and other municipal castings, hydrants, tanks, flanges, pipe clamps and restraints, valves, 

structural steel, reinforced precast concrete, and construction materials.  

“Loan” means the Washington State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Loan or Centennial Clean Water Fund 

(Centennial) Loan made pursuant to this loan agreement.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 21 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

“Loan Amount” means either an Estimated Loan Amount or a Final Loan Amount, as applicable.

“Loan Fund” means the special fund created by the RECIPIENT for the repayment of the principal of and interest on the loan.

“Loan Security” means the mechanism by which the RECIPIENT pledges to repay the loan.

“Loan Term” means the repayment period of the loan.

“Maintenance and Operation Expense” means all reasonable expenses incurred by the RECIPIENT in causing the Utility to be 

operated and maintained in good repair, working order, and condition including payments to other parties, but will not include 

any depreciation or RECIPIENT levied taxes or payments to the RECIPIENT in lieu of taxes.

“Manufactured Products” means, items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as 

aluminum plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; aggregates such as concreate; glass, including 

optical fiber; and lumber.

“Produced in the United States” means for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting 

state through the application of coatings, occurred in the Untied States.

“Net Revenue” means the Gross Revenue less the Maintenance and Operation Expense.

“Original Engineer’s Estimate” means the engineer’s estimate of construction costs included with bid documents.

“Prevailing Wage” means hourly wage, usual benefits, and overtime paid in the largest city in each county, to the majority of 

workers, laborers, and mechanics performing the same work.  The rate is established separately for each county. 

“Principal and Interest Account” means, for a loan that constitutes Revenue-Secured Debt, the account created in the loan fund 

to be first used to repay the principal of and interest on the loan.

“Project” means the project described in this agreement.

“Project Completion Date” means the date specified in the agreement on which the Scope of Work will be fully completed and 

is the last day eligible costs can be incurred.  This term is only used in loan agreements.

“Project Schedule” means that schedule for the project specified in the agreement.

“Revenue-Secured Debt” means an obligation of the RECIPIENT secured by a pledge of the revenue of a utility and one not a 

general obligation of the RECIPIENT.

“Reserve Account” means, for a loan that constitutes a Revenue Secured Debt and if specifically identified as a term and 

condition of the funding agreement, the account of that name created in the loan fund to secure the payment of the principal of 

and interest on the loan. 

“Risk-Based Determination” means an approach to sub-recipient monitoring and oversight based on risk factors associated to 

a RECIPIENT or project.

“Scope of Work” means the tasks and activities constituting the project.

“Section 319” means the section of the Clean Water Act that provides funding to address nonpoint sources of water pollution.

“Senior Lien Obligations” means all revenue bonds and other obligations of the RECIPIENT outstanding on the date of 

execution of this loan agreement (or subsequently issued on a parity therewith, including refunding obligations) or issued after 

the date of execution of this loan agreement having a claim or lien on the Gross Revenue of the Utility prior and superior to the 

claim or lien of the loan, subject only to Maintenance and Operation Expense.

“State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (Revolving Fund)” means the water pollution control revolving fund established 

by Chapter 90.50A.020 RCW.

“Termination Date” means the effective date of ECOLOGY’s termination of the agreement.

“Termination Payment Date” means the date on which the RECIPIENT is required to repay to ECOLOGY any outstanding 

balance of the loan and all accrued interest.

“Total Eligible Project Cost” means the sum of all costs associated with a water quality project that have been determined to 

be eligible for ECOLOGY grant or loan funding, including any required recipient match.

“Total Project Cost” means the sum of all costs associated with a water quality project, including costs that are not eligible for 

ECOLOGY grant or loan funding.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 22 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

“Unique Entity Identity Identifier (UEI)” means a 12-character alphanumeric ID assigned by SAM.gov. to an entity doing 

business with or receiving funds from the federal government.  This number replaces the DUNS number.

“ULID” means any utility local improvement district of the RECIPIENT created for the acquisition or construction of additions 

to and extensions and betterments of the Utility.

“ULID Assessments” means all assessments levied and collected in any ULID.  Such assessments are pledged to be paid into 

the Loan Fund (less any prepaid assessments permitted by law to be paid into a construction fund or account).  ULID 

Assessments will include principal installments and any interest or penalties which may be due.

“Utility” means the sewer system, stormwater system, or the combined water and sewer system of the RECIPIENT, the Net 

Revenue of which is pledged to pay and secure the loan.

SECTION 2:  CONDITIONS APPLY TO ALL RECIPIENTS OF WATER QUALITY COMBINED FINANCIAL 

ASSISTANCE FUNDING.

The Water Quality Financial Assistance Funding Guidelines are included in this agreement by reference and are available on 

ECOLOGY’s Water Quality Program website.

A. Accounting Standards: The RECIPIENT shall maintain accurate records and accounts for the project (PROJECT Records) 

in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards 

Board (GASB), including standards related to the reporting of infrastructure assets or in accordance with the standards in 

Chapter 43.09.200 RCW “Local Government Accounting – Uniform System of Accounting.”

B. Architectural and Engineering Services:  The RECIPIENT certifies by signing this agreement that the requirements of 

Chapter 39.80 RCW, “Contracts for Architectural and Engineering Services,” have been, or shall be, met in procuring 

qualified architectural/engineering services.  The RECIPIENT shall identify and separate eligible and ineligible costs in the final 

architectural/engineering services contract and submit a copy of the contract to ECOLOGY.

C. Acquisition: The following provisions shall be in force only if the project described in this agreement is an acquisition project:

a.  Evidence of Land Value and Title. The RECIPIENT shall submit documentation of the cost of the property rights and the 

type of ownership interest that has been acquired. 

b.  Legal Description of Real Property Rights Acquired. The legal description of the real property rights purchased with funding 

assistance provided through this agreement (and protected by a recorded conveyance of rights to the State of Washington) 

shall be incorporated into the agreement before final payment.

c.  Conveyance of Rights to the State of Washington. Upon purchase of real property rights (both fee simple and lesser 

interests), the RECIPIENT shall execute the document necessary to convey certain rights and responsibilities to ECOLOGY, 

on behalf of the State of Washington. The documents required will depend on the project type, the real property rights being 

acquired, and whether or not those rights are being acquired in perpetuity (see options below). The RECIPIENT shall use 

language provided by ECOLOGY, to record the executed document in the County where the real property lies, and to 

provide a copy of the recorded document to ECOLOGY. 

Documentation Options:

1.  Deed of Right. The Deed of Right conveys to the people of the state of Washington the right to preserve, protect, and/or 

use the property for public purposes consistent with the fund source. RECIPIENTs shall use this document when acquiring real 

property rights that include the underlying land. This document may also be applicable for those easements where the 

RECIPIENT has acquired a perpetual easement for public purposes. The RECIPIENT must obtain ECOLOGY approval on 

the draft language prior to executing the deed of right. 

2. Assignment of Rights. The Assignment of Rights document transfers certain rights such as access and enforcement to 

ECOLOGY. The RECIPIENT shall use this document when an easement or lease is being acquired for water quality and 

habitat conservation. The Assignment of Rights requires the signature of the underlying landowner and must be incorporated by 

reference in the easement document.

3. Easements and Leases. The RECIPIENT may incorporate required language from the Deed of Right or Assignment of 

Rights directly into the easement or lease document, thereby eliminating the requirement for a separate document. Language 

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 23 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

will depend on the situation; therefore, the RECIPIENT must obtain ECOLOGY approval on the draft language prior to 

executing the easement or lease.

d. Real Property Acquisition and Relocation Assistance.

1. Federal Acquisition Policies. See Section 4 of this agreement for requirements specific to Section 319 and SRF funded 

projects.

2. State Acquisition Policies. When state funds are part of this agreement, the RECIPIENT agrees to comply with the terms 

and conditions of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policy of the State of Washington, Chapter 

8.26 RCW, and Chapter 468-100 WAC.

3. Housing and Relocation. In the event that housing and relocation costs, as required by federal law set out in subsection (1) 

above and/or state law set out in subsection (2) above, are involved in the execution of this project, the RECIPIENT agrees to 

provide any housing and relocation assistance required.

e. Hazardous Substances.

1. Certification. The RECIPIENT shall inspect, investigate, and conduct an environmental audit of the proposed acquisition site 

for the presence of hazardous substances, as defined in RCW 70.105D.020(10), and certify:

i.  No hazardous substances were found on the site, or

ii.  Any hazardous substances found have been treated and/or disposed of in compliance with applicable state and federal laws, 

and the site is deemed “clean.”

2. Responsibility. Nothing in this provision alters the RECIPIENT's duties and liabilities regarding hazardous substances as set 

forth in RCW 70.105D.

3. Hold Harmless. The RECIPIENT will defend, protect and hold harmless ECOLOGY and any and all of its employees 

and/or agents, from and against any and all liability, cost (including but not limited to all costs of defense and attorneys' fees) 

and any and all loss of any nature from any and all claims or suits resulting from the presence of, or the release or threatened 

release of, hazardous substances on the property the RECIPIENT is acquiring.

f. Restriction On Conversion Of Real Property And/Or Facilities To Other Uses

The RECIPIENT shall not at any time convert any real property (including any interest therein) or facility acquired, developed, 

maintained, renovated, and/or restored pursuant to this agreement to uses other than those purposes for which funds were 

approved without prior approval of ECOLOGY. For acquisition projects that are term limited, such as one involving a lease or 

a term-limited restoration, renovation or development project or easement, this restriction on conversion shall apply only for 

the length of the term, unless otherwise provided in written documents or required by applicable state or federal law. In such 

case, the restriction applies to such projects for the length of the term specified by the lease, easement, deed, or landowner 

agreement.

D. Best Management Practices (BMP) Implementation:  If the RECIPIENT installs BMPs that are not approved by 

ECOLOGY prior to installation, the RECIPIENT assumes the risk that part or all of the reimbursement for that activity may be 

delayed or ineligible.  For more details regarding BMP Implementation, please reference the Water Quality Financial 

Assistance Funding Guidelines available on ECOLOGY’s Water Quality Program funding website.

E. Electronic Fund Transfers:  Payment will be issued through Washington State’s Office of Financial Management’s Statewide 

Payee Desk.  To receive payment you must register as a statewide vendor by submitting a statewide vendor registration form 

and an IRS W-9 form at website, https://ofm.wa.gov/it-systems/statewide-vendorpayee-services.  If you have questions about 

the vendor registration process or electronic fund transfers, you can contact Statewide Payee Help Desk at (360) 407-8180 

or email PayeeRegistration@ofm.wa.gov.

F. Equipment Purchase:  Equipment purchases over $5,000 and not included in the scope of work or the Ecology approved 

construction plans and specifications, must be pre-approved by ECOLOGY’s project manager before purchase.  All 

equipment purchases over $5,000 and not included in a contract for work being completed on the funded project, must also 

be reported on the Equipment Purchase Report in EAGL.  

G. Funding Recognition:  The RECIPIENT must inform the public about any ECOLOGY or EPA funding participation in this 

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 24 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

project through the use of project signs, acknowledgement in published materials, reports, the news media, websites, or other 

public announcements.  Projects addressing site-specific locations must utilize appropriately sized and weather-resistant signs.  

Contact your Ecology Project Team to determine the appropriate recognition for your project.

H. Growth Management Planning: The RECIPIENT certifies by signing this agreement that it is in compliance with the 

requirements of Chapter 36.70A RCW, “Growth Management Planning by Selected Counties and Cities.”  If the status of 

compliance changes, either through RECIPIENT or legislative action, the RECIPIENT shall notify ECOLOGY in writing of 

this change within 30 days.

I. Interlocal: The RECIPIENT certifies by signing this agreement that all negotiated interlocal agreements necessary for the 

project are, or shall be, consistent with the terms of this agreement and Chapter 39.34 RCW, “Interlocal Cooperation Act.”  

The RECIPIENT shall submit a copy of each interlocal agreement necessary for the project to ECOLOGY upon request.

J. Lobbying and Litigation:  Costs incurred for the purposes of lobbying or litigation are not eligible for funding under this 

agreement.

K. Post Project Assessment Survey: The RECIPIENT agrees to participate in a brief survey regarding the key project results 

or water quality project outcomes and the status of long-term environmental results or goals from the project approximately 

three years after project completion.  A representative from ECOLOGY’s Water Quality Program may contact the 

RECIPIENT to request this data.  ECOLOGY may also conduct site interviews and inspections, and may otherwise evaluate 

the project, as part of this assessment.

L. Project Status Evaluation: ECOLOGY may evaluate the status at any time. ECOLOGY’s Project Manager and Financial 

Manager will meet with the RECIPIENT to review spending trends, completion of outcome measures, and overall project 

administration and performance.  If the RECIPIENT fails to make satisfactory progress toward achieving project outcomes, 

ECOLOGY may change the scope of work, reduce grant funds, or increase oversight measures.

M. Technical Assistance: Technical assistance for agriculture activities provided under the terms of this agreement shall be 

consistent with the current U.S. Natural Resource Conservation Service (“NRCS”) Field Office Technical Guide for 

Washington State and specific requirements outlined in the Water Quality Funding Guidelines.  Technical assistance, proposed 

practices, or project designs that do not meet these standards may be eligible if approved in writing by ECOLOGY.

SECTION 3:  CONDITIONS APPLY TO SECTION 319 AND CENTENNIAL CLEAN WATER FUNDED PROJECTS 

BEING USED TO MATCH SECTION 319 FUNDS.

The RECIPIENT must submit the following documents to ECOLOGY before this agreement is signed by ECOLOGY:

1. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) Form is available on the Water Quality Program website 

and must be completed and submitted to Ecology.  (This form is used for Section 319 (federal) funds only)

2. “Section 319 Initial Data Reporting” form must be completed in EAGL.

A. Data Reporting:  The RECIPIENT must complete the “Section 319 Initial Data Reporting” form in EAGL before this 

agreement can be signed by Ecology.  This form is used to gather general information about the project for EPA. 

B. Funding Recognition and Outreach: In addition to Section 2.F. of these Special Terms and Conditions, the RECIPIENT 

shall provide signage that informs the public that the project is funded by EPA.   The signage shall contain the EPA logo and 

follow usage requirements available at http://www2.epa.gov/stylebook/using-epa-seal-and-logo.  To obtain the appropriate 

EPA logo or seal graphic file, the RECIPIENT may send a request to their Ecology Financial Manager. 

To increase public awareness of projects serving communities where English is not the predominant language, RECIPIENTS 

are encouraged to provide their outreach strategies communication in non-English languages. Translation costs for this purpose 

are allowable, provided the costs are reasonable. (Applies to both the Section 319 funded projects and the Centennial match 

projects)

The RECIPIENT shall use the following paragraph in all reports, documents, and signage developed under this agreement: 

(Applies to Section 319 funded projects only)

“This project has been funded wholly or in part by the United States Environmental Protection Agency under an assistance 

agreement to the Washington State Department of Ecology. The contents of this document do not necessarily reflect the views 

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 25 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

and policies of the Environmental Protection Agency, nor does the mention of trade names or commercial products constitute 

endorsement or recommendation for use.”

C. Load Reduction Reporting:  The RECIPIENT shall complete the “Section 319 Annual Load Reduction Reporting” form in 

EAGL by January 15 of each year and at project close-out.  ECOLOGY may hold reimbursements until the RECIPIENT has 

completed the form.  This form is used to gather information on best management practices (BMPs) installed and associated 

pollutant load reductions that were funded as a part of this project.  

D. Time Extension:  The RECIPIENT may request a one-time extension for up to 12 months. However, the time extension 

cannot exceed the time limitation established in EPA’s assistance agreement.  In the event a time extension is requested and 

approved by ECOLOGY, the RECIPIENT must complete all eligible work performed under this agreement by the expiration 

date.  (For Section 319 funded projects only)

SECTION 4:  CONDITIONS APPLY TO ALL FEDERAL FUNDING AGREEMENTS, INCLUDING SECTION 319, 

State Revolving Fund (SRF) Equivalency Projects, and SEWER OVERFLOW AND STORMWATER REUSE 

MUNICIPAL GRANT (OSG) 

A.  Acquisitions:  RECIPIENTs shall comply with the terms and conditions of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real 

Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 84 Stat. 1894 (1970)--Public Law 91-646, as amended by the Surface 

Transportation and Uniform Relocation Assistance Act, PL 100-17-1987, and applicable regulations and procedures of the 

federal agency implementing that Act.

B.  Audit Requirements:  In accordance with 2 CFR 200.501(a), the RECIPIENT agrees to obtain a single audit from an 

independent auditor, if their organization expends $750,000 or more in total Federal funds in their fiscal year. The 

RECIPIENT must submit the form SF-SAC and a Single Audit Report Package within 9 months of the end of the fiscal year 

or 30 days after receiving the report from an independent auditor. The SF-SAC and a Single Audit Report Package MUST be 

submitted using the Federal Audit Clearinghouse’s Internet Data Entry System available at: https://facweb.census.gov/.

C.  Archaeological Resources and Historic Properties (Section 106): This requires completion of the Ecology Cultural 

Resources Review Form, coordination with Ecology Cultural Resources staff, and receipt of the Ecology Final Determination 

prior to any property acquisition and above and below ground disturbing activities. 

D. Architectural and Engineering Services Procurement:  The RECIPIENT must procure architectural and engineering services 

in accordance with the federal requirements in Chapter 11 of Title 40, U.S.C. (see 

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title40/subtitle1/chapter11&edition=prelim). 

E Build America, Buy America (BABA – Pub. L. No. 117-58, 70901-52) (Federally funded SRF Equivalency projects only): 

The RECIPIENT identified by ECOLOGY as receiving federal equivalency funding agrees to comply with all federal 

requirements applicable to the assistance received (including those imposed by the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act 

(“IIJA”/BIL), Public Law No. 117-58) which the RECIPIENT understands includes, but is not limited to, the following 

requirements: that all the iron and steel, manufactured products, and construction materials used in the Project are to be 

produced in the United States (“Build America, Buy America Requirements”) unless (i) the RECIPIENT has requested and 

obtained a waiver from the cognizant Agency pertaining to the Project or the Project is otherwise covered by a general 

applicability waiver; or (ii) all of the contributing Agencies have otherwise advised the RECIPIENT in writing that the Build 

America, Buy America Requirements are not applicable to the project. 

RECPIENT shall comply with all record keeping and reporting requirements under all applicable legal authorities, including any 

reports required by the funding authority (such as EPA and/or a state), such as performance indicators of program deliverables, 

information on costs and project progress. The RECIPIENT identified by ECOLOGY as receiving federal equivalency 

funding, understands that (i) each contract and subcontract related to the project is subject to audit by appropriate federal and 

state entities and (ii) failure to comply with the applicable legal requirements and this Agreement may result in a default 

hereunder that results in a repayment of the assistance agreement in advance of termination and/or repayment of assistance, 

and/or other remedial actions.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 26 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

EPA has granted an adjustment period waiver of the requirements of Section 70914(a) of the BIL, pursuant to Section 

70914(b)(1) (public interest waiver), for eligible projects financed by SRF projects that have initiated project design planning 

prior to May 14, 2022, the statutory effective date of the BABA requirements. This action permits the use of non-domestic 

manufactured products and construction materials in such projects funded by a Clean Water or Drinking Water SRF that may 

otherwise be prohibited under the BABA requirements of Section 70914. This action permits the use of non-domestic 

manufactured products and construction materials in such projects funded by a Clean Water or Drinking Water SRF that may 

otherwise be prohibited under the BABA requirements of Section 70914. Sections 70917(a) and (b) of BIL provide a savings 

provision for existing statutory requirements that meet or exceed BABA requirements. The statutory American Iron and Steel 

(AIS) requirements of Clean Water Act (CWA) Section 608 and Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) Section 1452(a)(4) has 

previously applied to SRF projects and will continue to do so as part of BABA requirements.

Where manufactured products used in the project are required to be produced in the United States, manufactured product 

shall mean manufactured in the United States, and the cost of the components of the manufactured product that are mined, 

produced, or manufactured in the United States is greater than 55 percent of the total cost of all components of the 

manufactured product, unless another standard for determining the minimum amount of domestic content of the manufactured 

product has been established under applicable law or regulation. The manufactured products included cover the majority of 

potential water infrastructure products, including complex products made up of a variety of material types and components. 

For water infrastructure projects, commonly manufactured products would include, but not be limited to, pumps, motors, 

blowers, aerators, generators, instrumentation and control systems, gauges, meters, measurement equipment, treatment 

equipment, dewatering equipment, actuators, and many other mechanical and electrical items.

F. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE):  General Compliance, 40 CFR, Part 33.  The RECIPIENT agrees to comply 

with the requirements of the Environmental Protection Agency’s Program for Utilization of Small, Minority, and Women’s 

Business Enterprises (MBE/WBE) 40CFR, Part 33 in procurement under this agreement.  

Six Good Faith Efforts, 40 CFR, Part 33, Subpart C.  The RECIPIENT agrees to make the following good faith efforts 

whenever procuring construction, equipment, services, and supplies under this agreement.  Records documenting compliance 

with the following six good faith efforts shall be retained:

1) Ensure Disadvantaged Business Enterprises are made aware of contracting opportunities to the fullest extent practicable 

through outreach and recruitment activities.  For Indian Tribal, State and Local and Government RECIPIENTs, this shall 

include placing Disadvantaged Business Enterprises on solicitation lists and soliciting them whenever they are potential sources.  

2) Make information on forthcoming opportunities available to Disadvantaged Business Enterprises and arrange time frames for 

contracts and establish delivery schedules, where the requirements permit, in a way that encourages and facilitates participation 

by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in the competitive process. This includes, whenever possible, posting solicitations for 

bids or proposals for a minimum of thirty (30) calendar days before the bid or proposal closing date.

3) Consider, in the contracting process, whether firms competing for large contracts could subcontract with Disadvantaged 

Business Enterprises. For Indian Tribal, State, and Local Government RECIPIENTs, this shall include dividing total 

requirements when economically feasible into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by Disadvantaged 

Business Enterprises in the competitive process. 

4) Encourage contracting with a consortium of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises when a contract is too large for one of 

these firms to handle individually.

5) Use services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the 

Department of Commerce.

6) If the prime contractor awards subcontracts, require the prime contractor to take the five good faith efforts steps in 

paragraphs 1 through 5 above.

The RECIPIENT agrees to submit ECOLOGY’s Contractor Participation Report Form D with each payment request.

Contract Administration Provisions, 40 CFR, Section 33.302.  The RECIPIENT agrees to comply with the contract 

administration provisions of 40 CFR, Section 33.302.  

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 27 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

Non-discrimination Provision.  The RECIPIENT shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the 

performance of this agreement. The RECIPIENT shall carry out applicable requirements of 40 CFR Part 33 in the award and 

administration of contracts awarded under EPA financial assistance agreements.  Failure by the RECIPIENT to carry out these 

requirements is a material breach of this agreement which may result in the termination of this contract or other legally available 

remedies.

This does not preclude the RECIPIENT from enacting broader nondiscrimination protections.

The RECIPIENT shall comply with all federal and state nondiscrimination laws, including but not limited to, Title VI and VII of 

the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 

the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and Chapter 49.60 RCW, Washington’s Law Against Discrimination, and 42 U.S.C. 

12101 et seq, the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

In the event of the RECIPIENT’s noncompliance or refusal to comply with any applicable nondiscrimination law, regulation, or 

policy, this agreement may be rescinded, canceled, or terminated in whole or in part and the RECIPIENT may be declared 

ineligible for further funding from ECOLOGY.  The RECIPIENT shall, however, be given a reasonable time in which to cure 

this noncompliance.

The RECIPIENT shall include the following terms and conditions in contracts with all contractors, subcontractors, engineers, 

vendors, and any other entity for work or services pertaining to this agreement.

“The Contractor will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this Contract. The 

Contractor will carry out applicable requirements of 40 CFR Part 33 in the award and administration of contracts awarded 

under Environmental Protection Agency financial agreements. Failure by the Contractor to carry out these requirements is a 

material breach of this Contract which may result in termination of this Contract or other legally available remedies.”

Bidder List, 40 CFR, Section 33.501(b) and (c).  The RECIPIENT agrees to create and maintain a bidders list.  The bidders 

list shall include the following information for all firms that bid or quote on prime contracts, or bid or quote subcontracts, 

including both MBE/WBEs and non-MBE/WBEs.

1. Entity's name with point of contact

2. Entity's mailing address, telephone number, and e-mail address

3. The procurement on which the entity bid or quoted, and when

4. Entity's status as an MBE/WBE or non-MBE/WBE

G. Electronic and information Technology (EIT) Accessibility:  RECIPIENTs shall ensure that loan funds provided under this 

agreement for costs in the development or purchase of EIT systems or products provide individuals with disabilities reasonable 

accommodations and an equal and effective opportunity to benefit from or participate in a program, including those offered 

through electronic and information technology as per Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, codified in 40 CFR Part 7.  

Systems or products funded under this agreement must be designed to meet the diverse needs of users without barriers or 

diminished function or quality.  Systems shall include usability features or functions that accommodate the needs of persons with 

disabilities, including those who use assistive technology.

H. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) Form, available on the Water Quality Program website.  

I.  Hotel-Motel Fire Safety Act:  The RECIPIENT shall ensure that all space for conferences, meetings, conventions, or 

training seminars funded in whole or in part with federal funds complies with the protection and control guidelines of the Hotel 

and Motel Fire Safety Act (15 USC 2225a, PL 101-391, as amended). Recipients may search the Hotel-Motel National 

Master List at http://www.usfa.dhs.gov/applications/hotel/ to see if a property is in compliance, or to find other information 

about the Act. Pursuant to 15 USC 2225a.

J. Prevailing Wage (Davis-Bacon Act): The RECIPIENT agrees, by signing this agreement, to comply with the Davis-Bacon 

Act prevailing wage requirements.  This applies to the construction, alteration, and repair of treatment works carried out, in 

whole or in part, with assistance made available by the State Revolving Fund as authorized by Section 513, title VI of the 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1372).  Laborers and mechanics employed by contractors and 

subcontractors shall be paid wages not less often than once a week and at rates not less than those prevailing on projects of a 

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 28 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

character similar in the locality as determined by the Secretary of Labor.  

The RECIPIENT shall obtain the wage determination for the area in which the project is located prior to issuing requests for 

bids, proposals, quotes, or other methods for soliciting contracts (solicitation).  These wage determinations shall be 

incorporated into solicitations and any subsequent contracts.  The RECIPIENT shall ensure that the required EPA contract 

language regarding Davis-Bacon Wages is in all contracts and subcontracts more than $2,000.  The RECIPIENT shall 

maintain records sufficient to document compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act and make such records available for review 

upon request. Wage determinations and instructions for their use can be found at https://sam.gov/.

The RECIPIENT also agrees, by signing this agreement, to comply with State Prevailing Wages on Public Works, Chapter 

39.12 RCW, as applicable.  Compliance may include the determination whether the project involves “public work” and 

inclusion of the applicable prevailing wage rates in the bid specifications and contracts.  The RECIPIENT agrees to maintain 

records sufficient to evidence compliance with Chapter 39.12 RCW and make such records available for review upon request. 

Where conflicts arise between the State prevailing wage rates and Davis-Bacon Act prevailing wage requirements the more 

stringent requirement shall govern. Washington State prevailing wage rates can be found at 

https://www.lni.wa.gov/licensing-permits/public-works-projects/prevailing-wage-rates/

K. Trafficking in Persons:  The RECIPIENT and RECIPIENT employees that are private entities shall not engage in forms of 

trafficking in persons.  This includes, but is not limited to, the procurement of a commercial sex act or forced labor.  The 

RECIPIENT shall notify ECOLOGY immediately of any information received from any source alleging a violation under this 

provision.

L.  Unique Entity Identity Identifier (UEI):  The RECIPIENT agrees to register with and make their registration public in the 

System for Award Management (SAM.gov).  The RECIPIENT will be assigned a UEI and agree to include their UEI Number 

under their organization’s information in EAGL. The UEI number must be entered into EAGL before a funding agreement is 

signed.

SECTION 5:  CONDITIONS APPLY TO STATE REVOLVING FUND (SRF) LOAN FUNDED PROJECTS ONLY.

The RECIPIENT must submit the following documents/forms to ECOLOGY before this agreement is signed by ECOLOGY:

1. Financial Capability Assessment Documentation (upon request)

2. Opinion of RECIPIENT’s Legal Council – Form available on the Ecology website must be completed and uploaded to the 

General Uploads form in EAGL.

3. Authorizing Ordinance or Resolution – Must be uploaded to the General Uploads form in EAGL.

4. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) Form (Required for all federally funded SRF Equivalency 

projects – Form available on the Ecology website must be completed and uploaded to the General Uploads form in EAGL.

5. CWSRF Federal Reporting Information form – Must be completed in EAGL.

6. Fiscal Sustainability Plan (Asset Management) Certification Form (Only required if the project includes construction of a 

wastewater or stormwater facility construction) – Must be completed in EAGL.

7. Cost and Effectiveness Analysis Certification Form (Required for all projects receiving SRF Loan funding) – Must be 

completed in EAGL.

8. State Environmental Review Process (SERP) Documentation (Required for treatment works projects only) – Must be 

uploaded to the Environmental and Cultural Review form in EAGL.

A. Alteration and Eligibility of Project: During the term of this agreement, the RECIPIENT (1) shall not materially alter the 

design or structural character of the project without the prior written approval of ECOLOGY and (2) shall take no action 

which would adversely affect the eligibility of the project as defined by applicable funding program rules and state statutes , or 

which would cause a violation of any covenant, condition, or provision herein.

B. American Iron and Steel (Buy American – P.L 113-76, Consolidated Appropriations Act 2014, Section 436):  This loan 

provision applies to projects for the construction, alteration, maintenance, or repair of a “treatment works” as defined in the 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 USC 1381 et seq.)  The RECIPIENT shall ensure that all iron and steel products 

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 29 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

used in the project are produced in the United States.  Iron and Steel products means the following products made primarily of 

iron or steel: lined or unlined pipes and fittings, manhole covers and other municipal castings, hydrants, tanks, flanges, pipe 

clamps and restraints, valves, structural steel, reinforced precast concrete, and construction materials.  The RECIPIENT may 

request waiver from this requirement from the Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency. The RECIPIENT must 

coordinate all waiver requests through ECOLOGY.  This provision does not apply if the engineering plans and specifications 

for the project were approved by ECOLOGY prior to January 17, 2014.  ECOLOGY reserves the right to request 

documentation of RECIPIENT’S compliance with this provision.

C. Authority of RECIPIENT: This agreement is authorized by the Constitution and laws of the state of Washington, including 

the RECIPIENT’s authority, and by the RECIPIENT pursuant to the authorizing ordinance or resolution.  The RECIPIENT 

shall submit a copy of the authorizing ordinance or resolution to the ECOLOGY Financial Manager before this agreement shall 

be signed by ECOLOGY.

D. Equivalency Projects: ECOLOGY designated equivalency project and alternative designated equivalency project 

RECIPIENTs agree to accept federal funds and the federal requirements that accompany the funds.  This includes all the 

requirements in Section 4 and this Section.

E.  Fiscal Sustainability Plan Certification: The RECIPIENT shall submit a completed Fiscal Sustainability Plan Certification 

before this agreement is signed by ECOLOGY. The Fiscal Sustainability Plan Certification is available from the ECOLOGY 

Financial Manager or on the Water Quality Program website.

F.  Funding Recognition and Outreach:  The RECIPIENT agrees to comply with the EPA SRF Signage Guidance to enhance 

public awareness of EPA assistance agreements nationwide.  Signage guidance can be found at: 

https://ecology.wa.gov/About-us/How-we-operate/Grants-loans/Find-a-grant-or-loan/Water-Quality-grants-and-loans/Facility

-project-resources.

G. Insurance: The RECIPIENT shall at all times carry fire and extended insurance coverage, public liability, and property 

damage, and such other forms of insurance with responsible insurers and policies payable to the RECIPIENT on such of the 

buildings, equipment, works, plants, facilities, and properties of the Utility as are ordinarily carried by municipal or 

privately-owned utilities engaged in the operation of like systems, and against such claims for damages as are ordinarily carried 

by municipal or privately-owned utilities engaged in the operation of like systems, or it shall self-insure or participate in an 

insurance pool or pools with reserves adequate, in the reasonable judgment of the RECIPIENT, to protect it against loss.

H. Litigation Authority: No litigation is now pending, or to the RECIPIENT’s knowledge, threatened, seeking to restrain, or 

enjoin: 

(i)   the execution of this agreement; or 

(ii)   the fixing or collection of the revenues, rates, and charges or the formation of the ULID and the levy and collection of 

ULID Assessments therein pledged to pay the principal of and interest on the loan (for revenue secured lien obligations); or  

(iii)   the levy and collection of the taxes pledged to pay the principal of and interest on the loan (for general obligation-secured 

loans and general obligation payable from special-assessment-secured loans); or   

(iv)   in any manner questioning the proceedings and authority under which the agreement, the loan, or the project are 

authorized.  Neither the corporate existence, or boundaries of the RECIPIENT nor the title of its present officers to their 

respective offices is being contested.  No authority or proceeding for the execution of this agreement has been repealed, 

revoked, or rescinded.

I. Loan Interest Rate and Terms:  This loan agreement shall remain in effect until the date of final repayment of the loan, unless 

terminated earlier according to the provisions herein.

When the Project Completion Date has occurred, ECOLOGY and the RECIPIENT shall execute an amendment to this loan 

agreement which details the final loan amount (Final Loan Amount), and ECOLOGY shall prepare a final loan repayment 

schedule.  The Final Loan Amount shall be the combined total of actual disbursements made on the loan and all accrued 

interest to the computation date.  

The Estimated Loan Amount and the Final Loan Amount (in either case, as applicable, a “Loan Amount”) shall bear interest 

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 30 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

based on the interest rate identified in this agreement as the “Effective Interest Rate,” per annum, calculated on the basis of a 

365-day year.  Interest on the Estimated Loan Amount shall accrue from and be compounded monthly based on the date that 

each payment is mailed to the RECIPIENT.  The Final Loan Amount shall be repaid in equal installments, semiannually, over 

the term of this loan “Loan Term” as outlined in this agreement.

J. Loan Repayment:

Sources of Loan Repayment

1. Nature of RECIPIENT's Obligation.  The obligation of the RECIPIENT to repay the loan from the sources identified below 

and to perform and observe all other agreements and obligations on its part, contained herein, shall be absolute and 

unconditional, and shall not be subject to diminution by setoff, counterclaim, or abatement of any kind. To secure the 

repayment of the loan from ECOLOGY, the RECIPIENT agrees to comply with all the covenants, agreements, and 

attachments contained herein.

2. For General Obligation.  This loan is a General Obligation Debt of the RECIPIENT.

3. For General Obligation Payable from Special Assessments.  This loan is a General Obligation Debt of the RECIPIENT 

payable from special assessments to be imposed within the constitutional and statutory tax limitations provided by law without 

a vote of the electors of the RECIPIENT on all the taxable property within the boundaries of the RECIPIENT.

4. For Revenue-Secured: Lien Position.  This loan is a Revenue-Secured Debt of the RECIPIENT’s Utility.  This loan shall 

constitute a lien and charge upon the Net Revenue junior and subordinate to the lien and charge upon such Net Revenue of any 

Senior Lien Obligations.  

In addition, if this loan is also secured by Utility Local Improvement Districts (ULID) Assessments, this loan shall constitute a 

lien upon ULID Assessments in the ULID prior and superior to any other charges whatsoever.

5. Other Sources of Repayment.  The RECIPIENT may repay any portion of the loan from any funds legally available to it.

6. Defeasance of the Loan.  So long as ECOLOGY shall hold this loan, the RECIPIENT shall not be entitled to, and shall not 

affect, an economic Defeasance of the loan.  The RECIPIENT shall not advance refund the loan.

If the RECIPIENT defeases or advance refunds the loan, it shall be required to use the proceeds thereof immediately upon 

their receipt, together with other available RECIPIENT funds, to repay both of the following:

(i)  The Loan Amount with interest

(ii)  Any other obligations of the RECIPIENT to ECOLOGY under this agreement, unless in its sole discretion ECOLOGY 

finds that repayment from those additional sources would not be in the public interest. 

Failure to repay the Loan Amount plus interest within the time specified in ECOLOGY’s notice to make such repayment shall 

incur Late Charges and shall be treated as a Loan Default.

7. Refinancing or Early Repayment of the Project.  So long as ECOLOGY shall hold this loan, the RECIPIENT shall give 

ECOLOGY thirty days written notice if the RECIPIENT intends to refinance or make early repayment of the loan.

Method and Conditions on Repayments

1. Semiannual Payments.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this agreement, the first semiannual payment of principal and 

interest on this loan shall be due and payable no later than one year after the project completion date or initiation of operation 

date, whichever comes first.

Thereafter, equal payments shall be due every six months.

If the due date for any semiannual payment falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or designated holiday for Washington State agencies, 

the payment shall be due on the next business day for Washington State agencies.

Payments shall be mailed to:

Department of Ecology

Cashiering Unit

P.O. Box 47611

Olympia WA  98504-7611

In lieu of mailing payments, electronic fund transfers can be arranged by working with ECOLOGY’s Financial Manager.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 31 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

No change to the amount of the semiannual principal and interest payments shall be made without a mutually signed amendment 

to this agreement.  The RECIPIENT shall continue to make semiannual payments based on this agreement until the amendment 

is effective, at which time the RECIPIENT’s payments shall be made pursuant to the amended agreement.

2. Late Charges.  If any amount of the Final Loan Amount or any other amount owed to ECOLOGY pursuant to this 

agreement remains unpaid after it becomes due and payable, ECOLOGY may assess a late charge.  The late charge shall be 

one percent per month on the past due amount starting on the date the debt becomes past due and until it is paid in full. 

3. Repayment Limitations.  Repayment of the loan is subject to the following additional limitations, among others:  those on 

defeasance, refinancing and advance refunding, termination, and default and recovery of payments.

4. Prepayment of Loan.  So long as ECOLOGY shall hold this loan, the RECIPIENT may prepay the entire unpaid principal 

balance of and accrued interest on the loan or any portion of the remaining unpaid principal balance of the Loan Amount .  Any 

prepayments on the loan shall be applied first to any accrued interest due and then to the outstanding principal balance of the 

Loan Amount.  If the RECIPIENT elects to prepay the entire remaining unpaid balance and accrued interest, the RECIPIENT 

shall first contact ECOLOGY’s Revenue/Receivable Manager of the Fiscal Office.

K. Loan Security

Due Regard: For loans secured with a Revenue Obligation:  The RECIPIENT shall exercise due regard for Maintenance and 

Operation Expense and the debt service requirements of the Senior Lien Obligations and any other outstanding obligations 

pledging the Gross Revenue of the Utility, and it has not obligated itself to set aside and pay into the loan Fund a greater 

amount of the Gross Revenue of the Utility than, in its judgment, shall be available over and above such Maintenance and 

Operation Expense and those debt service requirements.

Where collecting adequate gross utility revenue requires connecting additional users, the RECIPIENT shall require the sewer 

system connections necessary to meet debt obligations and expected operation and maintenance expenses.  

Levy and Collection of Taxes (if used to secure the repayment of the loan): For so long as the loan is outstanding, the 

RECIPIENT irrevocably pledges to include in its budget and levy taxes annually within the constitutional and statutory tax 

limitations provided by law without a vote of its electors on all of the taxable property within the boundaries of the 

RECIPIENT in an amount sufficient, together with other money legally available and to be used therefore, to pay when due the 

principal of and interest on the loan, and the full faith, credit and resources of the RECIPIENT are pledged irrevocably for the 

annual levy and collection of those taxes and the prompt payment of that principal and interest.

Not an Excess Indebtedness: For loans secured with a general obligation pledge or a general obligation pledge on special 

assessments:  The RECIPIENT agrees that this agreement and the loan to be made do not create an indebtedness of the 

RECIPIENT in excess of any constitutional or statutory limitations.

Pledge of Net Revenue and ULID Assessments in the ULID (if used to secure the repayment of this loan): For so long as the 

loan is outstanding, the RECIPIENT irrevocably pledges the Net Revenue of the Utility, including applicable ULID 

Assessments in the ULID, to pay when due the principal of and interest on the loan.

Utility Local Improvement District (ULID) Assessment Collection (if used to secure the repayment of the loan): All ULID 

Assessments in the ULID shall be paid into the Loan Fund and used to pay the principal of and interest on the loan. 

L. Maintenance and Operation of a Funded Utility: The RECIPIENT shall, at all times, maintain and keep the funded Utility in 

good repair, working order, and condition.  

M. Opinion of RECIPIENT’s Legal Counsel: The RECIPIENT must submit an “Opinion of Legal Counsel to the 

RECIPIENT” to ECOLOGY before this agreement will be signed.  ECOLOGY will provide the form.

N. Prevailing Wage (Davis-Bacon Act): The RECIPIENT agrees, by signing this agreement, to comply with the Davis-Bacon 

Act prevailing wage requirements.  This applies to the construction, alteration, and repair of treatment works carried out, in 

whole or in part, with assistance made available by the State Revolving Fund as authorized by Section 513, title VI of the 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1372).  Laborers and mechanics employed by contractors and 

subcontractors shall be paid wages not less often than once a week and at rates not less than those prevailing on projects of a 

character similar in the locality as determined by the Secretary of Labor.  

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 32 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

The RECIPIENT shall obtain the wage determination for the area in which the project is located prior to issuing requests for 

bids, proposals, quotes, or other methods for soliciting contracts (solicitation).  These wage determinations shall be 

incorporated into solicitations and any subsequent contracts.  The RECIPIENT shall ensure that the required EPA contract 

language regarding Davis-Bacon Wages is in all contracts and subcontracts more than $2,000.  The RECIPIENT shall 

maintain records sufficient to document compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act and make such records available for review 

upon request. 

The RECIPIENT also agrees, by signing this agreement, to comply with State Prevailing Wages on Public Works, Chapter 

39.12 RCW, as applicable.  Compliance may include the determination whether the project involves “public work” and 

inclusion of the applicable prevailing wage rates in the bid specifications and contracts.  The RECIPIENT agrees to maintain 

records sufficient to evidence compliance with Chapter 39.12 RCW and make such records available for review upon request. 

O. Progress Reports:  RECIPIENTS funded with State Revolving Fund Loan or Forgivable Principal shall include the 

following verification statement in the “General Comments” text box of each progress report.

“We verified that we are in compliance with all the requirements as outlined in our funding agreement(s) with the Department of 

Ecology.  This includes but is not limited to: 

 - The Davis-Bacon Act, 29 CFR , prevailing wage requirements, certified weekly payroll, etc.

 - The Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE), 40 CFR, Part 33

 - The American Iron and Steel Act (Buy American) 

 - The Build America Buy America Act (BABA) (equivalency projects only)”

P. Representations and Warranties: The RECIPIENT represents and warrants to ECOLOGY as follows:

Application:  Material Information.  All information and materials submitted by the RECIPIENT to ECOLOGY in connection 

with its loan application were, when made, and are, as of the date the RECIPIENT signs this agreement, true and correct.  

There is no material adverse information relating to the RECIPIENT, the project, the loan, or this agreement known to the 

RECIPIENT, which has not been disclosed in writing to ECOLOGY.

Existence; Authority.  It is a duly formed and legally existing municipal corporation or political subdivision of the state of 

Washington or a federally recognized Indian Tribe.  It has full corporate power and authority to execute, deliver, and perform 

all of its obligations under this agreement and to undertake the project identified herein.

Certification.  Each payment request shall constitute a certification by the RECIPIENT to the effect that all representations and 

warranties made in this loan agreement remain true as of the date of the request and that no adverse developments, affecting 

the financial condition of the RECIPIENT or its ability to complete the project or to repay the principal of or interest on the 

loan, have occurred since the date of this loan agreement.  Any changes in the RECIPIENT’s financial condition shall be 

disclosed in writing to ECOLOGY by the RECIPIENT in its request for payment.

Q. Sale or Disposition of Funded Utility:  The RECIPIENT shall not sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of any of the works, 

plant, properties, facilities, or other part of the funded Utility or any real or personal property comprising a part of the funded 

Utility unless:

1.  The facilities or property transferred are not material to the operation of the funded Utility, or have become unserviceable, 

inadequate, obsolete, or unfit to be used in the operation of the funded Utility or are no longer necessary, material, or useful to 

the operation of the funded Utility; or

2.  The aggregate depreciated cost value of the facilities or property being transferred in any fiscal year comprises no more 

than three percent of the total assets of the funded Utility; or

3.  The RECIPIENT receives from the transferee an amount equal to an amount which will be in the same proportion to the net 

amount of Senior Lien Obligations and this LOAN then outstanding (defined as the total amount outstanding less the amount of 

cash and investments in the bond and loan funds securing such debt) as the Gross Revenue of the funded Utility from the 

portion of the funded Utility sold or disposed of for the preceding year bears to the total Gross Revenue for that period.

4.  Expressed written agreement by the ECOLOGY.

The proceeds of any transfer under this paragraph must be used (1) to redeem promptly, or irrevocably set aside for the 

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 33 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

redemption of, Senior Lien Obligations and to redeem promptly the loan, and (2) to provide for part of the cost of additions to 

and betterments and extensions of the Utility.

R. Sewer-Use Ordinance or Resolution for Funded Wastewater Facility Projects:  If not already in existence, the RECIPIENT 

shall adopt and shall enforce a sewer-use ordinance or resolution.  Such ordinance or resolution shall be submitted to 

ECOLOGY upon request.

The sewer use ordinance must include provisions to:

1) Prohibit the introduction of toxic or hazardous wastes into the RECIPIENT’s sewer system. 

2) Prohibit inflow of stormwater into separated sewer systems. 

3) Require that new sewers and connections be properly designed and constructed. 

S. Termination and Default:

Termination and Default Events

1. For Insufficient ECOLOGY or RECIPIENT Funds.  ECOLOGY may terminate this loan agreement for insufficient 

ECOLOGY or RECIPIENT funds.

2. For Failure to Commence Work.  ECOLOGY may terminate this loan agreement for failure of the RECIPIENT to 

commence project work.

3. Past Due Payments.  The RECIPIENT shall be in default of its obligations under this loan agreement when any loan 

repayment becomes 60 days past due.

4. Other Cause.  The obligation of ECOLOGY to the RECIPIENT is contingent upon satisfactory performance in full by the 

RECIPIENT of all its obligations under this loan agreement.  The RECIPIENT shall be in default of its obligations under this 

loan agreement if, in the opinion of ECOLOGY, the RECIPIENT has unjustifiably failed to perform any obligation required of 

it by this loan agreement.

Procedures for Termination. If this loan agreement is terminated prior to project completion, ECOLOGY shall provide to the 

RECIPIENT a written notice of termination at least five working days prior to the effective date of termination (the 

“Termination Date”).  The written notice of termination by the ECOLOGY shall specify the Termination Date and, when 

applicable, the date by which the RECIPIENT must repay any outstanding balance of the loan and all accrued interest (the 

“Termination Payment Date”).

Termination and Default Remedies

No Further Payments.  On and after the Termination Date, or in the event of a default event, ECOLOGY may, at its sole 

discretion, withdraw the loan and make no further payments under this agreement.

Repayment Demand.  In response to an ECOLOGY initiated termination event, or in response to a loan default event, 

ECOLOGY may at its sole discretion demand that the RECIPIENT repay the outstanding balance of the Loan Amount and all 

accrued interest.

Interest after Repayment Demand.  From the time that ECOLOGY demands repayment of funds, amounts owed by the 

RECIPIENT to ECOLOGY shall accrue additional interest at the rate of one percent per month, or fraction thereof.

Accelerate Repayments.  In the event of a default, ECOLOGY may, in its sole discretion, declare the principal of and interest 

on the loan immediately due and payable, subject to the prior lien and charge of any outstanding Senior Lien Obligation upon 

the Net Revenue.  That is, the loan is not subject to acceleration so long as any Senior Lien Obligations are outstanding.  

Repayments not made immediately upon such acceleration will incur Late Charges. 

Late Charges.  All amounts due to ECOLOGY and not paid by the RECIPIENT by the Termination Payment Date or after 

acceleration following a default event, as applicable, shall incur late charges.

Intercept State Funds.  In the event of a default event and in accordance with Chapter 90.50A.060 RCW, “Defaults,” any 

state funds otherwise due to the RECIPIENT may, at ECOLOGY’s sole discretion, be withheld and applied to the repayment 

of the loan.

Property to ECOLOGY.  In the event of a default event and at the option of ECOLOGY, any personal property (equipment) 

acquired under this agreement may, in ECOLOGY’s sole discretion, become ECOLOGY’s property.  In that circumstance, 

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 34 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

ECOLOGY shall reduce the RECIPIENT’s liability to repay money by an amount reflecting the fair value of such property.

Documents and Materials.  If this agreement is terminated, all finished or unfinished documents, data studies, surveys, 

drawings, maps, models, photographs, and reports or other materials prepared by the RECIPIENT shall, at the option of 

ECOLOGY, become ECOLOGY property. The RECIPIENT shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for 

any satisfactory work completed on such documents and other materials. 

Collection and Enforcement Actions.  In the event of a default event, the state of Washington reserves the right to take any 

actions it deems necessary to collect the amounts due, or to become due, or to enforce the performance and observance of 

any obligation by the RECIPIENT, under this agreement.

Fees and Expenses.  In any action to enforce the provisions of this agreement, reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys and 

other reasonable expenses (including, without limitation, the reasonably allocated costs of legal staff) shall be awarded to the 

prevailing party as that term is defined in Chapter 4.84.330 RCW.

Damages.  Notwithstanding ECOLOGY’s exercise of any or all the termination or default remedies provided in this agreement, 

the RECIPIENT shall not be relieved of any liability to ECOLOGY for damages sustained by ECOLOGY and/or the state of 

Washington because of any breach of this agreement by the RECIPIENT.  ECOLOGY may withhold payments for the 

purpose of setoff until such time as the exact amount of damages due ECOLOGY from the RECIPIENT is determined.

T. User-Charge System for Funded Utilities: The RECIPIENT certifies that it has the legal authority to establish and implement 

a user-charge system and shall adopt a system of user-charges to assure that each user of the funded utility shall pay its 

proportionate share of the cost of operation and maintenance, including replacement during the design life of the project.  The 

user-charge system will include provisions for a connection charge.

In addition, the RECIPIENT shall regularly evaluate the user-charge system, at least annually, to ensure the system provides 

adequate revenues necessary to operate and maintain the funded utility, to establish reserves to pay for replacement, and to 

repay the loan.

GENERAL FEDERAL CONDITIONS

If a portion or all of the funds for this agreement are provided through federal funding sources or this agreement is 

used to match a federal grant award, the following terms and conditions apply to you.

A. CERTIFICATION REGARDING SUSPENSION, DEBARMENT, INELIGIBILITY OR VOLUNTARY

     EXCLUSION:

1. The RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR, by signing this agreement, certifies that it is not suspended, debarred, proposed for 

debarment, declared ineligible or otherwise excluded from contracting with the federal government, or from receiving 

contracts paid for with federal funds. If the RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR is unable to certify to the statements 

contained in the certification, they must provide an explanation as to why they cannot. 

2. The RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR shall provide immediate written notice to ECOLOGY if at any time the 

RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or had become erroneous by 

reason of changed circumstances.

3. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, participant, person, 

primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meaning set 

out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact 

ECOLOGY for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. 

4. The RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR agrees it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a 

person who is proposed for debarment under the applicable Code of Federal Regulations, debarred, suspended, 

declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction.

5. The RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR further agrees by signing this agreement, that it will include this clause titled 

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 35 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

“CERTIFICATION REGARDING SUSPENSION, DEBARMENT, INELIGIBILITY OR VOLUNTARY 

EXCLUSION” without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered 

transactions.

6. Pursuant to 2CFR180.330, the RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR is responsible for ensuring that any lower tier covered 

transaction complies with certification of suspension and debarment requirements. 

7. RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR acknowledges that failing to disclose the information required in the Code of Federal 

Regulations may result in the delay or negation of this funding agreement, or pursuance of legal remedies, including 

suspension and debarment.

8. RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR agrees to keep proof in its agreement file, that it, and all lower tier recipients or 

contractors, are not suspended or debarred, and will make this proof available to ECOLOGY before requests for 

reimbursements will be approved for payment. RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR must run a search in 

<http://www.sam.gov> and print a copy of completed searches to document proof of compliance.

B. FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) REPORTING

     REQUIREMENTS:

CONTRACTOR/RECIPIENT must complete the FFATA Data Collection Form (ECY 070-395) and return it with the 

signed agreement to ECOLOGY. 

  Any CONTRACTOR/RECIPIENT that meets each of the criteria below must report compensation for its five

  top executives using the FFATA Data Collection Form.

· Receives more than $30,000 in federal funds under this award.

· Receives more than 80 percent of its annual gross revenues from federal funds.

· Receives more than $25,000,000 in annual federal funds.

Ecology will not pay any invoices until it has received a completed and signed FFATA Data Collection Form. Ecology is 

required to report the FFATA information for federally funded agreements, including the required Unique Entity Identifier in 

www.sam.gov <http://www.sam.gov/> within 30 days of agreement signature. The FFATA information will be available to 

the public at www.usaspending.gov <http://www.usaspending.gov/>. 

For more details on FFATA requirements, see www.fsrs.gov <http://www.fsrs.gov/>.

C. FEDERAL FUNDING PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS OR VIDEO SURVEILLANCE 

SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT:

As required by 2 CFR 200.216, federal grant or loan recipients and subrecipients are prohibited from obligating or expending 

loan or grant funds to:

1. Procure or obtain;

2. Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or

 3. Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that use 

covered telecommunications equipment, video surveillance services or services as a substantial or essential component 

of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law 115-232 

<https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-115publ232/pdf/PLAW-115publ232.pdf>, section 889, covered 

telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE 

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 36 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

Recipients, subrecipients, and borrowers also may not use federal funds to purchase certain prohibited equipment, systems, or 

services, including equipment, systems, or services produced or provided by entities identified in section 889, are recorded in 

the System for Award Management (SAM) <https://sam.gov/SAM/> exclusion list.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 37 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Pertaining to Grant and Loan Agreements With the state of Washington, Department of Ecology

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

For DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY GRANTS and LOANS

07/01/2023 Version

1.            ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

a)  RECIPIENT shall follow the "Administrative Requirements for Recipients of Ecology Grants and Loans – EAGL Edition."  

(https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/SummaryPages/2301002.html)

b)  RECIPIENT shall complete all activities funded by this Agreement and be fully responsible for the proper management of all 

funds and resources made available under this Agreement.

c)  RECIPIENT agrees to take complete responsibility for all actions taken under this Agreement, including ensuring all 

subgrantees and contractors comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. ECOLOGY reserves the right to request 

proof of compliance by subgrantees and contractors. 

d)  RECIPIENT’s activities under this Agreement shall be subject to the review and approval by ECOLOGY for the extent and 

character of all work and services.

2.            AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS

This Agreement may be altered, amended, or waived only by a written amendment executed by both parties.  No subsequent 

modification(s) or amendment(s) of this Agreement will be of any force or effect unless in writing and signed by authorized 

representatives of both parties.  ECOLOGY and the RECIPIENT may change their respective staff contacts and administrative 

information without the concurrence of either party.

3.            ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS FOR COVERED TECHNOLOGY

The RECIPIENT must comply with the Washington State Office of the Chief Information Officer, OCIO Policy no. 188, 

Accessibility (https://ocio.wa.gov/policy/accessibility) as it relates to “covered technology.” This requirement applies to all 

products supplied under the Agreement, providing equal access to information technology by individuals with disabilities, 

including and not limited to web sites/pages, web-based applications, software systems, video and audio content, and electronic 

documents intended for publishing on Ecology’s public web site.

4. ARCHAEOLOGICAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

RECIPIENT shall take all reasonable action to avoid, minimize, or mitigate adverse effects to archaeological and historic 

archaeological sites, historic buildings/structures, traditional cultural places, sacred sites, or other cultural resources, hereby 

referred to as Cultural Resources.

The RECIPIENT must agree to hold harmless ECOLOGY in relation to any claim related to Cultural Resources discovered, 

disturbed, or damaged due to the RECIPIENT’s project funded under this Agreement.

RECIPIENT shall:

a)  Contact the ECOLOGY Program issuing the grant or loan to discuss any Cultural Resources requirements for their project:

•   Cultural Resource Consultation and Review should be initiated early in the project planning process and must be completed 

prior to expenditure of Agreement funds as required by applicable State and Federal requirements.

* For state funded construction, demolition, or land acquisitions, comply with Governor Executive Order 21-02, Archaeological 

and Cultural Resources.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 38 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

•  For projects with any federal involvement, comply with the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Section 106).

b)  If required by the ECOLOGY Program, submit an Inadvertent Discovery Plan (IDP) to ECOLOGY prior to implementing 

any project that involves field activities. ECOLOGY will provide the IDP form.

RECIPIENT shall:

•  Keep the IDP at the project site.

•  Make the IDP readily available to anyone working at the project site.

•  Discuss the IDP with staff, volunteers, and contractors working at the project site.

•  Implement the IDP when Cultural Resources or human remains are found at the project site.

c)  If any Cultural Resources are found while conducting work under this Agreement, follow the protocol outlined in the project 

IDP.

•  Immediately stop work and notify the ECOLOGY Program, who will notify the Department of Archaeology and Historic 

Preservation at (360) 586-3065, any affected Tribe, and the local government.

d)  If any human remains are found while conducting work under this Agreement, follow the protocol outlined in the project 

IDP.

•  Immediately stop work and notify the local Law Enforcement Agency or Medical Examiner/Coroner’s Office, the 

Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation at (360) 790-1633, and then the ECOLOGY Program.

e)  Comply with RCW 27.53, RCW 27.44, and RCW 68.50.645, and all other applicable local, state, and federal laws 

protecting Cultural Resources and human remains.

5.            ASSIGNMENT

No right or claim of the RECIPIENT arising under this Agreement shall be transferred or assigned by the RECIPIENT.

6.            COMMUNICATION

RECIPIENT shall make every effort to maintain effective communications with the RECIPIENT's designees, ECOLOGY, all 

affected local, state, or federal jurisdictions, and any interested individuals or groups.

7.            COMPENSATION

a)  Any work performed prior to effective date of this Agreement will be at the sole expense and risk of the RECIPIENT.  

ECOLOGY must sign the Agreement before any payment requests can be submitted. 

b)  Payments will be made on a reimbursable basis for approved and completed work as specified in this Agreement. 

c)  RECIPIENT is responsible to determine if costs are eligible.  Any questions regarding eligibility should be clarified with 

ECOLOGY prior to incurring costs.  Costs that are conditionally eligible require approval by ECOLOGY prior to expenditure. 

d)  RECIPIENT shall not invoice more than once per month unless agreed on by ECOLOGY.

e)  ECOLOGY will not process payment requests without the proper reimbursement forms, Progress Report and supporting 

documentation.  ECOLOGY will provide instructions for submitting payment requests. 

f)  ECOLOGY will pay the RECIPIENT thirty (30) days after receipt of a properly completed request for payment. 

g)  RECIPIENT will receive payment through Washington State’s Office of Financial Management’s Statewide Payee Desk.  

To receive payment you must register as a statewide vendor by submitting a statewide vendor registration form and an IRS W-9 

form at website, https://ofm.wa.gov/it-systems/statewide-vendorpayee-services.  If you have questions about the vendor 

registration process, you can contact Statewide Payee Help Desk at (360) 407-8180 or email PayeeRegistration@ofm.wa.gov.

h)  ECOLOGY may, at its sole discretion, withhold payments claimed by the RECIPIENT if the RECIPIENT fails to 

satisfactorily comply with any term or condition of this Agreement.

i)  Monies withheld by ECOLOGY may be paid to the RECIPIENT when the work described herein, or a portion thereof, has 

been completed if, at ECOLOGY's sole discretion, such payment is reasonable and approved according to this Agreement, as 

appropriate, or upon completion of an audit as specified herein.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 39 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

j)  RECIPIENT must submit within thirty (30) days after the expiration date of this Agreement, all financial, performance, and 

other reports required by this Agreement. Failure to comply may result in delayed reimbursement.

8.            COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS

RECIPIENT agrees to comply fully with all applicable federal, state and local laws, orders, regulations, and permits related to 

this Agreement, including but not limited to:

a)  RECIPIENT agrees to comply with all applicable laws, regulations, and policies of the United States and the State of 

Washington which affect wages and job safety. 

b)  RECIPIENT agrees to be bound by all applicable federal and state laws, regulations, and policies against discrimination. 

c)  RECIPIENT certifies full compliance with all applicable state industrial insurance requirements.

d)  RECIPIENT agrees to secure and provide assurance to ECOLOGY that all the necessary approvals and permits required 

by authorities having jurisdiction over the project are obtained.  RECIPIENT must include time in their project timeline for the 

permit and approval processes.

ECOLOGY shall have the right to immediately terminate for cause this Agreement as provided herein if the RECIPIENT fails to 

comply with above requirements.

If any provision of this Agreement violates any statute or rule of law of the state of Washington, it is considered modified to 

conform to that statute or rule of law.

9.            CONFLICT OF INTEREST

RECIPIENT and ECOLOGY agree that any officer, member, agent, or employee, who exercises any function or responsibility 

in the review, approval, or carrying out of this Agreement, shall not have any personal or financial interest, direct or indirect, nor 

affect the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he/she is a part, in this Agreement or the proceeds 

thereof.

10.         CONTRACTING FOR GOODS AND SERVICES 

RECIPIENT may contract to buy goods or services related to its performance under this Agreement.  RECIPIENT shall award 

all contracts for construction, purchase of goods, equipment, services, and professional architectural and engineering services 

through a competitive process, if required by State law.  RECIPIENT is required to follow procurement procedures that ensure 

legal, fair, and open competition.

RECIPIENT must have a standard procurement process or follow current state procurement procedures.  RECIPIENT may be 

required to provide written certification that they have followed their standard procurement procedures and applicable state law 

in awarding contracts under this Agreement. 

ECOLOGY reserves the right to inspect and request copies of all procurement documentation, and review procurement 

practices related to this Agreement.  Any costs incurred as a result of procurement practices not in compliance with state 

procurement law or the RECIPIENT's normal procedures may be disallowed at ECOLOGY’s sole discretion.

11.         DISPUTES

When there is a dispute with regard to the extent and character of the work, or any other matter related to this Agreement the 

determination of ECOLOGY will govern, although the RECIPIENT shall have the right to appeal decisions as provided for 

below:

a)  RECIPIENT notifies the funding program of an appeal request.

b)  Appeal request must be in writing and state the disputed issue(s).

c)  RECIPIENT has the opportunity to be heard and offer evidence in support of its appeal.  

d)  ECOLOGY reviews the RECIPIENT’s appeal.

e)  ECOLOGY sends a written answer within ten (10) business days, unless more time is needed, after concluding the review.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 40 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

The decision of ECOLOGY from an appeal will be final and conclusive, unless within thirty (30) days from the date of such 

decision, the RECIPIENT furnishes to the Director of ECOLOGY a written appeal. The decision of the Director or duly 

authorized representative will be final and conclusive.

The parties agree that this dispute process will precede any action in a judicial or quasi-judicial tribunal. 

Appeals of the Director's decision will be brought in the Superior Court of Thurston County.  Review of the Director’s decision 

will not be taken to Environmental and Land Use Hearings Office. 

Pending final decision of a dispute, the RECIPIENT agrees to proceed diligently with the performance of this Agreement and in 

accordance with the decision rendered.

Nothing in this Agreement will be construed to limit the parties’ choice of another mutually acceptable method, in addition to the 

dispute resolution procedure outlined above.

12.         ENVIRONMENTAL DATA STANDARDS 

a)  RECIPIENT shall prepare a Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) for a project that collects or uses environmental 

measurement data. RECIPIENTS unsure about whether a QAPP is required for their project shall contact the ECOLOGY 

Program issuing the grant or loan. If a QAPP is required, the RECIPIENT shall:

•  Use ECOLOGY’s QAPP Template/Checklist provided by the ECOLOGY, unless ECOLOGY Quality Assurance (QA) 

officer or the Program QA coordinator instructs otherwise.

•  Follow ECOLOGY’s Guidelines for Preparing Quality Assurance Project Plans for Environmental Studies, July 2004 

(Ecology Publication No. 04-03-030). 

•  Submit the QAPP to ECOLOGY for review and approval before the start of the work. 

b)  RECIPIENT shall submit environmental data that was collected on a project to ECOLOGY using the Environmental 

Information Management system (EIM), unless the ECOLOGY Program instructs otherwise. The RECIPIENT must confirm 

with ECOLOGY that complete and correct data was successfully loaded into EIM, find instructions at: 

http://www.ecy.wa.gov/eim.

c)  RECIPIENT shall follow ECOLOGY’s data standards when Geographic Information System (GIS) data is collected and 

processed. Guidelines for Creating and Accessing GIS Data are available at: 

https://ecology.wa.gov/Research-Data/Data-resources/Geographic-Information-Systems-GIS/Standards. RECIPIENT, when 

requested by ECOLOGY, shall provide copies to ECOLOGY of all final GIS data layers, imagery, related tables, raw data 

collection files, map products, and all metadata and project documentation.

13.         GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Washington, and the venue of any action brought hereunder will be 

in the Superior Court of Thurston County.

14.         INDEMNIFICATION

ECOLOGY will in no way be held responsible for payment of salaries, consultant's fees, and other costs related to the project 

described herein, except as provided in the Scope of Work.

To the extent that the Constitution and laws of the State of Washington permit, each party will indemnify and hold the other 

harmless from and against any liability for any or all injuries to persons or property arising from the negligent act or omission of 

that party or that party's agents or employees arising out of this Agreement.

15.         INDEPENDENT STATUS

The employees, volunteers, or agents of each party who are engaged in the performance of this Agreement will continue to be 

employees, volunteers, or agents of that party and will not for any purpose be employees, volunteers, or agents of the other 

party.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 41 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

16.         KICKBACKS

RECIPIENT is prohibited from inducing by any means any person employed or otherwise involved in this Agreement to give up 

any part of the compensation to which he/she is otherwise entitled to or receive any fee, commission, or gift in return for award 

of a subcontract hereunder.

17.         MINORITY AND WOMEN’S BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (MWBE)

RECIPIENT is encouraged to solicit and recruit, to the extent possible, certified minority-owned (MBE) and women-owned 

(WBE) businesses in purchases and contracts initiated under this Agreement.

Contract awards or rejections cannot be made based on MWBE participation; however, the RECIPIENT is encouraged to 

take the following actions, when possible, in any procurement under this Agreement:

a)  Include qualified minority and women's businesses on solicitation lists whenever they are potential sources of goods or 

services.

b)  Divide the total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities, to permit maximum participation 

by qualified minority and women's businesses.

c)  Establish delivery schedules, where work requirements permit, which will encourage participation of qualified minority and 

women's businesses.

d)  Use the services and assistance of the Washington State Office of Minority and Women's Business Enterprises (OMWBE) 

(866-208-1064) and the Office of Minority Business Enterprises of the U.S. Department of Commerce, as appropriate.

18.         ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

In the event of inconsistency in this Agreement, unless otherwise provided herein, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving 

precedence in the following order:  (a) applicable federal and state statutes and regulations; (b) The Agreement; (c) Scope of 

Work; (d) Special Terms and Conditions; (e) Any provisions or terms incorporated herein by reference, including the 

"Administrative Requirements for Recipients of Ecology Grants and Loans"; (f) Ecology Funding Program Guidelines; and (g) 

General Terms and Conditions.

19.         PRESENTATION AND PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS

ECOLOGY reserves the right to approve RECIPIENT’s communication documents and materials related to the fulfillment of 

this Agreement: 

a)  If requested, RECIPIENT shall provide a draft copy to ECOLOGY for review and approval ten (10) business days prior to 

production and distribution.

b)  RECIPIENT shall include time for ECOLOGY’s review and approval process in their project timeline.

c)  If requested, RECIPIENT shall provide ECOLOGY two (2) final copies and an electronic copy of any tangible products 

developed.

Copies include any printed materials, and all tangible products developed such as brochures, manuals, pamphlets, videos, audio 

tapes, CDs, curriculum, posters, media announcements, or gadgets with a message, such as a refrigerator magnet, and any 

online communications, such as web pages, blogs, and twitter campaigns. If it is not practical to provide a copy, then the 

RECIPIENT shall provide a description (photographs, drawings, printouts, etc.) that best represents the item.

Any communications intended for public distribution that uses ECOLOGY’s logo shall comply with ECOLOGY’s graphic 

requirements and any additional requirements specified in this Agreement.  Before the use of ECOLOGY’s logo contact 

ECOLOGY for guidelines. 

RECIPIENT shall acknowledge in the communications that funding was provided by ECOLOGY.

20.         PROGRESS REPORTING

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 42 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

a)  RECIPIENT must satisfactorily demonstrate the timely use of funds by submitting payment requests and progress reports to 

ECOLOGY.  ECOLOGY reserves the right to amend or terminate this Agreement if the RECIPIENT does not document 

timely use of funds. 

b)  RECIPIENT must submit a progress report with each payment request.  Payment requests will not be processed without a 

progress report.  ECOLOGY will define the elements and frequency of progress reports.

c)  RECIPIENT shall use ECOLOGY’s provided progress report format.  

d)  Quarterly progress reports will cover the periods from January 1 through March 31, April 1 through June 30, July 1 through 

September 30, and October 1 through December 31.  Reports shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the 

quarter being reported. 

e)  RECIPIENT must submit within thirty (30) days of the expiration date of the project, unless an extension has been approved 

by ECOLOGY, all financial, performance, and other reports required by the Agreement and funding program guidelines.  

RECIPIENT shall use the ECOLOGY provided closeout report format.  

21.         PROPERTY RIGHTS

a)  Copyrights and Patents.  When the RECIPIENT creates any copyrightable materials or invents any patentable property 

under this Agreement, the RECIPIENT may copyright or patent the same but ECOLOGY retains a royalty free, nonexclusive, 

and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, recover, or otherwise use the material(s) or property, and to authorize others to 

use the same for federal, state, or local government purposes.

b)  Publications.  When the RECIPIENT or persons employed by the RECIPIENT use or publish ECOLOGY information; 

present papers, lectures, or seminars involving information supplied by ECOLOGY; or use logos, reports, maps, or other data 

in printed reports, signs, brochures, pamphlets, etc., appropriate credit shall be given to ECOLOGY.

c)  Presentation and Promotional Materials. ECOLOGY shall have the right to use or reproduce any printed or graphic 

materials produced in fulfillment of this Agreement, in any manner ECOLOGY deems appropriate. ECOLOGY shall 

acknowledge the RECIPIENT as the sole copyright owner in every use or reproduction of the materials.

d)  Tangible Property Rights.  ECOLOGY's current edition of "Administrative Requirements for Recipients of Ecology Grants 

and Loans," shall control the use and disposition of all real and personal property purchased wholly or in part with funds 

furnished by ECOLOGY in the absence of state and federal statutes, regulations, or policies to the contrary, or upon specific 

instructions with respect thereto in this Agreement.

e)  Personal Property Furnished by ECOLOGY.  When ECOLOGY provides personal property directly to the RECIPIENT 

for use in performance of the project, it shall be returned to ECOLOGY prior to final payment by ECOLOGY.  If said property 

is lost, stolen, or damaged while in the RECIPIENT's possession, then ECOLOGY shall be reimbursed in cash or by setoff by 

the RECIPIENT for the fair market value of such property.

f)  Acquisition Projects.  The following provisions shall apply if the project covered by this Agreement includes funds for the 

acquisition of land or facilities:  

1.  RECIPIENT shall establish that the cost is fair value and reasonable prior to disbursement of funds provided for in this 

Agreement. 

2.  RECIPIENT shall provide satisfactory evidence of title or ability to acquire title for each parcel prior to disbursement of 

funds provided by this Agreement.  Such evidence may include title insurance policies, Torrens certificates, or abstracts, and 

attorney's opinions establishing that the land is free from any impediment, lien, or claim which would impair the uses intended by 

this Agreement. 

g)  Conversions.  Regardless of the Agreement expiration date, the RECIPIENT shall not at any time convert any equipment, 

property, or facility acquired or developed under this Agreement to uses other than those for which assistance was originally 

approved without prior written approval of ECOLOGY.  Such approval may be conditioned upon payment to ECOLOGY of 

that portion of the proceeds of the sale, lease, or other conversion or encumbrance which monies granted pursuant to this 

Agreement bear to the total acquisition, purchase, or construction costs of such property.

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 43 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

22.         RECORDS, AUDITS, AND INSPECTIONS

RECIPIENT shall maintain complete program and financial records relating to this Agreement, including any engineering 

documentation and field inspection reports of all construction work accomplished.

All records shall: 

a)  Be kept in a manner which provides an audit trail for all expenditures.

b)  Be kept in a common file to facilitate audits and inspections. 

c)  Clearly indicate total receipts and expenditures related to this Agreement.

d)  Be open for audit or inspection by ECOLOGY, or by any duly authorized audit representative of the State of Washington, 

for a period of at least three (3) years after the final grant payment or loan repayment, or any dispute resolution hereunder.

RECIPIENT shall provide clarification and make necessary adjustments if any audits or inspections identify discrepancies in the 

records.

ECOLOGY reserves the right to audit, or have a designated third party audit, applicable records to ensure that the state has 

been properly invoiced.  Any remedies and penalties allowed by law to recover monies determined owed will be enforced.  

Repetitive instances of incorrect invoicing or inadequate records may be considered cause for termination.

All work performed under this Agreement and any property and equipment purchased shall be made available to ECOLOGY 

and to any authorized state, federal or local representative for inspection at any time during the course of this Agreement and for 

at least three (3) years following grant or loan termination or dispute resolution hereunder. 

RECIPIENT shall provide right of access to ECOLOGY, or any other authorized representative, at all reasonable times, in 

order to monitor and evaluate performance, compliance, and any other conditions under this Agreement.

23.         RECOVERY OF FUNDS

The right of the RECIPIENT to retain monies received as reimbursement payments is contingent upon satisfactory performance 

of this Agreement and completion of the work described in the Scope of Work.

All payments to the RECIPIENT are subject to approval and audit by ECOLOGY, and any unauthorized expenditure(s) or 

unallowable cost charged to this Agreement shall be refunded to ECOLOGY by the RECIPIENT.

RECIPIENT shall refund to ECOLOGY the full amount of any erroneous payment or overpayment under this Agreement.

RECIPIENT shall refund by check payable to ECOLOGY the amount of any such reduction of payments or repayments within 

thirty (30) days of a written notice.  Interest will accrue at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per year from the time ECOLOGY 

demands repayment of funds.

Any property acquired under this Agreement, at the option of ECOLOGY, may become ECOLOGY's property and the 

RECIPIENT's liability to repay monies will be reduced by an amount reflecting the fair value of such property.

24.         SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement or any provision of any document incorporated by reference shall be held invalid , such 

invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid provision, and to 

this end the provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable.

25.         STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (SEPA)

RECIPIENT must demonstrate to ECOLOGY’s satisfaction that compliance with the requirements of the State Environmental 

Policy Act (Chapter 43.21C RCW and Chapter 197-11 WAC) have been or will be met.  Any reimbursements are subject to 

this provision.

26.         SUSPENSION

When in the best interest of ECOLOGY, ECOLOGY may at any time, and without cause, suspend this Agreement or any 

portion thereof for a temporary period by written notice from ECOLOGY to the RECIPIENT. RECIPIENT shall resume 

performance on the next business day following the suspension period unless another day is specified by ECOLOGY. 

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 44 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

27.         SUSTAINABLE PRACTICES

In order to sustain Washington’s natural resources and ecosystems, the RECIPIENT is fully encouraged to implement 

sustainable practices and to purchase environmentally preferable products under this Agreement.  

a)  Sustainable practices may include such activities as: use of clean energy, use of double-sided printing, hosting low impact 

meetings, and setting up recycling and composting programs.  

b)  Purchasing may include such items as: sustainably produced products and services, EPEAT registered computers and 

imaging equipment, independently certified green cleaning products, remanufactured toner cartridges, products with reduced 

packaging, office products that are refillable, rechargeable, and recyclable, 100% post-consumer recycled paper, and toxic free 

products.

For more suggestions visit ECOLOGY’s web page, Green Purchasing, 

https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/Guidance-technical-assistance/Sustainable-purchasing.

28.         TERMINATION

a)  For Cause

ECOLOGY may terminate for cause this Agreement with a seven (7) calendar days prior written notification to the 

RECIPIENT, at the sole discretion of ECOLOGY, for failing to perform an Agreement requirement or for a material breach of 

any term or condition.  If this Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance rendered or costs 

incurred in accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination. 

Failure to Commence Work. ECOLOGY reserves the right to terminate this Agreement if RECIPIENT fails to commence work 

on the project funded within four (4) months after the effective date of this Agreement, or by any date mutually agreed upon in 

writing for commencement of work, or the time period defined within the Scope of Work.

Non-Performance. The obligation of ECOLOGY to the RECIPIENT is contingent upon satisfactory performance by the 

RECIPIENT of all of its obligations under this Agreement.  In the event the RECIPIENT unjustifiably fails, in the opinion of 

ECOLOGY, to perform any obligation required of it by this Agreement, ECOLOGY may refuse to pay any further funds, 

terminate in whole or in part this Agreement, and exercise any other rights under this Agreement.

Despite the above, the RECIPIENT shall not be relieved of any liability to ECOLOGY for damages sustained by ECOLOGY 

and the State of Washington because of any breach of this Agreement by the RECIPIENT.  ECOLOGY may withhold 

payments for the purpose of setoff until such time as the exact amount of damages due ECOLOGY from the RECIPIENT is 

determined.

b)  For Convenience

ECOLOGY may terminate for convenience this Agreement, in whole or in part, for any reason when it is the best interest of 

ECOLOGY, with a thirty (30) calendar days prior written notification to the RECIPIENT, except as noted below.  If this 

Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the 

terms of this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination.

Non-Allocation of Funds. ECOLOGY’s ability to make payments is contingent on availability of funding.  In the event funding 

from state, federal or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way after the effective date and prior to the 

completion or expiration date of this Agreement, ECOLOGY, at its sole discretion, may elect to terminate the Agreement, in 

whole or part, or renegotiate the Agreement, subject to new funding limitations or conditions.  ECOLOGY may also elect to 

suspend performance of the Agreement until ECOLOGY determines the funding insufficiency is resolved.  ECOLOGY may 

exercise any of these options with no notification or restrictions, although ECOLOGY will make a reasonable attempt to provide 

notice.

In the event of termination or suspension, ECOLOGY will reimburse eligible costs incurred by the RECIPIENT through the 

effective date of termination or suspension. Reimbursed costs must be agreed to by ECOLOGY and the RECIPIENT. In no 

Template Version 12/10/2020



Page 45 of 45State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

WQC-2024-BremPW-00179

Kitsap Lake Stormwater Treatment Retrofit Construction

City of Bremerton - Public Works and Utilities

event shall ECOLOGY’s reimbursement exceed ECOLOGY’s total responsibility under the Agreement and any amendments.

If payments have been discontinued by ECOLOGY due to unavailable funds, the RECIPIENT shall not be obligated to repay 

monies which had been paid to the RECIPIENT prior to such termination.

RECIPIENT’s obligation to continue or complete the work described in this Agreement shall be contingent upon availability of 

funds by the RECIPIENT's governing body.

c)  By Mutual Agreement

ECOLOGY and the RECIPIENT may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time, by mutual written agreement.

d)  In Event of Termination

All finished or unfinished documents, data studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, reports or other materials 

prepared by the RECIPIENT under this Agreement, at the option of ECOLOGY, will become property of ECOLOGY and the 

RECIPIENT shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work completed on such 

documents and other materials. 

Nothing contained herein shall preclude ECOLOGY from demanding repayment of all funds paid to the RECIPIENT in 

accordance with Recovery of Funds, identified herein.

29.         THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY

RECIPIENT shall ensure that in all subcontracts entered into by the RECIPIENT pursuant to this Agreement, the state of 

Washington is named as an express third party beneficiary of such subcontracts with full rights as such.

30.         WAIVER

Waiver of a default or breach of any provision of this Agreement is not a waiver of any subsequent default or breach, and will 

not be construed as a modification of the terms of this Agreement unless stated as such in writing by the authorized 

representative of ECOLOGY.

End of General Terms and Conditions

Template Version 12/10/2020



Project Scope 
Construct stormwater treatment systems that were designed in 2022 with a previous Ecology grant. This will treat storm-

water from approximately 82 acres before it enters Kitsap Lake and improves water quality by removing pollutants, including 

6PPD-Q which is toxic to salmon. The systems provide basic, enhanced, and phosphorus treatment.   

ECOLOGY SFAP GRANT  

KITSAP LAKE STORMWATER TREATMENT RETROFIT  

CONSTRUCTION — $2,841,937 

BioPod Treatment systems remove: 

Total Suspended Solids (TSS)  

Dissolved Copper,  

Total Copper, 

Dissolved Zinc, 

Total Zinc, 

Motor Oil / Petroleum Hydrocarbons,  

Total Phosphorus 

Ortho Phosphorus 

Nitrogen 

Phosphorus and nitrogen are nutrients that feed algae blooms, 

including cyanobacteria (blue-green toxic algae). 

The BioPod will remove and retain debris, sediments, TSS, dis-

solved and particulate metals and nutrients including nitrogen 

and phosphorus, bacteria, BOD, oxygen demanding substances, 

organic compounds and hydrocarbons that would otherwise flow 

into Kitsap Lake during frequent storm events and continuous dry 

weather flows. 

Water Quality Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL): Kitsap 

Lake is a 303(d) Listed water body for elevated Fecal Coliform 

(listing #7649) and Total Phosphorus (Listing #6345).  Phos-

phorus recycling, low transparency, aquatic macrophytes, fe-

cal coliform are identified water quality issues  (Parametrix, 

1983).  The treatment systems will reduce Total Phosphorus 

and Fecal Coliform originating from stormwater runoff.  This 

project supports the stormwater runoff treatment portion of 

the water quality cleanup plan.  
 

Project Cost / Grant application Budget:  $2,841,937 

Funding: 75% Ecology SFAP Grant $2,415,646.45 

      25% Stormwater Utility match $426,290.55 

 

Grant Manager: Chance Berthiaume, Utility Manager 

 Chance.berthiaume@ci.bremerton.wa.us 

Project Manager: Dave Dinkuhn, Stormwater Project Manager 

 David.dinkuhn@ci.bremerton.wa.us 

City 

Kitsap  

County 



Published for  

March 6 

Council Meeting 
 

Item 3 – Mayor’s Report 

 

 

  



Published for  

March 6 

Council Meeting 
 

Item 7 – Council Reports 

 

 

  



MAYOR’S REPORT

March 6, 2024



Update on Kitsap Transit *

We’re pleased to share an update on what’s included in the transportation budget for 

Kitsap Transit:

• Kitsap Transit is still in the transportation budget for the electric hydrofoil study

• Kitsap Transit received $300,000 for the intra-county ferry feasibility study

• Budget included $5 million (up from the request of $1 million) to supplement 

Kitsap Transit passenger ferry service between Bremerton and Seattle 

* pending official legislative approval and governor’s signature



State Funding Update

Salvation Army

• $477,000 for Salvation Army.  Joint City/County request to fund the 24-hr Shelter 

for 2 summer months



State Funding Update

Bremerton - Mason County Sewer Extension

• $3 million for the Bremerton - Mason County Sewer Extension.  Funds design to 

convey and treat sewerage from South PSIC to Mason County’s Belfair Water 

Reclamation Facility

• $1.7 million to Bremerton

• $1.3 million to Mason County



State Funding Update

Warren Avenue Bridge

Construction of the Warren Ave. Bridge multimodal project. 

• $15 million in 2025-27

• $10 million in 2027-29

$500,000 for Warren Avenue Bridge Design

• Funds contingent on the Climate Commitment Act funds continuing/Initiative 

2117 failing



State Funding Update

View Ridge Safe Routes to Schools

• $5.9 million for View Ridge Safe Routes to Schools.  Design and construction of 

Phase 2; sidewalk and bike lanes on Almira Dr. from Ivy Rd. to Riddell Rd

• Funds contingent on the Climate Commitment Act funds continuing/Initiative 2117 

failing



State Funding Update

All Capital, Transportation & Operating budgets have been agreed to by the House and 

Senate and they will go off to Governor Inslee for his signature when the legislative 

session ends Mar. 7



Biosolids Application Update

Our biosolids have been land-applied to 

Utility Lands since 1992. This sustainable 

disposal method improves forest health, 

and is low cost helping keep our utility 

rates the lowest in the region

Truck 077, our current biosolids applicator 

vehicle, has been in use since 2000 and 

has become unreliable. A replacement 

vehicle was ordered in 2021. 

After 3 years and a slough of supply chain 

issues, the replacement vehicle was 

delivered on Feb 27th! 

The new truck is undergoing performance 

testing. It will transition into the position of 

lead applicator, and the old truck will be 

maintained as back up.

Shared by our Public Works & Utilities crew!



Congratulations to Bremerton Knight’s Athletics!

Bremerton Knights Boys 

Basketball

Bremerton Knights Boys 

Basketball advanced to 

the state tournament for 

first time since 2010! The 

basketball team made it to 

the final 4. (They barely 

lost to the multi-year and 

returning state champs -

Lynden Lions).

Bremerton Knight Wrestlers

At the 2024 WIAA Boys 2A State 

Wrestling Championships (Mat Classic 

XXXV), Anthony Murphy competed at 

120# and Lars Michaelson (190#) won 

his third individual state title!



Congratulations to Bremerton Knight’s Athletics!

Bremerton Knights Cheer Team

For the first time in Bremerton High 

School history, the Bremerton 

Knights Cheer Team are state 

champions! The team competed in 

the 1A/2A non-tumbling division 

against teams from throughout the 

state. 



District 2 Report
Denise Frey

March 6, 2024



MAG Development near 
completion with 

Bremerton Station.

• Bringing revitalization to 
the SR303 Corridor



Bremerton School District bond measure will rebuild 

View Ridge Elementary Arts Academy in East 

Bremerton. What else may be developed on the old 

East High School property?



Former Harrison 
Hospital Site

• Demolition will be 
complete by end of 
2024



District 3
Report
March 6, 2024









bremertonwa.gov/228/Boards-Commissions



COUNCIL DISTRICT 4
Jane Rebelowski





COUNCIL DISTRICT 5
Michael Goodnow










	Top
	A.	3/6/24 Claims and Check Register
	Consent Agenda Bill

	B.	3/6/24 Meeting Minutes
	Mar 6 - 4B AB
	Minutes - February 21, 2024

	C.	3/6/24 Joint Planning Session Minutes
	Mar 6 - 4C AB
	Minutes - February 24, 2024 Joint Planning Session

	D.	3/6/24 Study Session Minutes
	Mar 6 - 4D AB
	Minutes - February 28, 2024 Study Session

	E.	3/6/24 Confirm reappointment of Vanessa Acierto to BKAT Citizens Advisory Committee
	Mar 6 - 4E AB
	Application for Vanessa Acierto_Redacted

	F.	3/6/24 CHIP Grant
	Mar 6 - 4F AB
	Mar 6 - Resolution 3378 CHIP GRANT
	Exhibit A - COM 22-96720-118 CHIP UI Bremerton Manette Contract Final 1.4.24
	Exhibit B - City of Bremerton KCR Manette Housing Project

	G.	3/6/24 Approve contract modification No. 04 with Kellermeyer Bergensons Services LLC for janitorial services
	Mar 6 - 4G AB
	Contract Modification No. 04

	H.	3/6/24 Contract Award for Pine Road Basin Marine Impact Basin Project
	Mar 6 - 4H AB
	Contract - Filled
	20240214 870 Vicinity Map
	Bid Tabulation Sheet - Bid Opening Form REV1

	I.	3/6/24 Kitsap Lake SW Treatment Construction  Ecology SFAP grant
	Mar 6 - 4I AB
	Kitsap Lake SWRConstruction WQC-2024-BremPW-00179
	CIP Kitsap Lake SW Treatment Retrofit construction240220
	Mar 6 - Mayor's Report PLACEHOLDER
	Mar 6 - Council Reports PLACEHOLDER
	24mar06_MayorWheeler
	MARCH 6 - COUNCIL REPORTS 350 PM

	Bottom

